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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2013

OR
0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission file number 0-50761

AngioDynamics, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Delaware 11-314646C
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
14 Plaza Drive Latham, New York 12110
(Address of principal executive offices (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area codé518) 795-1400

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) ¢fie Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registert
Common stock, par value $.0: NASDAQ Global Select Market
Preferred Stock Purchase Right: NASDAQ Global Select Market
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) diie Act:
None

(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a wkelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405e0b#turities Act.  Yedd No
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ord)®f the Act. YesO No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ¢k filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4188ring the preceding 12 mont
(or for such shorter period that the registrant reagiired to file such reports), and (2) has bessjest to such filing requirements for the past@s. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lndsnitted electronically and posted on its corpovegbsite, if any, every Interactive Data File regdito be submitted and posted
pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during treepding 12 months (or for such shorter period thatregistrant was required to submit and podt §iles). Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiélers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K ig contained herein, and will not be containedhltest of registrars’knowledge
in definitive proxy or information statements inporated by reference in Part Ill of this Form 1@kKany amendment to this Form 10-K1

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantler@e accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, @-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting comp&wse definitions of “large

accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smalteporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchage (Check one):

Large accelerated fileid Accelerated filer
Non-acceleratefiler O Smaller reporting companyd

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the BExge Act). YesO No

As of November 30, 2012, the last business dag®fégistrant’s most recently completed secondffigaarter, the aggregate market value of the tregits common stock held by
non-affiliates was approximately $368,627,225, coteg by reference to the last sale price of thensomstock on that date as reported by The NasdaloggGEelect Market.

As of July 31, 2013, there were 35,062,039 sharéfsearegistrant's common stock outstanding.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The information required for Part Ill of this anhweport on Form 10-K is incorporated by referefroen the registrans Proxy Statement for its 2013 Annual Meeting afckholder:
to be filed within 120 days of registrant’s fisgalar ended May 31, 2013.
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Part |
Item 1. Business
(a) General Development of Business
Overview

We design, manufacture and sell a wide range ofgakdurgical and diagnostic devices used by gsi@amal healthcare providers for
vascular access, for the treatment of periphersdwlar disease and for use in oncology and surgatéihgs. Our devices are generally use
minimally invasive, image-guided procedures. Mdstur products are intended to be used once amddisearded, or they may be
temporarily implanted for short- or long-term use.

We have been in business since 1988. Our corpbeatgquarters is located at 14 Plaza Drive, LatiNew York 12110. Our phone
number is (518) 795-1400.

Available Information

Our website isvww.angiodynamics.comWe make available, free-of-charge through oursitebour annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report&om 8-K and amendments to those reports filedioished pursuant to Section 13(a) of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendesh@s as reasonably practicable after we electadipifile or furnish such materials to the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC. Intiaddiour website includes, among other thingsyteta of various committees of the
Board of Directors and our code of business condndtethics applicable to all employees, officerd directors. Copies of these documents
may be obtained free of charge from our website gtockholder also may obtain copies of these decus) free of charge, by sending a
request in writing to our investor relations firEVC Group, 60 East 42nd Street, Suite 936, New YN 10165. Information on our webs
or connected to our website is not incorporatedeigrence into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

History

AngioDynamics was founded in 1988 and we completadnitial public offering in 2004, raising netqareeds of approximately $21.7
million at an offering price of $11.00 per shame2D06 we completed a follow-on offering, raisiref proceeds of approximately $61.9
million at a public offering price of $24.07 perash.

Recent Developments
Acquisition of Microsulis Medical Ltd.

On March 22, 2012, we established a strategicioalstip with Microsulis Medical Ltd. (“Microsulis})a U.K.-based company
specializing in minimally-invasive, microwave alitat technology for the coagulation of soft tissue.

The relationship included an initial $5 million istment in Microsulis through the purchase of sepieferred stock, representing a
14.3% ownership position, exclusive distributioghtis to market and sell their microwave ablatiostems in all markets outside the United
States from May 2012 through December 2013, arekalusive option to purchase at any time until 8eyliter 22, 2013, substantially all of
the global assets of Microsulis Medical, Ltd.

On February 1, 2013, we completed the acquisitiaredain assets of Microsulis, which we have aoted for as a business
combination, for cash payments at closing tota#it§.0 million, subject to a working capital adjustm, a $5.0 million payment due on
December 31, 2013 and potential additional caskidenation payable upon performance over the nieetyears. We also assumed $1.6
million of liabilities.
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The total estimated purchase consideration of $88l®n included the initial investment of $5.0 lfian, closing payments totaling
$10.5 million, a $5.0 million payment due on Decem®1, 2013 and the estimated fair value of coetmgonsideration (Earn out) of $13.2
million. The estimated fair value of contingent siteration is based on projected net sales ovaritieeyear period following the closing of
the acquisition. The amount of the Earn out consiiten that could be paid on net sales is not édhit

The estimated purchase consideration exceededitheafue of the acquired net assets by $19.3onilind was recorded as goodwiill.
Goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. Core teslhgies are being amortized over their estimatedulidives ranging from 10 to 15 years.
During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2013, we inedliacquisition related costs of $312 thousandghviiere expensed to “Acquisition,
restructuring and other items, net” in the stateneéwperations. We have not finalized the purchasmunting, which may be adjusted as
further information about conditions existing a& #icquisition date becomes available.

Acquisition of Vortex Medical Inc.

On October 15, 2012, we acquired all the outstandapital stock of Vortex Medical, Inc., a privatdleld company focused on the
development and commercialization of medical des/foe venous drainage and the removal of thrombwublood clots, from occluded blood
vessels. Vortex’s principal product is the Angio\#a&ystem, which includes the AngioVac Cannula andu@ti The AngioVac Cannula has a
proprietary balloon-actuated, expandable, funnapsi distal tip that enhances flow, prevents cloggif the cannula and facilitates en bloc,
or whole removal of undesirable intravascular mateBoth the AngioVac Cannula and Circuit are Fbl&ared for use during extracorporeal
bypass for up to 6 hours. An application for CE Kapproval has been filed.

The total estimated purchase consideration of $78I®n included an upfront payment of $15.1 nuhi and the estimated fair value of
contingent (Earn out) consideration of $60.3 milli$40 million of which is guaranteed. The estirdd&r value of contingent consideration
is based on projected AngioVac net sales in theéan period following the closing. The amountloé Earn out consideration that could be
paid on AngioVac net sales is not limited.

The estimated purchase consideration exceededitheafue of the acquired net assets by $29.5anilind was recorded as goodwiill.
Goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes. Carehinologies are being amortized over their estichaseful lives of approximately 15 years
as revenues are earned from the sales of relateldigis. During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2@i8jncurred acquisition related costs of
$645 thousand, which were expensed to “Acquisitiestructuring and other items, net” in the statenoé operations. We have not finalized
the purchase accounting, which may be adjustedrtteef information about conditions existing at #oguisition date becomes available.

Acquisition of Navilyst

On May, 22, 2012, we completed the acquisitionrofgtely-held Navilyst, a global medical device quamy with strengths in the
vascular access, interventional radiology and wstetional cardiology markets. The acquisition agldted transaction costs were financed
through the issuance of approximately 9.5 millibares of our common stock, $150 million in drawguasition debt financing and $97
million of cash. Based on the closing price of stack of $12.44 on the day prior to the transactibe purchase price was approximately
$361 million.

The fiscal years ended May 31, 2013 and 2012 ird®¥.3 and $11.2 million, respectively, in tratigecand severance costs relate
the Navilyst acquisition. These costs are incluidedh\cquisition, restructuring and other items, 'higt the statement of operations. Investrn
funds affiliated with Avista Capital Partners, fa@rmowners of Navilyst, received approximately 9 #liom shares of our common stock and,
as of May 31, 2013, held approximately 27% of autstanding shares. Investment funds affiliated witista Capital Partners entered into a
stockholders agreement with us as part of the actimn and also appointed two additional directorsur existing Board of Directors.

3
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To satisfy any working capital adjustment and pt#&mdemnification claims that may arise, $19.illion of purchase consideration
was held in escrow at May 31, 2013, including agjpnately $14.0 million in cash and approximatelyb4thousand shares of common stock.
The indemnification claims period terminated oryJiB, 2013 and the escrow was released. At Map@12, we had $2.5 million of
receivable related to the working capital adjustimenorded as escrow receivable on the balance. Sheeng the third fiscal quarter of 2013,
we received $2.5 million of cash from the escrowmdftio satisfy this receivable.

Goodwill recorded as a result of the acquisitiors $&45.2 million. Intangible assets acquired, othan goodwill, totaled
approximately $107.1 million, of which $49.4 millidhas been identified as customer relationships/€Hs weighted average useful life),
$32.5 million of trademarks (of which $28.6 millitlas been determined to have an indefinite usiééuhhd the remaining $3.9 million has a
7 year weighted average useful life), $15.1 millann-process research and development (indefirggful life until completed) and $10.1
million of technology (6-year weighted average utéfe).

The IPR&D assets, which were accounted for as inifeflived assets at the time of acquisition, esent the development of a
biomedical polymer additive for use in PICC andesthascular access product lines and a power afjerport which are valued at $12.1
million and $3.0 million, respectively. The biomedli polymer additive product recently received tathry approval and the product was
released in the United States in October 2012 sibding amortized over a 10 year useful life. Thegr injectable port is expected to be
released in the United States in fiscal 2014, suljeregulatory approvals. The fair value of thedangible assets was determined based
the present value of expected future cash flowssaelfl for the probability of technological and coemamal risk, utilizing a risk-adjusted
discount rate.

Discontinuance of Benephit Product Offering

During the third fiscal quarter of 2013, we made decision to discontinue our Benephit productraffe Accordingly, we recorded
$1.6 million of expenses during the year ended Bthy2013. These costs are included in “Acquisitiestructuring and other items, net” in
the statement of operations.

Closure of UK facility

During the first fiscal quarter of 2012, we made ttecision to close our Cambridge, UK facility arahsfer the production of lasers to
our Queensbury, NY facility. We completed the tfanen January 2013. The total cost of this projeas approximately $4.3 million. The
statement of operations for the year ended May@313 included charges of $2.5 million for costaiimed associated with this closure and
included $1.8 million for fiscal 2012. The chargaricluded in “Acquisition, restructuring and otliiams, net” in the statement of operations.

Regulatory Matters

On May 27, 2011, we received a Warning Letter ffeldA in connection with its inspection of our Quelems/, NY manufacturing
facility. In the Warning Letter, FDA cited deficieies in the response letter we provided FDA peirigito the inspection that occurred from
January 4 to January 13, 2011. The deficienciedge@lto our internal procedures for medical dexggmrting, corrections and removals and
complaint handling. We responded to the Warningdretnd completed corrective and preventive actiorssldress the observations noted.

In December 2011, we initiated a comprehensive iQuahll to Action Program to review and augment Quality Management
Systems at our Queensbury facility. To accelerafementation of the program, we engaged a teagmtefnal regulatory and quality expe
and reallocated a significant number of engineeaimg product development resources to supportthrgorate initiative. From inception of
the Quality Call to Action Program through fisc@l13, we have incurred $3.2 million in direct casssociated with the program.

4
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On February 10, 2012, we received from FDA a Fo83, 4.ist of Investigational Observations, in cornti@t with its inspection of our
Queensbury facility from November 14, 2011 to Felbyul0, 2012. The Form 483 contained 12 observatielated to, among other things,
our CAPA (Corrective and Preventive Action) systdR (Medical Device Reporting), complaint investigpn, corrections and removals,
acceptance criteria and training. Some of the efasens contained in the Form 483 were repeat ehiens from the May 27, 2011 Warni
Letter.

On February 13, 2012, we received from FDA a Fo83 ih connection with its inspection of our Freméadility from January 12,
2012 to February 13, 2012. The Form 483 containedbservations related to, among other things,@APA system, design controls, risk
management and training. We provided responseB£owthin 15 business days of our receipt of therfr@d83s.

On September 24, 2012, we received from FDA a F86in connection with its subsequent inspectioawfQueensbury, NY facility
from September 6 to September 14, and Septembter 3@ptember 24. This re-inspection followed osponse to the original Form 483
issued by FDA on February 13, 2012. The Form 488ained 5 observations related to 510(k) decisioosiplaint investigations, acceptance
criteria, corrective and preventive actions anthing. All but one of the observations in the FOt88 related to events that occurred before
the date that we had indicated to FDA in our prasicesponses that our corrective and remediatitivitas related to our Quality Call to
Action would be completed. We provided responsdaié within 15 business days of our receipt of Eoem 483.

On November 28, 2012, FDA completed an inspectfaruo Manchester, GA facility and no Form 483 obsdions were issued.

In June 2013, we received approval from FDA to cana clinical trial to study the use of the Nand&irin the treatment of focal
prostate cancer. We are moving forward with instinal review board (IRB) submissions and anti@paammencing patient enroliment
during our second quarter of fiscal 2014, whichseNdvember 30, 2013.

We will continue to work closely with FDA to res@\any outstanding issues. Unless the items raistftkipreviously disclosed
Warning Letters and Form 483s are corrected to Batisfaction or we come to some other arrangemigém=DA finally resolving such
matters, we may be subject to additional regulatoriggal action, including the issuance of warngtters, injunction, seizure or recall of
products, imposition of fines or penalties or opiagarestrictions on our facilities. Such actiomaild significantly disrupt our ongoing
business and operations and have a material advepset on our financial position and operatingutes

(b) Narrative Description of Business
General

Effective June 1, 2012, we consider our busined®ta single segment entity — the development, faature and sale on a global basis
of medical devices for vascular access, surgemplperal vascular disease and oncology. Our chpefating decision maker (CEQ) evaluates
the various global product portfolios on a net sdlasis. Executives reporting in to the CEO inclimtse responsible for operations and
supply chain management, research and developsaas, franchise marketing and certain corporatetions. The CEO evaluates
profitability, investment and cash flow metrics @eonsolidated worldwide basis due to shared itrfragire and resources. Prior to fiscal \
2013, our business was organized as two segmeassular and Oncology/Surgery, each under the direcf a general manager with direct
responsibility for all sales, marketing and proddevelopment activities.

Our principal competitive advantages are our deéddtenarket focus, established brands and innovptivéucts. We believe our
dedicated focus enhances patient care and engdogalty among our customers. As a provider ofrivéational devices for over two
decades, we believe we have established AngioDysami
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brands as premium performance products. We colibdrequently with leading interventional physiwdn developing our products and 1
on these relationships to further support our bsand

In January 2007, we completed the acquisition @ARMedical Systems, Inc., or RITA, which establidiaur position, we believe, as
the only company focused on minimally-invasive tme@nts for cancer patients with an emphasis ogtbeing segment of interventional
oncology. The acquisition created a diversified im@dechnology company with a broad line of accd&sgnostic and therapeutic products
that enable interventional physicians and surgéomir®at vascular disease and cancerous tumoesvémtional oncology continues to be a
large and growing market. In addition, in May 20@8 acquired the Nanoknife ablation system whiatoimplementary to our diverse
offering of local oncology therapies, including rketrleading RFA systems and Habib Sealer resedgeites. In June 2008, we completed
the acquisition of certain U.S. and U.K. assetBiofmed, Inc. With this acquisition, we substantiatrengthened our position in the market
for the treatment of varicose veins. The combimatibendovenous laser products with our existingows product line provides us with a
comprehensive venous product offering. In May 20i2 completed the acquisition of Navilyst, proviglias with entry into the fluid
management business with a market leading prodwecthd significantly enhancing our presence inviiscular access market. On
October 15, 2012, we acquired all the outstandapital stock of Vortex Medical, Inc., a privatelgiti company focused on the development
and commercialization of medical devices for vendusnage and the removal of thrombus, or blootscloom occluded blood vessels. On
March 22, 2012, we established a strategic relstippnwith, and on February 1, 2013, we completedsitguisition of certain assets of,
Microsulis Medical Ltd., a U.K. based company spézing in minimally-invasive microwave ablatiorctenology.

We sell our broad line of quality devices in theitdd States through a direct sales force and iatemmally through a combination of
direct sales and distributor relationships. We suppur customers and sales organization with &etisng staff that includes product
managers, customer service representatives androitgeting specialists. Our dedicated sales fayamying portfolio of products and
acquisitions have contributed to our strong satesit.

Products
Our product offerings fall within two product grangs: Vascular and Oncology/Surgery.

All products discussed below have been cleareddt® in the United States by the FDA.

Patents, trademarks and other proprietary rigl#gsvary important to our business. We also rely upade secrets, manufacturing know-
how, technological innovations and licensing oppoittes to maintain and improve our competitiveifjos. We regularly monitor and revie
third-party proprietary rights, including patentedgpatent applications, as available, to aid indéreelopment of our intellectual property
strategy, avoid infringement of third-party propeaigy rights, and identify licensing opportunities.

We hold more than 450 patents and have approxiyna8H patent applications pending in the UnitedeStand in certain other
countries that relate to aspects of the technolegyg in many of our products. We do not considetbosiness to be materially dependent
upon any individual patent.

Most of our products are sold under the AngioDyretiade name or trademark. Additionally, mostwfgroducts are also sold under
product trademarks and/or registered product tradesrowned by AngioDynamics, Inc., or an affiliatesubsidiary.

This annual report on Form 10-K also contains tnaaiés of companies other than AngioDynamics.

VASCULAR

The Vascular Division manages our Fluid Manageméahous, AngioVac, Angiographic, PTA, Drainage, dibolytic, Micro Access
Kits, Dialysis, PICC and Port product lines.
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Fluid Managemen

As part of the Navilyst acquisition, our productesing now includes the NAMI@ Fluid Management fpolib. Since 1969, the
NAMIC product line has been the leader in providatigicians high quality, dependable devices treplin the diagnosis and treatment
Cardiovascular and Peripheral Vascular disease NRMIC product line includes an extensive offerioigmanifolds, contrast management
systems, closed fluid systems, guidewires, disgedadnsducers and interventional accessories.eTtiegices are utilized together and allow
clinicians to aspirate or inject contrast, salimenove waste and monitor invasive blood pressimesijhout the procedure.

We manufacture Convenience kits for customers, wimicorporate the NAMIC devices they need for tipeocedures.

* NAMIC Squeeze Contrast Control®— Designed to help labs minimize the amount of amtitwasted, the Squeeze Contrast
Controller contrast management system containotveeway check valves that prevent cross contanoinaii the contrast source,
flexible chamber and unique green ball fluid leinelicator.

» Perceptor® Manifold and Compensator™ ManifoldProvides clinicians a manifold with an integrainsducer and allows for
single operator re-zeroing during the proceduréhénsterile field. The Perceptor Manifold must eémat heart level during
pressure readings, while the Compensator utilizesgpensating line, which allows the user to mdnerhanifold during pressure
readings

» Protection Statiol® and Protection Statiofi PlusProvides clinicians an OSHA-compliant closed eysthat helps minimize
exposure to blood borne pathogens and simplifieagand clean up during a procedt

e Saver-7™ and Acceler-8™ Angiographic Control Syesg NEW 7 mL and 8 mL Angiographic Control syringbkattprovide
clinicians a small barrel designed to require fesse during injection of contrast through a 4FH@aér and to provide smoother
aspiration and injectior

Venous Products

An important part of our focus on the peripheradotdar disease market is the treatment of varigeses. With an estimated one-half of
all Americans older than age 50 suffering from e@se veins, the market for this treatment is langye growing.

Our venous products consist of our VenaCure E¥LBelaystem and Sotradeéol

Our VenaCure EVLT laser system products are useddivvascular laser procedures to treat superfieiabus disease (varicose veins).
Superficial venous disease is a malfunction of anmore valves in the leg veins whereby blood seftuor does not return to the heart. These
procedures are a less invasive alternative to steipping for the treatment of this condition. Veitnipping is a lengthy, painful and traumatic
surgical procedure that involves significant patietovery time. In contrast, venous laser treatrisean outpatient procedure that generally
allows the patient to quickly return to normal aittés with minimal post-operative pain.

With our VenaCure EVLT laser system, laser enesgysed to stop the reflux by ablating, or collagsind destroying, the affected v«
The body subsequently reutes the blood to other healthy veins. Our prtglace sold as a system that includes diode |lasemare with ou
family of disposable laser fiber components, tragnand marketing materials. The disposable compgseneithe system include a laser fiber
system featuring our NeverTough gold-tip technolagyaccess sheath, access wires and needlestodeglpre kits come in a variety of
lengths and configurations to accommodate varididmpaanatomies. In fiscal 2011, we expanded ourad@®ire EVLT portfolio by launching
a new laser with a 1470 nanometer wavelength. Whislength allows customers to more efficientlythiba vein wall using lower power
settings thereby reducing the risk of collaterahdge.
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SotradecoP (sodium tetradecyl sulfate injectiord iclerosing drug that is approved by the FDA.iktt®duced it in November 2005
and it has been shown to be an effective treatwfesthall, uncomplicated varicose veins of the loadremities that show simple dilation
with competent valves. The benefit-to-risk ratioskl be considered in selected patients who ar gregical risks.

AngioVac

One of our relatively newly released products isAnigioVac venous drainage system which includggmaous Drainage Cannula and
Cardiopulmonary Bypass Circuit. The cannula isndt for use as a venous drainage cannula duringcexporeal bypass for up to six
hours. The cardiopulmonary bypass circuit is inezhfbr use in procedures requiring extracorporgaltatory support for periods of up to
hours.

The AngioVac devices are for use with other manufae’s off-the-shelf pump, filter, and reinfusiocannula, to facilitate venous
drainage as part of a extracorporeal bypass proedduup to six hours.

The AngioVac venous drainage cannula is a 22Fediforced cannula designed with a balloon actuategandable funnel shaped
distal tip. The proprietary funnel shaped tip erdevenous drainage flow when the balloon is ieflaprevents clogging of the cannula with
commonly encountered undesirable intravascular magtand facilitates en bloc removal of such exéraus material.

Angiographic Products and Accessories

Angiographic products and accessories are usedglunitually every peripheral vascular interventbprocedure. These products
permit interventional physicians to reach targéteations within the vascular system to delivertcast media for visualization purposes and
therapeutic agents and devices, such as PTA balldomgiographic products consist primarily of arggaphic catheters, but also include e
needles and guidewires specifically designed foipperal interventions and fluid management prosluct

We manufacture angiographic catheters and guidslig are available in more than 500 tip confijares and lengths.

« Soft-Vu® Our proprietary Soft-Vu angiographic catheter tetbgy incorporates a soft, atraumatic tip thatasily visualized
under fluoroscopy

» AngiOptic™ .The AngiOptic catheter line is distinguished frother catheters because the entire instrument Fyhigsible unde
fluoroscopy.

e Accl-Vu® .The Accu-Vu angiographic catheter is a highly isjlaccurate sizing catheter used to determinéetigth and
diameter of a vessel for endovascular proceduresu-A/u provides a soft, highly radiopaque tip watlchoice of platinum
radiopaque marker patterns along the shaft formegthvisibility and accurac

* Mariner™ . The Mariner catheter is a hydrophilic-coated agtaphic catheter. It uses our patented Soft-Viatat technology to
deliver contrast media to anatomy that is diffidolteach. The advanced hydrophilic coating teabgywkignificantly reduces
catheter surface friction, providing smoother natiign through challenging vasculature with optimmahdling and contro

* AQUA Liner®. The AQUA Liner guidewire is a technologically adead guidewire. It is used to provide access taaift-to-
reach locations in interventional procedures reqgia highly lubricious wire. The AQUA Liner guidée incorporates proprieta
advanced coating technology that allows frictioslravigation

Drainage Products

Drainage products percutaneously drain abscessesther fluid pockets. An abscess is a tendernmdid mass that typically must be
drained by a physician.
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Our line of drainage products, The Total Absces8iBamily of Drainage Catheters, consists of our TAtscession General, Biliary,
and Nephrostomy drainage catheters. These prothattge our proprietary soft shaft with Blue Sillffish for a more comfortable patient
fit. The kink-resistant shaft recovers rapidly, evieseverely bent, knotted, or twisted. This istigalarly beneficial when patients roll over
and risk a potential kinking of the catheter durihgep. The thermal molded tip allows for less fingkand kinking upon insertion. Also
important is that the shaft diameter equals thernliameter of the catheter hub to maximize flowr @otal Abscession drainage catheters
feature a tamper-resistant locking mechanism calied/ault® which securely fixes the pigtail andymets tampering or accidental
removal. This locking mechanism helps to preveatdtain from becoming unlocked during routine tkes reducing a physician’s time by
avoiding a possible “redo” case, and increasingepasatisfaction by not having to repeat the pdoce. The Total Abscession catheter
permits aspiration in the locked or unlocked positihus allowing more accurate placement and greatsatility for draining complex
situations.

Thrombolytic Products

Thrombolytic catheters are used to deliver thromtiobhgents, which are drugs that dissolve bloatsdh hemodialysis access grafts,
arteries, veins and surgical bypass grafts. Owntbolytic catheters include:

e Pulse*Spray® Infusion Catheters and Uni*Fuse thrombolytic cattetOur Pulse*Spray and Uni*Fuse catheters improve the
delivery of thrombolytic agents by providing a caried, forceful and uniform dispersion. Patentkis$ ®n the infusion catheter
operate like tiny valves for an even distributidritdombolytic agents. These slits reduce the arhotithrombolytic agents
required and the time necessary for these procedrgsulting in cost savings and improved patieféty.

e SpeedLyse?. Our SpeedLyser thrombolytic catheter is usecetiver thrombolytic agents into obstructed dialygiafts. This
catheter featurePulse*Sprayslit technology that simplifies catheter insertamd drug delivery

Micro Access

Our micro access sets provide interventional pligisgca smaller introducer system for minimally-isive procedures. Our Micro
Access product line provides physicians with thenseto build a custom set from the wide selectiocoafigurations available, including
four wires in two different lengths, seven neegiians and three sheath dilator options.

Image-Guided Vascular Access

Imageguided vascular access, or IGVA, involves the dssdeanced imaging equipment to guide the placemicatheters that delivi
primarily shortterm drug therapies, such as chemotherapeutic agadtantibiotics, into the central venous systealivery to the circulator
system allows drugs to mix with a large volume lofold as compared to intravenous drug delivery enswuperficial vessel. IGVA procedures
include the placement of peripherally inserted i@ matheter, or PICC lines, implantable ports egidtral venous catheters, or CVCs.

PICC Products
Our PICC products include:

* BioFlo®PICC: BioFlo is the only power injectable PICC availalthat incorporates Endexo Technology into the rfaoturing
and design of the catheter. Endexo is a fluorireedadditive that creates a non-eluting (permaneat}-heparin based catheter
material that is designed to reduce thrombus actation and platelet adhesion to all surfaces ofctitheter. BioFlo's long-term
durability and efficacy is intended to provide dians a high degree of safety and confidence awiding better patient care and
improved patient outcomes. Advanced features ssdarge lumer
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diameters allow the BioFI® PICC to deliver the powngection flow rates required for contrast-enhech€Ts compatible with up
to 325 psi CT injections

* BioFlo®PICC with PASV Valve Technolog¥he only power injectable PICC to combine End&echnology with PAS\?
Valve Technology. The PASY Valve Technology is desd to automatically resist backflow and reducedlreflux that could
lead to cathet-related complication:

* BioFlo®PICC Hybrid with PASV Valve TechnologV¥he BioFlo® Hybrid PICC is the first and only tiedumen PICC with two
valved lumens incorporating Endexo Technology amdpooprietary PASV Valve Technology with a dedethhon-valved lumen
for precise CVP monitoring. With this innovativesitgn, we now have a durable, non-eluting cathéigrieduces thrombus
accumulation and provides the benefits of two datisen one

e Xcela PICC with PASV Valve Technolc The Xcela® PICC with PASY Valve Technology is dpe&d to provide a high degree
of safety, ease and confidence in patient careaAded features such as large lumen diameters til®wcela® PICC with PASV
®Valve Technology to deliver the power injectionviloates required for contrast-enhanced CTs conlpatilth up to 325 psi CT
injections. The PASY Valve Technology design auttioadly resists backflow, reducing blood reflux tlitauld lead to catheter-
related complication:

» Xcela Power Injectible PIC(The Xcela Power Injectable PICC, with fundament&l®requirements as its foundation, is also
designed to deliver flow rates required for suctégontrast-enhanced CTs. Advanced features ssitdwrge lumen diameters,
reverse tapered catheter body and radiopacityesigided to augment catheter performance, from athé&acement to care and
maintenance

» Xcela PICC Hybrid with PASV Valve Technol. The Xcela Hybrid PICC has two valved lumens incoatiog our proprietary
PASV Valve Technology and a dedicated -valved lumen for precise CVP monitorir

*  Morpheus®CT PICC and Morpheus CT PICC Insertion Kit.May 2006, we introduced our insertion kit, whilfows our
Morpheus CT PICC to be inserted at a patient’s idedastead of in the hospital radiology suite. Kitavas specifically designed
for interventional radiologists, nurse practitiongrhysician assistants and radiology techniciams perform placement of PICC
lines. These PICC lines provide short or long-t@aripheral access to the central venous systeimtfavenous therapy and blood
sampling. These products are intended for use @tlinjectors, allowing physicians to use the ergt#PICC for both medications
and CT imaging, thus avoiding the need for an &mltil access sitt

e Morpheus® Smart PICCThe Morpheus Triple Lumen Smart PICC, the next evoh of our Morpheus CT PICC line, gives
practitioners the increased flexibility to both ddister medications and perform power injectionsaftrast media for CT
imaging using one PICC line. The Morpheus Smart@®i€atures Smart Taper™ technology to improve bltmd and reduce the
risk of thrombosis while reducing leakage arouraitisertion site

Port Products

Ports are implantable devices utilized for the @ntenous administration of a variety of meditedrapies and for blood sampling and
diagnostic purposes. Central venous access faediamore systemic delivery of treatment agerttidewnitigating certain harsh side effects
of certain treatment protocols and eliminatingrtieed for repeated access to peripheral veins. Démenpon needle gauge size and the port
size, a port can be utilized for up to approximaD00 accesses once implanted in the body. Ots pee used primarily in systemic or
regional short and long-term cancer treatment psothat require frequent infusions of highly centrated or toxic medications (such as
chemotherapy agents, antibiotics or analgesicsfragdent blood samplings.
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Our port products and accessories include:

Vortex® .Our Vortex port technology line of ports is a cléamw port technology that, we believe, revolutiogizport design. Wit
its rounded chamber, the Vortex port is designdubiee no sludge-harboring corners or dead spabés pfoduct line consists of
the following titanium, plastic and dual-lumen affegs within its family of products: (i) Vortex VXji) Vortex TR; (iii) Vortex
LP; and (iv) Vortex MP

SmartPort® The Smart Port powenjectable port with Vortex technology offers thaldy for a clinician to access a vein for b
the delivery of medications or fluids and for adistiering power-injected contrast to perform a Coteguromography (CT) scan.
The ability to access a port for power-injectedtcast studies eliminates the need for additionabiesticks in the patient’s arm
and wrist veins. Once implanted, repeated acce$®tbloodstream can be accomplished with greatss and less discomfort. (
Smart Port is now available in mini and -profiles to accommodate more patient anaton

Vaxcel® Implantable Port&/axcel® Implantable Ports are available in a chaicport design: titanium or polysulfone port body
material; silicone or polyurethane thin wall catratonstruction. An option of Mini and Standard tRmrdy designs provides an
excellent match to varying clinical requiremet

Xcela® Power Injectible Ports. OuXcela® Power Injectable Ports offer choices in port si&sign and material to best suit a w
variety of patient need

. Plasti—Light weight for patient comfort and provides rddience for improved imagin

. Hybrid of Plastic and Titaniu—Combines the light weight and radiolucence of jtasith the durability of titanium
. Standard Titaniu—Offers a small footprint without compromising septsize for ease of acce:

. Low Profile Titaniun—Offers the smallest footprint, providing increagedient comfort and options for placeme

. Dual Lumen Plast—Designed to deliver supportive therapi

Vaxcel® Implantaable Ports with PASY Valve Technology. Mexcel® Port with PAS\? Valve has shown demonstrated
results in clinical and economic outcomes. Porth WASV® Valve Technology have shown significantuettbns in inadequate
blood draws and occlusion in clinical studies. PASV ® Valve is a proximally located valve in the pbody, designed to
automatically close after infusion, disconnectioraspiration, and remain closed during normal pnessAn advantage of the
PASV® Valve Technology is a proximally located, diien-specific valve that is designed to resist backfiowd maintain patenc
between use:!

LifeGuard™ .The LifeGuard Safety Infusion Set and The LifeGudigion are used to infuse our ports and compleranport
and vascular access catheters. The ne' low profile design is intended to allow cliniciattseasily dress the sit

Dialysis Products

We market a complete line of dialysis products tiravide short and lonterm vascular access for dialysis patients. Dialysi cleanin
of the blood, is necessary in conditions such aseaenal failure, chronic renal failure and eralgstrenal disease (ESRD).

We currently offer a wide variety of dialysis catrs, including:

DuraMax®. The DuraMax catheter is a stepped-tip cathetgigded to improve ease of use, dialysis efficiesmogt overall patient
outcomes
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* Schon™. The Schon chronic dialysis catheter is designdaktself-retaining, deliver high flow rates andwpde patient comfort.
The Schon catheter is for lc-term use

» Evenmore®. The Evenmore chronic dialysis catheter is a lowfifgoend-hole catheter designed to provide vefigieht dialysis.
It was designed for long-term use with our propuigtDurathané shaft, which offers high resistance to chemica&slus clean th
insertion site

* Vaxcel® PlusThe tapered Carbothafile Material Catheter Extrusidfaxcel® Plus Dialysis Catheter is an alcoholgtsit
material designed to provide biocompatibility, chiligy, flexibility and ease of care. It is desighto facilitate placement, improve
kink resistance and reduce the need for cathetaipmlation and replacemet

» Dura-Flow 2™ .The Dura-Flow 2 chronic dialysis catheter is des@jto be durable, maximize flow rates and provideshsier
care and site maintenance. The [-Flow chronic dialysis catheter is for lc-term use

» SCHON XL® The SCHON XL acute dialysis catheter is designdakttiink resistant, deliver high flow rates, oféersatile
positioning and provide patient comfort. SCHON XLfar shor-term use

ONCOLOGY/SURGERY

Our Oncology/Surgery Division includes our Radigfrency Ablation (RFA) and NanoKnife product ling@his division also includes
the microwave ablation technology products obtaitedugh the acquisition of Microsulis Medical Ltd.

Radiofrequency Ablation Products

Radiofrequency Ablation (RFA) products use radigfrency energy to provide a minimally invasive ajjgioto ablating solid
cancerous or benign tumors. Our system deliveiisfreguency energy to raise the temperature o @ibve 4%0°C, causing cellular dea

The physician inserts the disposable needle eldetievice into the targeted body tissue, typicafiger ultrasound, computed
tomography or magnetic resonance imaging guida@oee the device is inserted, pushing on the hasfdlee device causes a group of
curved wires to be deployed from the tip of theeklee. When the power is turned on, these wiréisaetgadiofrequency energy throughout
the tumor. In addition, temperature sensors otifiseof the wires measure tissue temperature throwigthe procedure.

During the procedure, our system automatically stdjthe amount of energy delivered in order to taairthe temperature necessary to
ablate the targeted tissue. For a typical 5cm mlplatsing our StarBur$t  Xli-enhanced disposablaeatg\the ablation process takes
approximately ten minutes. When the ablation is giete, pulling back on the handle of the deviceseauhe curved wire array to be retra
into the device so it can be removed from the body.

The RFA system consists of a radiofrequency geoeeatd a family of disposable devices. We also etatthe Habil® 4X resection
device under a distribution agreement with EMcidigmited. In addition to the intra-operative (opsurgery) device Habib 4X,
AngioDynamics markets a minimally-invasive versaftthe Habib 4X device, a Laparoscopic 4X unit, ehis used in minimally invasive
laparoscopic surgery (MILS) procedures in surgspacialties such as: Hepato-Biliary, Gl, Surgicat@ogy, Transplant Surgery and
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Urology (Partial Nephrectomy Resections). It imidally indicated to assist in coagulation of tisgluring intraoperative and laparoscopic
procedures.

Product Name Description
Disposable Electrodes: StarBurst® Creates a scalabl-3cm ablation
StarBurst XL Creates a scalabl-5cm ablation
StarBurst Sen-Flex Creates a scalabl-5cm ablation and has a partially flexible sh
StarBurst SDE Creates a 2cm ablation, via a -deployed arra’
StarBurst MRI Creates a-5 cm ablation and is compatible with MF
StarBurst Xli-enhanced Creates a scalable 4-7cm ablation. Requires assageinfusion pump for
irrigation of saline. Attached tubing stande
StarBurst Xli-enhanced Creates a scalable 4-7cm ablation. A portion ofstiet is flexible and can
Semi-Flex bend up to 90 degrees in all directions. Requireacaessory infusion pump

for irrigation of saline. Attached tubing stande
StarBurst Talon: Straight  Creates a scalable 1-4cm ablation. Requires arssmgeinfusion pump for
irrigation of saline

StarBurst Talon: Creates a scalable 1-4cm ablation. Requires assageinfusion pump for
Semi-Flex irrigation of saline. A portion of the shaft isxXible and can bend up to 90
degrees in all direction
Resection Device Habib®4X Surgical resection devic
Generators: Model 1500X RF Generatt 250 Watt Capable Generator with F-Software Upgradeability

NanoKnife ® Ablation System Products

The NanoKnife® Ablation System is for the surgidalladion of soft tissue. The NanoKnife Ablation Syrstutilizes low energy direct
current electrical pulses to permanently open piorésrget cell membranes. These permanent porearar-scale defects in the cell
membranes result in cell death. The treated tisstien removed by the body’s natural processasnmatter of weeks, mimicking natural cell
death. Unlike other ablation technologies, Nano&wiblation System does not achieve tissue ablatsimg thermal energy.

The Nanoknife Ablation System consists of two majemponents: a Low Energy Direct Current, or LEDénh&rator and needle-like
electrode probes. Up to six (6) electrode probesbeaplaced into or around the targeted soft tisSmee the probes are in place, the user
enters the appropriate parameters for voltage, sumifgpulses, interval between pulses, and theedaltggth into the generator user
interface. The generator then delivers a seriehoft electric pulses between each electrode piidienergy delivery is hyperechoic and
be monitored under real-time ultrasound.

Microwave Ablation Products

The Acculis Microwave Tissue Ablation (MTA) Systeromplements the full range of ablative technologiesoffer. When configured
for use with the Accu2i pMTA Applicators, it incled the Sulis VPMTA Generator, optional MTA TemparatProbes, Acculis Local Cont
Station (LCS) and Accu2i pMTA Applicators. Desigrfed physicians trained in image-guided ablatiooggdures, intraoperative ultrasound
and/or CT guided needle placement, the systeneid fog thermal coagulation of soft tissue. By atilg 2.45 Ghz of microwave energy, the
Acculis MTA System can complete ablations up tarbig six minutes with a single applicator. Applioet are available in 14 cm, 19 cm and
29 cm lengths, offering flexibility in selectingatappropriate length for the procedure. Additionadin antenna transmits energy directly tc
targeted tissue, eliminating the need for electngisal grounding pads, while the single, simplglace insertion applicator eliminates the
need to deploy an active array.
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Research & Development

Our growth depends in large part on the continuotisduction of new and innovative products, togetwith ongoing enhancements to
our existing products, through internal productelegment, technology licensing and strategic atksn We recognize the importance of, and
intend to continue to make investments in, reseanchdevelopment. For fiscal 2013, 2012 and 20adresearch and development (“R&D")
expenditures were $26.3 million, $20.5 million &#1.4 million, respectively, and constituted 7.792% and 9.9%, respectively, of net
sales. R&D expenses include costs to develop nedugts, enhance existing products, validate neweaha@nced products, manage clinical,
regulatory and medical affairs and our intellectuaiperty.

Our research and product development teams woskelglavith our sales force to incorporate custoreedback into our development
and design process. We believe that we have aatpuiamong interventional physicians as a strartner for product development because
of our tradition of close physician collaboratigiedicated market focus, responsiveness and exaaamabilities for product development
and commercialization.

Our primary R&D facility is located in MarlborugMA in approximately 31,000 square feet of leaseatsp

Competition

We encounter significant competition across oudpob lines and in each market in which our prodactssold. These markets are
characterized by rapid change resulting from teldgical advances and scientific discoveries. We faampetitors ranging from large
manufacturers with multiple business lines to smalhufacturers that offer a limited selection afdarcts.

In addition, we compete with providers of other moatitherapies, such as pharmaceutical compatiasntay offer non-surgical
therapies for conditions that currently, or in fhiure, may be treated using our products. Our @nynalevice competitors include: Boston
Scientific Corporation; Cook Medical; Cordis Coration, a subsidiary of Johnson & Johnson, Inc.;.®&d; Medical Components, Inc., or
Medcomp; Arrow International, a subsidiary of TdFMedical; Smith’'s Medical, a subsidiary of SnsitBroup plc; Vascular Solutions;
Covidien subsidiaries (Kendall, VNUS, EV3) and Mdviedical.

Many of our competitors have substantially grefiteancial, technological, research and developnreglatory, marketing, sales and
personnel resources than we do. Competitors mayhalge greater experience in developing produbtsiming regulatory approvals, and
manufacturing and marketing such products. Addailyn competitors may obtain patent protectionegulatory approval or clearance, or
achieve product commercialization before us, anwlith could materially adversely affect us.

We believe that our products compete primarilytenltiasis of their quality, clinical outcomes, eafese, reliability, physician
familiarity and cost-effectiveness. Generally, puwducts are sold at higher prices than those n€ompetitors. In the current environment of
managed care, which is characterized by econominaidtivated buyers, consolidation among health papgiders, increased competition
declining reimbursement rates, we have been incrgigsequired to compete on the basis of price.Wlkeve that our continued competitive
success will depend upon our ability to developaguire scientifically advanced technology, apply chnology cost-effectively across
product lines and markets, develop or acquire petany products, attract and retain skilled develept personnel, obtain patent or other
protection for our products, obtain required retprigand reimbursement approvals, manufacture aodessfully market our products either
directly or through outside parties and maintaiffiGent inventory to meet customer demand.

Sales and Marketing

We focus our sales and marketing efforts on inteiwaal radiologists, interventional cardiologistascular surgeons, urologists and
interventional and surgical oncologists. Thereraoge than 5,000 interventional radiologists, 5,0@8rventional cardiologists, 2,000 vasci
surgeons, 9,000 urologists and 2,000 interventiandlsurgical oncologists in the United States.
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Backlog
Historically, we ship 95% of products within 48 mswf receipt of the orders, and accordingly owkiizg is not significant.

Manufacturing

We manufacture certain proprietary components aodyzts and assemble, inspect, test and packadmisined products. By
designing and manufacturing many of our produasfraw materials, and assembling and testing deaissemblies and products, we beli
that we are able to maintain better quality congakure compliance with applicable regulatory gaads and our internal specifications, and
limit outside access to our proprietary technoldyye have custom-designed proprietary manufactantyprocessing equipment and have
developed proprietary enhancements for existingymrtion machinery.

Raw materials and sub-assemblies used in the mangaof our products are purchased from a largebau of suppliers in diverse
geographic locations. Changes in economic conditaord related risks in materials, particularly risetand plastic resins, can have a
significant impact on access, availability and tetsst of producing certain products. Fluctuationsargins may be experienced if these ¢
cannot be effectively mitigated through or capturethe price of the products.

Many of our products are manufactured at singlatioas, and the availability of alternate facilitis limited based on factors including
but not limited to: quality, supply-chain risk, tbeéimes and overall cost-effectiveness. If an ewecurs that results in damage to one or more
of our facilities, we may not be able to timely méacture the relevant products at previous levebt all. Similarly, if we experience delays
or cancellations in shipments of raw materials by suppliers, we may not be able to timely manufacthe affected products at previous
levels or at all. Furthermore, in the event of sruption in our supply of certain components orariats, the increasing requirements of the
FDA and other regulatory authorities regardingrtienufacture of our products, could delay or otheeviimpair our ability to establish
additional or replacement sources for these compiere materials on a timely basis. A reductioinéerruption in manufacturing, or our
inability to secure suitable alternative sourcesa@f materials or components, could have a matada¢rse effect on our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

We own or lease 4 primary manufacturing propepiesiding capabilities which include manufacturisgyvice, engineering and
research, distribution warehouses and offices. & feaslities are registered with the FDA and hagerbcertified to ISO 13485 standards, as
well as the CMD/CAS Canadian Medical Device Regoiet. 1ISO 13485 is a quality system standard thééfies European Union regulatory
requirements, thus allowing us to market and sellpsoducts in European Union countries. If we werkose this certification, we would no
longer be able to sell our products in these coemtintil we made the necessary corrections t@parations or satisfactorily completed an
alternate European Union approval route that didelg on compliance with quality system standafst manufacturing facilities are subj
to periodic inspections by regulatory authoritie®hsure compliance with domestic and non-U.S.latgry requirements. See “Government
Regulation” section of this report for additionafarmation. We believe that the properties are ta@ied in good operating condition and are
suitable for their intended use. These sites afellasvs:

Manufacturing Approx. Property
Location Sq. Ft. Type

Glens Falls, NY 189,00( Ownec
Queensbury, NY 129,00( Ownec
Manchester, G/ 60,00( Lease!
Denmead, U.K 7,50( Leasel
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Intellectual Property

As of May 31, 2013, we owned or had exclusive lgsnto 180 U.S. utility patents, 110 pending Utlityuapplications, and 137
foreign issued and pending utility patents. We also 50 U.S. registered trademarks and 38 commmtridemarks. There are currently 42
registered international trademarks and 7 penditegriational trademarks.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, patent positionsnefdical device companies, including our compang uaicertain and involve compl
and evolving legal and factual questions. The cayersought in a patent application can be denisgyaificantly reduced either before or
after the patent is issued. Consequently, therdearo assurance that any of our pending pateticappns will result in an issued patent.
There is also no assurance that any existing ardysatent will provide significant protection @memercial advantage, or whether any
existing or future patent will be circumvented bgnare basic patent, thus requiring us to obtainembe to produce and sell the product.
Generally, patent applications can be maintainestarecy for at least 18 months after their edrpésrity date. In addition, publication of
discoveries in the scientific or patent literatofeen lags behind actual discoveries. Thereforecarot be certain that we were the first to
invent the subject matter covered by each of ondpgy U.S. patent applications or that we werefitisé to file non-U.S. patent applications
for such subject matter.

If a third party files a patent application relatito an invention claimed in our patent applicatiae may be required to participate in an
interference proceeding declared by the U.S. PatehfTrademark Office to determine who owns themtaiSuch proceeding could involve
substantial uncertainties and cost, even if theenx outcome is favorable to us. There can bessarance that our patents, if issued, would
be upheld as valid in court.

Third parties may claim that our products infriragetheir patents and other intellectual propeights. Some companies in the medical
device industry have used intellectual propertyimgement litigation to gain a competitive advamtalj a competitor were to challenge our
patents, licenses or other intellectual propegits, or assert that our products infringe its pade other intellectual property rights, we could
incur substantial litigation costs, be forced takmaxpensive changes to our product designs, kceghkts in order to continue manufacturing
and selling our products, or pay substantial damageird-party infringement claims, regardlesshait outcome, would not only consume
our financial resources but also divert our managsis time and effort. Such claims could also causecustomers or potential customers to
defer or limit their purchase or use of the affdgteoducts until resolution of the claim.

See Item 3 of this report for additional detailslitigation regarding proprietary technology.

We rely on trade secret protection for certain tepieed aspects of our proprietary technology. Tharebe no assurance that others
not independently develop or otherwise acquire tsuibisilly equivalent proprietary information or kedques, that others will not gain access
to our proprietary technology or disclose such nedbgy, or that we can meaningfully protect oudéaecrets. We have a policy of requiring
key employees and consultants to execute confaléptagreements upon the commencement of an emm@oyor consulting relationship
with us. Our confidentiality agreements also regjaiur employees to assign to us all rights to amgrntions made or conceived during their
employment with us. We also generally require amsultants to assign to us any inventions madenduhie course of their engagement by
us. There can be no assurance, however, thatalgesements will provide meaningful protection oequhte remedies for us in the event of
unauthorized use, transfer or disclosure of confidéinformation or inventions.

The laws of foreign countries generally do not pebour proprietary rights to the same extent athddaws of the United States. In
addition, we may experience more difficulty enfagciour proprietary rights in certain foreign juiitdttbns.
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Litigation

We operate in an industry characterized by extensatent litigation. Patent litigation can resulsignificant damage awards and
injunctions that could prevent the manufacture sadd of affected products or result in significeoytalty payments in order to continue
selling the products. While it is not possible tedict the outcome of patent litigation inciderdour business, we believe the costs assoc
with this type of litigation could have a materd@verse impact on our consolidated results of dipss financial position, or cash flows. The
medical device industry is also susceptible toificant product liability claims. These claims miag brought by individuals seeking relief on
their own behalf or purporting to represent a classaddition, product liability claims may be aded against us in the future based on events
we are not aware of at the present time. At angrgivme, we are involved in a number of produdiility actions. For additional information,
see both Item 3 of this report and Note N to thesotidated financial statements in this Annual Repo Form 10-K.

Government Regulation

The products we manufacture and market are sulgjgegulation by the FDA under the Federal Foodigpand Cosmetic Act, or
FDCA, and, in some instances, state authoritie@mign governments.

United States FDA Regulation

Before a new medical device can be introducedtimtanarket, a manufacturer generally must obtairketang clearance or approval
from the FDA through either a 510(k) submissiopi@market notification) or a premarket approvallaggion, or PMA.

The 510(k) procedure is available only in particdiacumstances. The 510(k) clearance proceduaesg#able only if a manufacturer
can establish that its device is “substantiallyiegjent” in intended use and in safety and effesmiess to a “predicate device,” which is a
legally marketed device with 510(k) clearance assll or Il or grandfather status based upon cowriaiatistribution on or before May 28,
1976. After a device receives 510(k) clearance,raaglification that could significantly affect itafety or effectiveness, or that would
constitute a major change in its intended use,iregia new 510(k) clearance or could require a Rigproval. The 510(k) clearance
procedure generally takes from four to 12 montbhmfthe time of submission, but may take longesdme cases, supporting clinical data
may be required. The FDA may determine that a nemalified device is not substantially equivalentitpredicate device or may require
that additional information, including clinical @atbe submitted before a determination is madeeedf which could significantly delay the
introduction of new or modified device productsalproduct does not satisfy the criteria of sulisthaquivalence, it is placed in class Ill and
premarket approval is required prior to the intretthn of that product into the market.

The PMA application procedure is more comprehentiaa the 510(k) procedure and typically takes syeears to complete. The
PMA application must be supported by scientificdevice providing pre-clinical and clinical data tielg to the safety and efficacy of the
device and must include other information aboutdéeice and its components, design, manufactumegi@eling. The FDA will approve a
PMA application only if a reasonable assurancettatlevice is safe and effective for its intendsd can be provided. As part of the PMA
application review, the FDA will inspect the mantfarer’s facilities for compliance with its Quali§ystem Regulation, or QSR. As part of
the PMA approval the FDA may place restrictiongtomdevice, such as requiring additional patietivfo-up for an indefinite period of time.
If the FDA's evaluation of the PMA application dret manufacturing facility is not favorable, the FD¥ay deny approval of the PMA
application or issue a “not approvable” letter. Hi2A may also require additional clinical trialshiwh can delay the PMA approval process
by several years. After the PMA is approved, ih#figant changes are made to a device, its manufiagt or labeling, a PMA supplement
containing additional information must be filed fmior FDA approval.
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Historically, our products have been introduced iitte market using the 510(k) procedure and we haver had to use the PMA
procedure.

The FDA clearance and approval processes for acaledievice are expensive, uncertain and lengthgrdhan be no assurance that we
will be able to obtain necessary regulatory cleeearor approvals for any product on a timely bast all. Delays in receipt of or failure to
receive such clearances or approvals, the loseegfqusly received clearances or approvals, ofdtere to comply with existing or future
regulatory requirements could have a material e#veffect on our business, financial condition essailts of operations.

After a product is placed on the market, the pro@nd its manufacturer are subject to pervasivecamtinuing regulation by the FDA.
The FDA enforces these requirements by inspectiohnaarket surveillance. Our suppliers also mayutgest to FDA inspection. We must
therefore continue to spend time, money and effomaintain compliance. Among other things, we nuashply with the Medical Device
Reporting regulation, which requires that manufestureport to the FDA if their device may havessalior contributed to a death or serious
injury or malfunctioned in a way that would liketpuse or contribute to a death or serious injuityifere to recur. We must also comply w
the FDA's corrections and removal reporting regatatwhich requires that manufacturers report ®REDA field corrections and product
recalls or removals if undertaken to reduce atadhealth posed by a device or to remedy a vialatiothe FDCA that may present a risk to
health. The labeling and promotion activities fevides are subject to scrutiny by the FDA and giriain instances, by the Federal Trade
Commission. The FDA actively enforces regulatiorshjbiting the marketing of devices for unapprovesv uses.

The devices manufactured by us also are subjebet@QSR, which imposes elaborate testing, cordadumentation and other quality
assurance procedures. Every phase of productidndimg raw materials, components and subassembiigsufacturing, testing, quality
control, labeling, tracing of consignees afterrifisttion and follow-up and reporting of complainfoarmation is governed by the FDA’s QSR.
Device manufacturers are required to register flagitities and list their products with the FDAchoertain state agencies. The FDA
periodically inspects manufacturing facilities aifdhere are alleged violations, the operator &ality must correct them or satisfactorily
demonstrate the absence of the violations or fagelatory action.

We are subject to inspection and marketing sueveii by the FDA to determine our compliance withiegjulatory requirements.
Recently, the FDA has placed an increased empbassforcement of the QSR and other postmarketatgy requirements. Non-
compliance with applicable FDA requirements camltda, among other things, fines, injunctions,ikcpenalties, recall or seizure of produt
total or partial suspension of production, failofeghe FDA to grant marketing approvals, withdrawbimarketing approvals, a
recommendation by the FDA to disallow us to emév government contracts, and criminal prosecutidhe FDA also has the authority to
request repair, replacement or refund of the cbahyp device manufactured or distributed by us.

Other

We and our products are also subject to a variesyabe and local laws in those jurisdictions whaue products are or will be marketed,
and federal, state and local laws relating to magach as safe working conditions, manufacturiragfices, environmental protection, fire
hazard control and disposal of hazardous or patntiazardous substances. We are also subjeatrimus federal and state laws governing
our relationships with the physicians and others whirchase or make referrals for our products.ifigiance, federal law prohibits payments
of any form that are intended to induce a refdoabny item payable under Medicare, Medicaid or ather federal healthcare program.
Many states have similar laws. There can be naasse that we will not be required to incur sigeafit costs to comply with such laws and
regulations now or in the future or that such lawsegulations will not have a material adverseeafiipon our ability to do business.
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International Regulatiol

Internationally, all of our current products arensimered medical devices under applicable regylatgimes, and we anticipate that 1
will be true for all of our future products. Sal#fsmedical devices are subject to regulatory resgquents in many countries. The regulatory
review process may vary greatly from country tordoy For example, the European Union has adoptietenous directives and standards
relating to medical devices regulating their desiganufacture, clinical trials, labeling and adeeesent reporting. Devices that comply with
those requirements are entitled to bear a ConférEitropéenne, or CE Mark, indicating that the deeimnforms to the essential requiremu
of the applicable directives and can be commeycdifitributed in countries that are members offheopean Union.

In some cases, we rely on our International distals to obtain regulatory approvals, complete pobdegistrations, comply with
clinical trial requirements and complete those Stiat are customarily taken in the applicablesflidgtions.

International sales of medical devices manufactirede United States that are not approved oretehy the FDA for use in the Unit
States, or are banned or deviate from lawful peréorce standards, are subject to FDA export reqeintsn Before exporting such products to
a foreign country, we must first comply with the &B regulatory procedures for exporting unapprodegices.

The process of obtaining approval to distribute icedroducts is costly and time-consuming in \aity all of the major markets where
we sell medical devices. We cannot assure thahanymedical devices we develop will be approved fimely or cost-effective manner or
approved at all. There can be no assurance thatavesvor regulations regarding the release oraiateedical devices will not delay or
prevent sale of our current or future products.

Third-Party Reimbursement
United States
Our products are used in medical procedures géyelered by government or private health plans.

In general, a third-party payor only covers a maldizoduct or procedure when the plan administriatsatisfied that the product or
procedure improves health outcomes, including guaefilife or functional ability, in a safe and ¢esffective manner. Even if a device has
received clearance or approval for marketing byRD@,, there is no assurance that third-party payaitscover the cost of the device and
related procedures.

In many instances, third-party payors use pricedates that do not vary to reflect the cost ofgreducts and equipment used in
performing those procedures. In other instancegnpat or reimbursement is separately availabléhferproducts and equipment used, in
addition to payment or reimbursement for the procedkself. Even if coverage is available, thirdtpgayors may place restrictions on the
circumstances where they provide coverage or migy tfimbursement that is not sufficient to cover tost of our products.

Third-party payors who cover the cost of medical prodacesquipment, in addition to allowing a generadrgfe for the procedure, oft
maintain lists of exclusive suppliers or approvistslof products deemed to be cost-effective. Atirlation from those third-party payors is
required prior to using products that are not @séhlists as a condition of reimbursement. If aodpcts are not on the approved lists,
healthcare providers must determine if the additi@ost and effort required in obtaining prior arthation, and the uncertainty of actually
obtaining coverage, is justified by any perceividical benefits from using our products.

Finally, the advent of contracted fixed rates pecpdure has made it difficult to receive reimbuoreat for disposable products, even if
the use of these products improves clinical outenreaddition, many third-party payors are moviagnanaged care systems in which
providers contract to provide comprehensive heafthéor a fixed cost per person. Managed care geosioften attempt to control the cost of
healthcare by authorizing

19



Table of Contents

fewer elective surgical procedures. Under curreosjpective payment systems, such as the diagredated group system and the hospital
out-patient prospective payment system, both otwhre used by Medicare and in many managed carensy used by private third-party
payors, the cost of our products will be incorpedainto the overall cost of a procedure and natdpmrately reimbursed. As a result, we
cannot be certain that hospital administratorsgimgicians will purchase our products, despitectimécal benefits and opportunity for cost
savings that we believe can be derived from thei: If hospitals and physicians cannot obtain aaegieimbursement for our products or the
procedures in which they are used, our businasanial condition, results of operations, and dbskis could suffer a material adverse
impact.

International

Our success in International markets will depemgdly upon the availability of reimbursement frone third-party payors through
which healthcare providers are paid in those marktimbursement and healthcare payment systemsigaificantly by country. The main
types of healthcare payment systems are governspensored healthcare and private insurance. Regatmant approval must be obtained
individually in each country in which our produet® marketed. Outside the United States, we gdyneedy on our distributors to obtain
reimbursement approval in the countries in whidytill sell our products. There can be no asswgdhat reimbursement approvals will be
received.

Insurance

Our product liability insurance coverage is limiteda maximum of $10,000,000 per product liabifitgim and an aggregate policy lir
of $10,000,000, subject to deductibles of $2508@00ccurrence and $1,250,000 in the aggregatepdli®y covers, subject to policy
conditions and exclusions, claims of bodily injanyd property damage from any product sold or manufed by us.

There is no assurance that this level of coverageléquate. We may not be able to sustain or nvaihia level of coverage and cannot
assure you that adequate insurance coverage valaigable on commercially reasonable terms ofl afasuccessful product liability claim
or other claim with respect to uninsured or undgriad liabilities could have a material adversectfbn our business.

Environmental

We are subject to federal, state and local lawssruegulations and policies governing the useeg®ion, manufacture, storage, air
emission, effluent discharge, handling and dispobaértain hazardous and potentially hazardoustambes used in connection with our
operations. Although we believe that we have coeapliith these laws and regulations in all mategapects and, to date, have not been
required to take any action to correct any nonc@mpek, there can be no assurance that we will @oétpuired to incur significant costs to
comply with environmental regulations in the future

Employees

As of May 31, 2013, we had approximately 1,330 finle employees. None of our employees are repredday a labor union and we
have never experienced a work stoppage.
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Executive Officers of the Compar
The following table sets forth certain informatiaith respect to our executive officers.

Name Age Position

Joseph M. DeVivo 46 President and Chief Executive Offic

Mark T. Frost 50 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasure

George Bourne 53 Senior Vice President, Chief Technology & Operation
Officer

Louis Mazzares 67 Senior Vice President, Chief Regulatory Offi

Stephen J. McGil 52 Senior Vice President, General Man«—International

Alan F. Panzer 52 Senior Vice President, General Manager—
US Sales

Richard A. Stark 48 Senior Vice President, Global Franchise,
Oncology/Surgen

John Soto 48 Senior Vice President, Global Franchise, Peripheral
Vascular

Matthew Kapusti 41 Senior Vice President, Business Developn

Mark Stephen 45 Senior Vice President, Administratis

Charles R. Greine 46 Vice President, Global Franchise, Vascular Act

Joseph M. DeVivbecame our President and Chief Executive Offic&@aptember 2011. Prior to joining AngioDynamics, MeVivo
served as Global President of Smith & Nephew Ortldags. Previously, Mr. DeVivo was CEO and PresiagrRITA Medical Systems,
serving in that capacity at the time AngioDynanacguired RITA. Prior to RITA Medical Systems, MreYivo served as President, Chief
Operating Officer and Director of Computer Motiarcbrporation (CMI). Mr. DeVivo also previously sedras Vice President and General
Manager of a $350 million division of TYCO Interiwtal’'s Healthcare Business, U.S. Surgical/David @eck Sutures, where he was
responsible for sales, marketing, research andal@went, and finance in its vascular business. muhis nine-year tenure at U.S. Surgical,
he held various management positions related &s sald marketing. Mr. DeVivo earned his Bacheldd@énce degree in Business
Administration from the E. Clairborne Robins SchobBusiness at the University of Richmond.

Mark T. Frostbecame our Executive Vice President and Chief Fiahi®Dfficer in November 2012. Prior to AngioDynarsj Mr. Frost
most recently served as Chief Financial Officer 8edior Vice President of Administration of Albaklplecular Research Inc. He also ser
five years as vice president of finance at SmitN&hew Endoscopy, a global medical device divisib8mith & Nephew, before joining
AMRI. Mr. Frost also spent 14 years with Generadalic where he last served as Chief Financiald®ffof Groupe Sovac Auto Financial
Services based in Paris, France. He earned a Baaifédrts in International Relations/Economicsadmating Cum Laude with Honors in
Economics, from Colgate University in Hamilton, N.Y

George Bourndecame our Senior Vice President and Chief Teclgyaifficer in May 2012 upon joining AngioDyanmi@nd becam
our Chief Operations Officer in December 2012. Mesently, Mr. Bourne served as VP of R&D at Hotodtreviously, Mr. Bourne served
as Senior Vice President of R&D and Clinical Afafor Navilyst from its formation in early 2008 uritiovember 2011. Prior to his tenure at
Navilyst, Mr. Bourne spent 10 years at Boston Sdieras Vice President, R&D, of the Urology, Meslth and Oncology business units i
then as Group Vice President, R&D, for the endosyrpusiness group. Mr. Bourne, who earned his 8actof Science in Biological
Science and Master of Science in Plastics Engingdrom the University of Lowell, in addition tohMBA from Rivier College in Nashua,
N.H., also served in leadership positions at Babdealthcare, Allegiance Healthcare and C.R. B
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Louis J. Mazzareseined AngioDynamics in October 2012 as our SeNioe President and Chief Regulatory Officer. Mr. Marese’s
previous experience includes serving as Chief Regyt Officer and Vice President, Corporate Reguiafffairs for Edwards Lifesciences;
Vice President of Regulatory and Clinical AffaitsTaco Healthcare; and Vice President of Qualitgd &egulatory/Clinical Affairs at U.S.
Surgical Corporation. Earlier in his career, hengdimanagement experience at Pfizer-Shiley, Sqbdrporation, Ciba-Giegy, American
McGaw and International Pharmaceutical Productsli#ahally, Mr. Mazzarese, who has a B.S. and Nh®hemistry from Wagner College
in Staten Island, N.Y., is past President and @fteir of the Regulatory Affairs Professional Socaetyg a co-founder of the Association of
Disposable Device Manufacturers.

Stephen J. McGilhas served as Senior Vice President and Generaddéamnf International since November 2009. Mr. Mckas over
27 years of global medical device experience inolgéhcreasing roles in sales, marketing, operatieadership business development and
general management. Mr. McGill was previously wAtherican Medical Systems, where he spent 8 yeast reoently as Senior Vice
President of Global Sales. Prior to American Meld&ysstems, Mr. McGill has held positions with Bastscientific, Bolton Medical, Stryker
and Allergan.

Alan Panzejoined AngioDynamics in September 2011 as Senioe\Aresident and General Manager of the Vasculasibn and was
promoted to his position of Senior Vice Presidant] General Manager — US Sales. Mr. Panzer resfgomdAngioDynamics effective
July 31, 2013. Mr. Panzer previously served asitfeats & CEO of DeVilbiss Healthcare. Prior to Debils, Mr. Panzer was President of
United States Surgical & Valleylab, now a busingsi of Covidien. He also has served as a memb#reofMultiple Myeloma Research
Foundation Board. Mr. Panzer earned his Bachel&c@#nce in Pharmacy from St. John’s Universitiaw York.

Richard A. Starks currently serving as Senior Vice President, @ldbranchise, Oncology/Surgery. Mr. Stark begarchiger with the
Company as a District Sales Manager with RITA Matlioc 1999, which was acquired by AngioDynamic2@97, and most recently served
as AngioDynamics’ Vice President and General Manaf&ales and Marketing of the Oncology/Surgeryi€on. Prior to joining RITA, he
spent several years in field sales roles at WoedBidmedical and Arrow/Teleflex. He has a Bachealan Psychology from California State
University of Chico in Chico, California.

John Sotavas appointed Senior Vice President, Global Frams;eripheral Vascular in September 2012. Mosintgche was Senior
Vice President of Smith & Nephew’s Global Hip Frhise. Mr. Soto is the former Senior Vice Presiddilobal Sales for AngioDynamics
— arole that he took on after the Company’s actjoisof RITA Medical Systems in 2007, where he Badved as Executive Vice President
of Global Sales and Vice President of Internatiddpérations. Prior to joining RITA, he gained leathdp experience at Computer Motion,
Tyco Healthcare and U.S. Surgical. Mr. Soto gragiditom the British Royal Navy with a degree incélenic engineering and has a diploma
in medical marketing from the University of Califita at Los Angeles, Calif.

Matthew Kapustgoined AngioDynamics in November 2011 as Seniore\ieesident of Business Development. Most recently,
Mr. Kapusta served as Vice President of Stratelginriing and Financial Analysis for Smith & Nephewitt@paedics. Mr. Kapusta also
spearheaded strategic and financial planning fatlf5SénNephew’s global Hips, Knees and Trauma fraseb. Prior to Smith & Nephew,
Mr. Kapusta was a Managing Director of Healthcameebtment Banking at Collins Stewart in New YorkyCHe also previously served as
Vice President of Healthcare Mergers and Acquisgiat Wells Fargo Securities, and had similar ratdRobertson Stephens and
PaineWebber. Mr. Kapusta earned a BBA in FinanoepAnting, from the University of Michigan and leasMBA in Finance, Business
Management, from New York University.

Mark Stephenpined AngioDynamics in January 2013 as Senior Hoesident, Administration. Prior to joining Angigamics,
Mr. Stephens most recently led the global humaowes organization for Smith and Nephew Orthopedefore joining Smith and
Nephew, Mr. Stephens held the position of -President,
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Human Resources, at Ingersoll Rand Corporationsanged as Director of talent management with thieeRdBosch Corporation. He holds a

MBA in Human Resources from Murray State Universityl a BS, Business administration with a concéatran Economics and finance
from the University of Tennessee.

Charles R. Greineis currently serving as Vice President, Global Erase, Vascular Access. Mr. Greiner joined the Canypas a
member of the sales team in 1999 where he hagoeltions of increasing responsibility within thedess and marketing team and most
recently served as Vice President Vascular Salés. ¥ AngioDynamics, Mr. Greiner gained managehexperience at Pharmacia &
Upjohn Inc. He has a Bachelor of Science degrégi@gnobiology from the University of Georgia in Athse, Georgia.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors

Our financial and operating results are subjeet mmmber of factors, many of which are not withim control. These factors include the
following:

Although we expect that the acquisition of Navilystill result in benefits to us, we may not realiz¢hose benefits because of integration
difficulties.

Integrating the operations of Navilyst successfallyptherwise realizing any of the anticipated ligmef the acquisition of Navilyst,
including anticipated cost savings and additioesenue opportunities, involves a number of chaklsnghe failure to meet these integration
challenges could seriously harm our results of ajeans and the market price of our common stock dejine as a result.

Realizing the benefits of the acquisition will dagen part on the integration of information teclogyy, operations, personnel and sales
force. These integration activities are complex time - consuming and we may encounter unexpected diffesutir incur unexpected costs,
including:

e our inability to achieve the cost savings and ojiegesynergies anticipated in the acquisition, hioould prevent us from
achieving the positive earnings gains expectedrasudt of the acquisitior

« diversion of management attention from ongoing thess concerns to integration matt
« difficulties in consolidating and rationalizing orimation technology platforms and administrativieastructures

» complexities associated with managing the combmesinesses and consolidating multiple physicaltiona where management
may determine consolidation is desiral

« difficulties in integrating personnel from differtecorporate cultures

» challenges in demonstrating to our customers ardstomers of Navilyst that the acquisition wilitmesult in adverse changes in
customer service standards or business focus

* possible cash flow interruption or loss of reveasea result of change of ownership transitionatensy

We may not successfully integrate the operatiorth@businesses of Navilyst in a timely manner, @adnay not realize the anticipat
net reductions in costs and expenses and othefitsemad synergies of the acquisition of Navilystie extent, or in the timeframe,
anticipated. In addition to the integration riskscdssed above, our ability to realize these réhigtons in costs and expenses and other
benefits and synergies could be adversely impdngatactical or legal constraints on our abilityctambine operations.

If we are unable to manage our growth profitably, arr business, financial results and stock price codlsuffer.

Our future financial results will depend in partaur ability to profitably manage our growth. Maeagent will need to maintain
existing customers and attract new customers, itecetain and effectively manage employees, a$ agéxpand operations and integrate
customer support and financial control systemmtéfgration- related expenses and capital expenditure requirenaea greater than
anticipated or if we are unable to manage our gngwofitably after the acquisition, our financiakults and the market price of our common
stock may decline.
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We have incurred significant indebtedness which impses operating and financial restrictions on us whh, together with our debt
service obligations, could significantly limit ourability to execute our business strategy and increg the risk of default under our debt
obligations.

We borrowed an aggregate of approximately $150aninot including up to $50 million that is avdila under our revolving credit
facility) in connection with the acquisition of Nigwst. The terms of our credit facilities require 1o comply with certain financial
maintenance covenants. In addition, the terms ohew indebtedness also include certain covenaststing or limiting our ability to take
certain actions.

These covenants may adversely affect our abilifynence future operations or limit our abilityporsue certain business opportunities
or take certain corporate actions. The covenantsatsa restrict our flexibility in planning for chges in our business and the industry and
make us more vulnerable to economic downturns dadrae developments.

Our ability to meet our cash requirements, inclgdir debt service obligations, will be dependgrdruour operating performance,
which will be subject to general economic and catitige conditions and to financial, business anueotfactors affecting our operations,
many of which are or may be beyond our control.d&ienot provide assurance that our business opesatitl generate sufficient cash flows
from operations to fund these cash requirementglahtservice obligations. If our operating resutsh flow or capital resources prove
inadequate, we could face substantial liquidityobeons and might be required to dispose of matassaéts or operations to meet our debt and
other obligations. If we are unable to service adeint, we could be forced to reduce or delay plamxg@ansions and capital expenditures, sell
assets, restructure or refinance our debt or seédiki@nal equity capital, and we may be unableatatany of these actions on satisfactory
terms or in a timely manner. Further, any of thaségons may not be sufficient to allow us to seevdtir debt obligations or may have an
adverse impact on our business. Our debt agreerimittour ability to take certain of these actio@ur failure to generate sufficient
operating cash flow to pay our debts or to succdigsindertake any of these actions could have teried adverse effect on us.

In addition, the degree to which we are leveraged eesult of the indebtedness incurred in conoeetith the acquisition or otherwise
could materially and adversely affect our abiliydbtain additional financing for working capitegpital expenditures, acquisitions, debt
service requirements or other purposes, could makeore vulnerable to general adverse economiajatgy and industry conditions, could
limit our flexibility in planning for, or reactingp, changes and opportunities in the markets irclvinie compete, could place us at a
competitive disadvantage compared to our compstittat have less debt or could require us to dedegubstantial portion of our cash flow
to service our debt.

Certain of the benefits we expect from the acquisiin of Navilyst, including the anticipated accretim, net reductions in costs and
expenses and certain tax benefits, are based on protions and assumptions, which are uncertain andubject to change.

Certain of the benefits we expect from the acgoisibf Navilyst, including accretion through fisgadar 2016, cost savings (net of
identified incremental costs and excluding transacand associated one-time costs) of approxim&elyto $15 million by fiscal year 2015
and annual cash tax savings of $11.5 million, oB$®er share, each year from fiscal year 2013.4ir®023, are based on projections and
assumptions that are uncertain and subject to ehdrese projections and assumptions are basegelmipary information, which may
prove to be inaccurate. There can be no assurhateve will realize the accretion per diluted shéne net reductions in costs and expenses
from the acquisition or the tax benefits to thesaxtor in the time frame, we anticipate. The mapkiee of our common stock may decline if
the estimates are not realized or we do not achley@erceived benefits of the acquisition as fgmdto the extent anticipated. If we do not
generate sufficient taxable income to utilize tbguared NOL carryforward before expiration, we vidke the benefit associated with the
NOL. There is the possibility that a future owndpsthange under IRC Section 382 could place a grdiatitation on the use of the NO
resulting in less NOL carryforward available foeus
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Subject to certain limitations, the holders of thestock issued in connection with the Navilyst acquition may sell our common stock,
which could cause our stock price to decline.

The shares of our common stock issued followingctirapletion of the acquisition of Navilyst are reged, but the holders may sell t
shares of our common stock under certain circunestarit the closing of the Navilyst acquisition, a@ered into the Stockholders
Agreement with certain of the Navilyst stockholdevkich granted them certain registration rightthwespect to their shares of our common
stock and imposed certain additional restrictiomsheir ability to transfer their shares of our ¢oan stock, including, among other things, a
twelve (12) month prohibition on the transfer of hares of our common stock issued in connectitintiie acquisition of Navilyst (other
than transfers to certain permitted transfereds. tWelve (12) month prohibition on the transfethwse shares expired on May 22, 2013 and
in August 2013 we filed a Form S-3 registrationtestaent with the Securities and Exchange Commissgistering these shares for resale.
The sale of a substantial number of our sharesibly parties or our other stockholders within a speriod of time could cause our stock
price to decline, make it more difficult for usraise funds through future offerings of our comnstwtk or acquire other businesses using our
common stock as consideration.

The presence of a significant stockholder may afféthe ability of a third party to acquire control of us.

The former Navilyst stockholders, including investthfunds affiliated with Avista Capital Partnebgneficially own approximately
27% of our outstanding common stock. Certain offthmer Navilyst stockholders entered into a Stadthrs Agreement at the closing that
permits investment funds affiliated with Avista @apPartners to appoint two (2) directors to owaBl of Directors until such time as, with
respect to the first director, certain of the formiavilyst stockholders’ beneficial ownership inhes been reduced below 20% of the then
outstanding voting shares and, with respect ta#oend director, certain of the former Navilystktwlders’ beneficial ownership in us has
been reduced below 10% of the then outstandingigathares. Although these directors will not caatgia majority of the Board of
Directors, they may exercise influence over thegieas of the board. David Burgstahler and Sriraemkataraman were appointed to our
Board of Directors on May 22, 2012.

Having certain of the former Navilyst stockholdeasssignificant stockholders of us may have theceffémaking it more difficult for a
third party to acquire, or of discouraging a thpatty from seeking to acquire, a majority of outstanding common stock or control of our
Board of Directors through a proxy solicitation.that regard, these stockholders and their coptiaffiliates are obligated pursuant to the
Stockholders Agreement, in certain circumstancestatransfer their shares of our common stockyhiole or in part, pursuant to any
recapitalization, reclassification, consolidatiamerger, share exchange or other business comhirtatiesaction involving us or pursuant to
any tender, exchange or other similar offer for cammon stock unless, in each case, the Boardretirs recommends such transaction or
offer or fails to recommend that our stockholde&jgct such transaction or offer.

For the period from the date of the Stockholderseg&gient to one (1) year from the date of the Stolcldris Agreement, certain of the
former Navilyst stockholders are required to véigit voting shares in accordance with the recomragonl of our Board of Directors with
respect to any business or proposal on which agkbblders are entitled to vote. For the periodnfitbhe date that is one (1) year from the
of the Stockholders Agreement until the first daigt certain of the former Navilyst stockholdersloimger beneficially own at least ten
percent (10%) of the voting securities outstandihguch time, the applicable former Navilyst staiklrs agree to vote all voting securities
then owned by them either, in the sole discretiomach stockholder, (1) in accordance with the mao@ndation of our Board or (2) in
proportion to the votes cast with respect to thingosecurities not owned by the applicable foridavilyst stockholders with respect to any
business or proposal on which our stockholdergatifled to vote. If at any time following one (lgar from the date of the Stockholders
Agreement, certain of the former Navilyst stockteokibeneficially own less than fifteen percent (18¥the voting securities then
outstanding and there is no stockholder desigre® gbrving on our Board pursuant to the stockhsldgreement, the applicable former
Navilyst stockholders may vote all voting secustteen owned by them in their own discreti
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If we fail to develop or market new products and ehance existing products, we could lose market shate our competitors and our
results of operations could suffer.

The market for interventional devices is charazgstiby rapid technological change, new producbihictions, technological
improvements, changes in physician requirementseantling industry standards. To be successfulinust continue to develop and
commercialize new products and to enhance versibaar existing products. Our products are techgicklly complex and require
significant research, planning, design, developraedttesting before they may be marketed. Thisge®generally takes at least 12 to 18
months from initial concept and may take up to sa@wears. In addition, product life cycles areatislely short because medical device
manufacturers continually develop smaller, moreaffe and less expensive versions of existingasvin response to physician demand.

Our success in developing and commercializing nedvemhanced versions of our products is affectedunyability to:
* recruit engineers
» timely and accurately identify new market tren
» accurately assess customer ne
* minimize the time and costs required to obtain l&guy clearance or approv:
» adopt competitive pricing
« timely manufacture and deliver produc
e accurately predict and control costs associateld thid development, manufacturing and support ofpooducts; ani
e anticipate and compete effectively with our conpet’ efforts.
Market acceptance of our products depends in paouo ability to demonstrate that our productscrgt-effective and easier to use, as
well as offer technological advantages. Additionalle may experience design, manufacturing, margedr other difficulties that could del

or prevent our development, introduction or margbf new products or new versions of our exispingducts. As a result of such difficulti
and delays, our development expenses may increds@sa consequence, our results of operationd saffer.

We face intense competition in the medical devicadustry. We may be unable to compete effectively i respect to technological
innovation and price which may have an adverse eft& on our revenues, financial condition or result®f operations.

The markets for our products are highly competjtared we expect competition to continue to intgndife may not be able to compete
effectively, and we may lose market share to onnetitors. Our primary device competitors incluBeston Scientific Corporation; Cook
Medical; Cordis Corporation, a subsidiary of Johm&odJohnson, Inc.; C.R. Bard; Medical Components,,lor Medcomp; Arrow
International, a subsidiary of TeleFlex Medical;i8rs Medical, a subsidiary of Smiths Group plc;s¢alar Solutions; Covidien subsidiaries
(Kendall, VNUS, EV3) and Merit Medical. Many of oaompetitors have substantially greater:

« financial and other resources to devote to prodagtisitions, research and development, marketidgr@anufacturing
» variety of products

» technical capabilities

» history of developing and introducing new produ

» patent portfolios that may present an obstaclaitaconduct of busines
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* name recognition; an
» distribution networks and -house sales force

Our competitors may succeed in developing techresognd products earlier, in obtaining patent futide or regulatory clearance
earlier, or in commercializing new products or tealogies more rapidly than us. Our competitors lap develop products and technologies
that are superior to those we are developing dratieerwise could render our products obsoleteooicompetitive. In addition, we may face
competition from providers of other medical theegpisuch as pharmaceutical companies, that mayraffesurgical therapies for conditions
that are currently, or in the future, may be trdatsing our products. Our products are generally abhigher prices than those of our
competitors. However, in the current environmentaiaged care, which is characterized by econolyicaltivated buyers, consolidation
among healthcare providers, increased competitiondaclining reimbursement rates, we are incresimgjng required to compete on the
basis of price. If we are not able to compete ¢iffety, our market share and revenues may decline.

Development and sales of our NanoKnife Ablation prducts are dependent on a number of factors beyondiocontrol, and our
inability to successfully complete our research andevelopment, design and marketing strategy with igpect to NanoKnife Ablation
may adversely affect our business, financial cond@n and results of operations.

A significant aspect of our growth strategy is tioatinued development of our NanoKnife Ablationdgwots. There can be no guarantee
that we will be able to develop and manufacturdtamithl next generation or updated NanoKnife Aldatproducts on commercially favora
terms, or at all. NanoKnife Ablation is a develgpiechnology and the inability of NanoKnife Ablatito achieve clinical acceptance could
severely limit the sales of NanoKnife Ablation pucts.

We currently have FDA 510(k) clearance to marketn®¥nife Ablation products for soft tissue ablatitiwe are not able to secure
FDA approval to conduct an IDE trial or marketimgpeoval for additional or more specific indicatiotisrough 510(k) clearance, pre-market
approval or otherwise, our ability to market oumidKnife Ablation products will be restricted whiolay have an adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openst

We may be exposed to risks associated with acquisits, including integration risks and risks associgd with methods of financing anc
the impact of accounting treatment. Accordingly, conpleted acquisitions may not enhance our financigdosition or results of
operations.

Part of our growth strategy is to acquire businessel technologies that are complementary to dimexe is no assurance that
acquisition opportunities will be available on guiable terms, or at all, or that we will be ablehiain necessary financing or regulatory
approvals. Any acquisitions that we do undertakald/be accompanied by the risks commonly encoudteracquisitions, including the:

» potential disruption of our business while we eatduopportunities, complete acquisitions and devald implement new
business strategies to take advantage of thesetapjiies;

» inability of our management to maximize our finad@nd strategic position by incorporating an aegfutechnology or business
into our existing offerings

» difficulty of maintaining uniform standards, congpprocedures and policie
+ difficulty of assimilating the operations and persel of acquired businesst

» potential loss of key employees of acquired busiegsand the impairment of relationships with elygds and customers as a
result of changes in management;

* uncertainty as to the lo-term success of any acquisitions we may m
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There is no assurance that any completed acquisitibbe accretive to our margins or profits iretshort term or in the long term. If
proceed with one or more significant acquisitiamsvhich the consideration consists of cash, a aukist portion of our available cash could
be used to consummate the acquisitions. If we gangte one or more acquisitions in which the comatiten consists of capital stock, our
stockholders could suffer significant dilution befr interest in us. In addition, we could incurassume significant amounts of indebtedness
in connection with acquisitions. Further, acquisis could also result in significant goodwill armdamnortization charges for acquired
businesses or technologies.

Our strategic initiatives, including acquisitions,may not produce the intended growth in revenue andperating income.

Our strategies include making significant investtaéa achieve revenue growth and margin improvenggets. During our fiscal year
ended May 31, 2013 we completed the acquisitioviasfex Medical and certain assets of Microsulis Mad If we do not achieve the
expected benefits from these investments or otlserfeiil to execute on our strategic initiatives, ma&y not achieve the growth improvement
we are targeting and our results of operations beagdversely affected.

If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual poperty rights, we may not be able to generate reveies from new or existing products
and our business may suffer.

Our success depends in part on obtaining, mainigiand enforcing our patents, trademarks and gttogrietary rights, and our ability
to avoid infringing the proprietary rights of otkeWe take precautionary steps to protect our wolgical advantages and intellectual
property. We rely upon patent, trade secret, cgbyrknowhow and trademark laws, as well as license agreenagid contractual provisiol
to establish our intellectual property rights amdt@ct our products. However, no assurances camage that any pending or future patent
applications will result in the issuance of patetiiat any current or future patents issued tdicensed by, us will not be challenged or
circumvented by our competitors, or that our patavitl not be found invalid.

Additionally, we may not be able to effectively prot our rights in unpatented technology, tradeete@nd confidential information.
Although we require our new employees, consultantscorporate partners to execute confidentiafitg@ments, these agreements may not
provide effective protection of our information ar,the event of unauthorized use or disclosure;, nt provide adequate remedies.

If we are not able to adequately protect our ietglial property, our market share, financial caadiind results of operations may
suffer.

If third parties claim that our products infringe t heir intellectual property rights, we may be forcedto expend significant financial
resources and management time defending against $uactions and our financial condition and our resuis of operations could suffer.

Third parties may claim that our products infririgeir patents and other intellectual property sghdentifying third-party patent rights
can be particularly difficult because, in genepaltent applications can be maintained in secrecgtfeast 18 months after their earliest
priority date. Some companies in the medical dewidestry have used intellectual property infringamlitigation to gain a competitive
advantage. If a competitor were to challenge otemia, licenses or other intellectual property tSghr assert that our products infringe its
patent or other intellectual property rights, weldancur substantial litigation costs, be forcedrake expensive changes to our product
design, pay royalties or other fees to licensetsighorder to continue manufacturing and selling groducts, or pay substantial damages.
Third-party infringement claims, regardless of thaitcome, would not only consume our financiabteses but also divert our
management’s time and effort. Such claims could edgise our customers or potential customers twhpae competitorgroducts or defer «
limit their purchase or use of our affected produaitil resolution of the claim.
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We are dependent on single and limited source supets which subjects our business and results of ogaions to risks of supplier
business interruptions.

We currently purchase significant amounts of sdvera products and product components from singtelanited source suppliers and
anticipate that we will do so for future producssveell. Any delays in delivery of or shortageshinde or other products and components ¢
interrupt and delay manufacturing of our productd eesult in the cancellation of orders for ourdarcts. Any or all of these suppliers could
discontinue the manufacture or supply of theseyrtsdand components at any time. Due to FDA anerdihsiness considerations, we may
not be able to identify and integrate alternatioerses of supply in a timely fashion or at all. Angnsition to alternate suppliers may result in
production delays and increased costs and may damiability to deliver products to our customeétsrthermore, if we are unable to identify
alternative sources of supply, we would have toifgamlir products to use substitute components, ivhiay cause delays in shipments,
increased design and manufacturing costs and isedearices for our products.

Cost-containment efforts of group purchasing orgardations could adversely affect our selling pricesinancial position and results of
operations.

Many of our existing and potential customers haseolme members of group purchasing organizationSR@s, and IDNs, in an effort
to reduce costs. GPOs and IDNs negotiate pricirmpngements with healthcare product manufacturetsiatributors and offer the negotia
prices to affiliated hospitals and other membeBOG and IDNs typically award contracts on a catedgrcategory basis through a
competitive bidding process. Bids are generalljcged from multiple manufacturers with the intemtiof driving down pricing. Due to the
highly competitive nature of the GPO and IDN codtirsg processes, we may not be able to obtain markees for our products or obtain or
maintain contract positions with major GPOs and $DWhich could adversely impact our profitability.

Economic instability could continue to adversely déct the company.

In recent years financial markets and the econoimi#®e United States and internationally have teeyeriencing a period of upheaval
characterized by the bankruptcy, failure, collapssale of various financial institutions, severéisninished liquidity and credit availability,
declines in consumer confidence, declines in ecangnowth, increases in unemployment rates andrteiogy about economic stability.
These conditions may continue and could worsera £esult, the global economic environment may, ayjrather things, create downward
pressure on the pricing of our products, increhsestles cycle of certain products and slow th@t@alo of new technology, any of which
could have an adverse effect on our business,diabposition and results of operations.

Our industry is experiencing greater scrutiny and regulation by governmental authorities, which has k& to certain costs and business
distractions as we respond to inquiries and complwith new regulations, and may lead to greater gov@mental regulation in the
future.

Our medical devices and our business activitiesabgect to rigorous regulation by the FDA and ntous other federal, state and
foreign governmental authorities. These authoraied members of Congress have been increasingstiratiny of our industry. In addition,
certain states, including Massachusetts, have tlgqeassed or are considering legislation restrgcthur interactions with health care
providers and requiring disclosure of many paymeémtiem. The federal government has recently dhtced similar legislation, which may
or may not preempt state laws. Recent Supreme Casetlaw has clarified that the FDA'’s authoritgiomedical devices preempts state tort
laws, but legislation has been introduced at tderi@ level to allow state intervention, which abidad to increased and inconsistent
regulation at the state level. We anticipate thatgovernment will continue to scrutinize our iniyglosely, and that additional regulation
governmental authorities may increase complianséscexposure to litigation and other adverse tffeecour operations.

30



Table of Contents

Consolidation in the healthcare industry could havean adverse effect on our revenues and results gberations.

Many healthcare industry companies, including madievice companies, are consolidating to createammpanies with greater
market power. As the healthcare industry consaislatompetition to provide goods and servicesdastry participants will become more
intense. These industry participants may try totbe@ market power to negotiate price concesswwneductions for medical devices that
incorporate components produced by us. If we aieetbto reduce our prices because of consolidatitime healthcare industry, our revenues
would decrease and our consolidated earnings,diaboondition, or cash flow would suffer.

Healthcare policy changes, including recent laws teeform the U.S. healthcare system, may have a matal adverse effect on us.

Healthcare costs have risen significantly overgast decade. There have been, and continue tedgmgals by legislators, regulators,
and third-party payors to keep these costs dowrtaiDeproposals, if passed, would impose limitagiom the prices we will be able to charge
for our products, or the amounts of reimbursemeati@ble for our products from governmental agesiciethird-party payors. These
limitations could have a material adverse effecbonfinancial position and results of operations.

In March 2010, the Patient Protection and AfforéaBhre Act (the “PPACA”) was adopted and enacttallaw. This legislation
includes a provision that imposes a 2.3% excis®tathe sale of certain medical devices by a mawfer, producer or importer of such
devices in the United States starting after Decer@be2012. We estimate that the excise tax wikpproximately $4.1 million for our fiscal
year ended May 31, 2014, which will increase owt @ doing business. The PPACA also reduces Meglimad Medicaid payments
hospitals and clinical laboratories, which coulduee medical procedure volumes and impact the deriwarour products or the prices at
which we sell our products. While the PPACA is imded to expand health insurance coverage to udgersons in the United States, other
elements of this legislation, the impact of anyralléncrease in access to healthcare on salesrgfr@ducts remains uncertain. In addition,
the costs of compliance with the PPACA’s new reipgraind disclosure requirements with regard to paymnor other transfers of value made
to healthcare providers may have a material, negatipact on our results of operations and our fas¥s. Various healthcare reform
proposals have also emerged at the state levetaMeot predict the exact effect newly enacted lamany future legislation or regulation v
have on us. However, the implementation of the PRAdRd new legislation and regulation may lowemigiirsements for our products,
reduce medical procedure volumes and adverselgtadter business, possibly materially. In additithe enacted excise tax may materially
and adversely affect our operating expenses andtsex operations.

If we do not maintain our reputation with interventional physicians, our growth will be limited and ou business could be harmed.

Physicians typically influence the medical deviceghasing decisions of the hospitals and otherthesale institutions in which they
practice. Consequently, our reputation with intati@al physicians is critical to our continued gtb. We believe that we have built a
positive reputation based on the quality of ourdpieis, our physician-driven product developmentrésf our marketing and training efforts
and our presence at medical society meetings. Atuabor perceived diminution in the quality of quoducts, or our failure or inability to
maintain these other efforts, could damage ourtegjon with interventional physicians and causegramwth to be limited and our business to
be harmed.

Our business could be harmed if we lose the servief our key personnel.

Our business depends upon our ability to attradtratain highly qualified personnel, including mgesal, sales and technical
personnel. We compete for key personnel with otbenpanies, healthcare institutions, academic utgiits, government entities and other
organizations. We do not have written employmemn¢a@gnents with our executive officers, other than@&EO. Our ability to maintain and
expand our business may be impaired if we are ertahietain our current key personnel or hire taireother qualified personnel in the
future.
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Undetected defects may increase our costs and imp#ie market acceptance of our products.

Our products have occasionally contained, and malyd future contain, undetected defects. Wheretpesblems occur, we must divert
the attention of our engineering personnel to agkitkem. There is no assurance that we will natrim@rranty or repair costs, be subject to
liability claims for damages related to producted#$, or experience manufacturing, shipping orradledays or interruptions as a result of
these defects in the future. Our insurance policiag not provide sufficient protection should arolde asserted. In addition, the occurrence
of defects may result in significant customer tielag problems and injury to our reputation, and nmagair market acceptance of our
products.

If a product liability claim is brought against us or our product liability insurance coverage is inagquate, our business could be
harmed.

The design, manufacture and marketing of the tg@sedical devices we sell entail an inherent aégroduct liability. Our products
are used by physicians to treat seriously ill paieWe are periodically subject to product lidhitilaims, and patients or customers may ir
future bring claims in a number of circumstanced fam a number of reasons, including if our produgere misused, if a component of our
product fails, if their manufacture or design wiasved, if they produced unsatisfactory results ¢ne instructions for use and operating
manuals and disclosure of product related risk@fmrproducts were found to be inadequate. In ewigitndividuals or groups seeking to
represent a class may file suit against us. Theoow of litigation, particularly class action lavtsuis difficult to assess or quantify. Plainti
in these types of lawsuits often seek recoveryeo§ Varge or indeterminate amounts, including ndy @ctual damages, but also punitive
damages. The magnitude of the potential lossesnglt these lawsuits may remain unknown for safgl periods of time.

We carry a product liability policy with a limit ¢§10,000,000 per product liability claim and anr@ggte policy limit of $10,000,000,
subject to deductibles of $250,000 per occurrence$d 250,000 in the aggregate. We believe, basethims made against us in the past,
our existing product liability insurance coveragegasonably adequate to protect us from any liglsilve might incur. However, there is no
assurance that this coverage will be sufficiergatisfy any claim made against us. In additionnwes not be able to maintain adequate
coverage at a reasonable cost and on reasonaig i€at all. Any product liability claim broughgainst us, with or without merit, could
increase our product liability insurance ratesmvpnt us from securing any coverage in the futddelitionally, if one or more product
liability claims is brought against us for uninsdit&bilities or is in excess of our insurance aage, our financial condition and results of
operations could be negatively impacted. Furtheh<slaims may require us to recall some of oudpets, which could result in significant
costs to us and could divert management’s atteffitton our business.

Changes in reimbursement levels by governmental ather third-party payors for procedures using our products may cause our
revenues to decline.

Our products are purchased principally by hospitalghysicians which typically bill various thircagly payors, such as governmental
programs (e.g. Medicare, Medicaid and comparabikiga programs), private insurance plans and mahegee plans, for the healthcare
services provided to their patients. The abilityoaf customers to obtain appropriate reimburserfeegniroducts and services from third-party
payors is critical to the success of medical decm®mpanies because it affects which products cue®purchase and the prices they are
willing to pay. Reimbursement varies by country aad significantly impact the acceptance of nevatetogy. Implementation of healthcare
reforms in the United States and in other countriay limit, reduce or eliminate reimbursement for products and adversely affect both our
pricing flexibility and the demand for our produdissen when we develop a promising new productmag find limited demand for the
product unless reimbursement approval is obtairad private and governmental third party payors.
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Third-party payors have adopted, and are contintgraglopt, a number of healthcare policies intertdemlirb rising healthcare costs.
These policies include:

» controls on government-funded reimbursement foltheare services and price controls on medical petgland services
providers;

» challenges to the pricing of medical procedurelinuits or prohibitions on reimbursement for specifievices and therapies
through other means; al

» the introduction of managed care systems in whezithcare providers contract to provide comprehlvensealthcare for a fixed
cost per persot

We are unable to predict whether federal, stateaal healthcare reform legislation or regulatidfeeting our business may be propo
or enacted in the future, or what effect any segfislation or regulation would have on our busin€gnges in healthcare systems in the
United States or elsewhere in a manner that saamifly reduces reimbursement for procedures usingnedical devices or denies coverage
for these procedures, or adverse decisions relagingr products by administrators of these syst@nesverage or reimbursement issues,
would have an adverse impact on the acceptancergfroducts and the prices which our customersvélieg to pay for them.

If we cannot obtain and maintain marketing clearane or approval from governmental agencies, we willat be able to sell our
products.

Our products are medical devices that are subjeettensive regulation in the United States arnttiénforeign countries in which they
are sold. Unless an exemption applies, each medisate that we wish to market in the United Stateist receive either 510(k) clearance or
premarket approval (PMA) from the U.S. Food anddAdministration, or the FDA, before the produch e sold. Either process can be
lengthy and expensive. The FDA's 510(k) cleararmoegdure, also known as “premarket notification,thie process we have used for our
current products. This process usually takes fronn fo 12 months from the date the premarket watiidn is submitted to the FDA, but may
take significantly longer. Although we have obtairfiel 0(k) clearances for our current products, ¢tesrances may be revoked by the FDA if
safety or effectiveness problems develop with aks. The PMA process is much more costly, lengtid uncertain. It generally takes
from one to three years from the date the apptioas submitted to, and filed with, the FDA, andyniake even longer. Regulatory regimes in
other countries similarly require approval or ciae prior to our marketing or selling productshiose countries. We rely on our distributors
to obtain regulatory clearances or approvals ofpzaducts outside of the United States. If we arable to obtain additional clearances or
approvals needed to market existing or new produodtse United States or elsewhere or obtain tiebesssrances or approvals in a timely
fashion or at all, or if our existing clearances ervoked, our revenues and profitability may aexli

If we or some of our suppliers fail to comply withthe FDA's Quality System Regulation, or QSR, and dter applicable postmarket
requirements, our manufacturing operations could bedisrupted, our product sales and profitability codd suffer, and we may be
subject to a wide variety of FDA enforcement actios.

After a device is placed on the market, numerogsaletory requirements apply. We are subject toénspn and marketing surveillance
by the FDA to determine our compliance with allutegory requirements. Our failure to comply withplpable regulatory requirements col
result in the FDA or a court instituting a wide ety of enforcement actions against us, includirblic Warning Letter; an order to
shutdown some or all manufacturing operationsraltef products; fines or civil penalties; seizaredetention of our products; refusing our
requests for 510(k) clearance or a premarket aphrov PMA, of new or modified products; withdrawif10(k) clearance or PMA approvals
already granted to us; and criminal prosecution.

Our manufacturing processes and those of somerafuppliers must comply with the FD&\Quality System Regulation, or QSR, wt
governs the methods used in, and the facilitiescamdrols used for, the

33



Table of Contents

design, testing, manufacture, control, quality essce, installation, servicing, labeling, packagistprage and shipping of medical devices.
The FDA enforces the QSR through unannounced itispsc If we, or one of our suppliers, fail a QSRRpection, or if a corrective action
plan adopted by us or one of our suppliers is officient, the FDA may bring an enforcement actiand our operations could be disrupted
and our manufacturing delayed. We are also sulpettie FDA's general prohibition against promotowy products for unapproved or “off-
label” uses, the FDA's adverse event reporting ireguents and the FDA'’s reporting requirements ieldfcorrection or product removals.
The FDA has recently placed increased emphasisatiiutiny of compliance with the QSR and thebeopostmarket requirements.

On May 27, 2011, we received a Warning Letter ftbmFDA in connection with the FDA'’s inspectionafr Queensbury, NY
manufacturing facility. In the Warning Letter, tRBA cited deficiencies in our response letter wavfited to FDA pertaining to the
inspection that occurred from January 4 throughudanl3, 2011. These deficiencies related to aerimal procedures for medical device
reporting, corrections and removals and complaamditing.

On February 10, 2012, we received from the FDA mrF483, List of Investigational Observations, imnection with its inspection of
our Queensbury facility from November 14, 2011 thlylo February 10, 2012. The Form 483 contained $2mhtions related to, among other
things, our CAPA (Corrective and Preventive Actisgstem, MDR (Medical Device Reporting), complaimtestigation, corrections and
removals, acceptance criteria and training. Sonteebbservations contained in the Form 483 weareaeobservations from the May 27,
2011Warning Letter.

On February 13, 2012, we received from the FDA ar=683 in connection with its inspection of our faant facility from January 12,
2012 through February 13, 2012. The Form 483 coath6 observations related to, among other thmgsCAPA system, design controls,
risk management and training.

We have developed a comprehensive Quality CalldiioA Program to review and augment our Quality Mpament Systems at our
Queensbury facility, and we have implemented nuoeroeasures outlined in that plan. We providedaesgs to FDA within 15 business
days of our receipt of the Form 483s and we wilitoaue to work closely with FDA to resolve any datgling issues. There can be no
assurance that the FDA will be satisfied with asponse. Until the items raised in the Warningdretand during the recent inspections are
corrected, we may be subject to additional regwyadiction by the FDA, including the issuance of mag letters, injunction, seizure or recall
of products, imposition of fines or penalties oergiing restrictions on our facilities. Such acti@ould significantly disrupt our ongoing
business and operations and have a material advepset on our financial position and operatingites

If we, or one of our suppliers, violate the FDA&uirements or fail to take adequate correctivimadh response to any significant
compliance issue raised by the FDA, the FDA cae tatious enforcement actions which could causgmduct sales and profitability to
suffer.

In addition, most other countries require us andsoppliers to comply with manufacturing and quadissurance standards for medical
devices that are similar to those in force in thtétl States before marketing and selling our pectedin those countries. If we, or our
suppliers, should fail to do so, we would lose abitity to market and sell our products in thosardoies.

Even after receiving regulatory clearance or approsl, our products may be subject to product recallswhich may harm our reputation
and divert managerial and financial resources.

The FDA and similar governmental authorities inestbountries have the authority to order mandatecgll of our products or order
their removal from the market if there are matedigficiencies or defects in design, manufacturgaitation, servicing or labeling of the
device, or if the governmental entity finds that ptoducts would cause serious adverse health quesees. A government mandated
voluntary recall or field
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action by us could occur as a result of comporgires, manufacturing errors or design defectduiting labeling defects. Any recall of our
products may harm our reputation with customersdinelt managerial and financial resources.

We may be subject to fines, penalties or injunctionif we are determined to be promoting the use ofuo products for unapproved or
“off-label” uses.

If we are incorrect in our belief that our promaei@ materials and training methods regarding plegsgcare conducted in compliance
with regulations of the FDA and other applicablgulations, and the FDA determines that our prommatianaterials or training constitutes
promotion of an unapproved use, the FDA could retjtiat we modify our training or promotional méés or subject us to regulatory
enforcement actions, including the issuance of mnimg letter, injunction, seizure, civil fine andrainal penalties.

On January 24, 2011 we received a Warning Letten fthe FDA in connection with our marketing of thanoKnife System. In the
Warning Letter, the FDA states that certain stat@see made, including those on our company wehsitanote the use of the NanoKnife
System beyond its currently cleared indications.réé&ponded to the FDA as necessary and intend io elmsely with them to resolve any
outstanding issues. While we believe we have belynresponsive to the matters raised by the FDfaWarning Letter, there can be no
assurance that the FDA will be satisfied with asponse. Therefore, we may be subject to additiegailatory action by the FDA, including
the issuance of a warning letter, injunction, sedzur recall of products, imposition of fines onpé#ies and any such actions could
significantly disrupt our business and operatioms lave a material adverse impact on our finamaaltion and results of operations. It is
also possible that other federal, state or foreigfiorcement authorities might take action if thepsider promotional or training materials to
constitute promotion of an unapproved use, whiakicceesult in significant fines or penalties undérer statutory authorities, such as laws
prohibiting false claims for reimbursement.

Modifications to our current products may require new marketing clearances or approvals or require ug cease marketing or recall
the modified products until such clearances or appvals are obtained.

Any modification to an FDA-cleared medical devibattcould significantly affect its safety or effeeness, or that would constitute a
major change or modification in its intended usguires a new FDA 510(k) clearance or, possibpremarket approval. The FDA requires
every manufacturer to make its own determinatiotoaghether a modification requires a new 510(kpchnce or premarket approval, but the
FDA may review and disagree with any decision reddby the manufacturer. We have modified aspectsmwie of our devices since
receiving regulatory clearance. We believed thaiesof these modifications did not require new 5)@{karance or premarket approval and,
therefore, we did not seek new 510(k) clearancgsemarket approvals. In the future, we may makdtimthal modifications to our products
after they have received FDA clearance or apprand| in appropriate circumstances, determine thatalearance or approval is
unnecessary. Regulations in other countries in fivivie market or sell, or propose to market or seli,products may also require that we
make judgments about changes to our products aethethor not those changes are such that regulapgmsoval or clearance should be
obtained. In the United States and elsewhere, aémyl authorities may disagree with our past aureidecisions not to seek new clearance or
approval and may require us to obtain clearan@pproval for modifications to our products. If tiwatre to occur for a previously cleared or
approved product, we may be required to cease ftiagker recall the modified device until we obtdie necessary clearance or approval.
Under these circumstances, we may also be subjsajnificant regulatory fines or other penaltiésiny of the foregoing were to occur, our
financial condition and results of operations cdogdnegatively impacted.

We are subject to healthcare fraud and abuse regutimns that could result in significant liability, require us to change our business
practices and restrict our operations in the future

We are subject to various federal, state and laged targeting fraud and abuse in the healthcatesimy, including anti-kickback and
false claims laws. Violations of these laws areighable by criminal or civil
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sanctions, including substantial fines, imprisonh@erd exclusion from participation in healthcareggzams such as Medicare and Medicaid
and health programs outside the United States.€lla@ss and regulations are wide ranging and subjetthanging interpretation and
application, which could restrict our sales or nedirkg practices. Furthermore, since many of outaraers rely on reimbursement from
Medicare, Medicaid and other governmental progrimt®ver a substantial portion of their expendiu@r exclusion from such programs
a result of a violation of these laws could haveaterial adverse effect on our business, resultgefations, financial condition and cash
flow.

If our employees or agents violate the U.S. Foreig@orrupt Practices Act or anti-bribery laws in other jurisdictions, we may incur
fines or penalties, or experience other adverse ceaquences.

We are subject to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Prasthet, or FCPA, and similar anti-bribery laws indmational jurisdictions which
generally prohibit companies and their intermeé®from making improper payments to non-U.S. ddficfor the purpose of obtaining or
retaining business. Because of the predominangevadrnment-sponsored healthcare systems arourvdoitié, many of our customer
relationships outside of the United States are githernmental entities and are therefore subjestith anti-bribery laws. Our sales to
customers and distributors outside of the UnitedeSthave been increasing and we expect them tmaero increase in the future. If our
employees or agents violate the provisions of BB A or other antbribery laws, we may incur fines or penalties, wayrhe unable to mark
our products in other countries or we may expegestber adverse consequences which could haveaiat@dverse effect on our operating
results or financial condition.

Failure to attract additional capital which we mayrequire to expand our business could curtail our gowth.

We may require additional capital to expand ouiiess. If cash generated internally is insufficientund capital requirements, we w
require additional debt or equity financing. In diteh, we may require financing to fund any sigodint acquisitions we may seek to make.
Needed financing may not be available or, if ald@amay not be available on terms satisfactonystand may result in significa
stockholder dilution. Covenants in our existingafiicing may also restrict our ability to obtain dibdial debt financing. If we fail to obtain
sufficient additional capital in the future, we tibe forced to curtail our growth strategy by reidg or delaying capital expenditures and
acquisitions, selling assets, restructuring ouraipens or refinancing our indebtedness.

Any disaster at our manufacturing facilities coulddisrupt our ability to manufacture our products for a substantial amount of time,
which could cause our revenues to decrease.

We conduct our manufacturing and assembly at fessilin Queensbury, New York, Glens Falls, New Ydflanchester, Georgia, and
Denmead, England. It would be difficult, expensiwel time-consuming to transfer resources from anégitfy to the other, replace, or repair
these facilities and our manufacturing equipmetttefy were significantly affected by a disasterdiidnally, we might be forced to rely on
third-party manufacturers or to delay productioroof products. Insurance for damage to our progeetnd the disruption of our business
from disasters may not be sufficient to cover albar potential losses and may not continue touazélable to us on acceptable terms, or at all.
In addition, if one of our principal suppliers weceexperience a similar disaster, uninsured lossder-insured loss, we might not be able to
obtain adequate alternative sources of suppligsaztucts or could face significant delays and irtbrstantial expense in doing so. Any
significant uninsured loss, prolonged or repeaistudtion, or inability to operate experienced Isyow any of our principal suppliers could
cause significant harm to our business, finan@abdion and results of operations.
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Our future operating results are difficult to predict and may vary significantly from quarter to quarter, which may adversely affect th
price of our common stock.

The ongoing introduction of new products and sawithat affect our overall product mix make thedfotton of future operating results
difficult. You should not rely on our past revergrewth as any indication of future growth rate®perating results. The price of our comr
stock will likely fall in the event that our opeirsg results do not meet the expectations of analystl investors. Comparisons of our quarterly
operating results are an unreliable indicationwffature performance because they are likely ty gagnificantly based on many factors,
including:

» the level of sales of our products and servicesiinmarkets

e our ability to introduce new products or serviced anhancements in a timely manr
» the demand for and acceptance of our productsemitss;

» the success of our competition and the introduatioalternative products or servict
» our ability to command favorable pricing for oupgducts and service

» the growth of the market for our devices and sew;

» the expansion and rate of success of our direesdatce in the United States and internationaily eur independent distributors
internationally;

» actions relating to ongoing FDA complian
» the effect of intellectual property disput
» the size and timing of orders from independentithigtors or customer:

« the attraction and retention of key personnel,ipalgrly in sales and marketing, regulatory, mastifeng and research and
development

e unanticipated delays or an inability to controltsg
« general economic conditions as well as those dpdoibur customers and markets; «
» seasonal fluctuations in revenue due to the electature of some procedur

Our stock price may be volatile, which may cause #hvalue of our stock to decline or subject us to securities class action litigation.

The trading price of our common stock is likelyo® highly volatile and could be subject to widectlations in price in response to
various factors, many of which are beyond our ainincluding:

e general economic, industry and market conditit

e actions by institutional or other large stockhoj

» the depth and liquidity of the market for our commstock;

« volume and timing of orders for our produc

» developments generally affecting medical device ganies;

» the announcement of new products or product enlagcts by us or our competito

» changes in earnings estimates or recommendatioasduyities analyst:

* investor perceptions of us and our business, imetudhanges in market valuations of medical deemmpanies
» our results of operations and financial performa
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In addition, the stock market in general, and tA&SRAQ Stock Market and the market for medical desiin particular, have
experienced substantial price and volume volatiligt is often seemingly unrelated to the operagpieiormance of particular companies.
These broad market fluctuations may cause thengaalice of our common stock to decline. In thet psecurities class action litigation has
often been brought against a company after a pefiodlatility in the market price of its commorosk. We may become involved in this t
of litigation in the future. Any securities litigah claims brought against us could result in safitstl expense and the diversion of
management’s attention from our business.

Anti-takeover provisions in our organizational docunents and Delaware law may discourage or prevent@hange of control, even if an
acquisition would be beneficial to our stockholderswhich could cause our stock price to decline angrevent attempts by our
stockholders to replace or remove our current managment.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamaaind our amended and restated bylaws containsjyog that may enable our
management to resist a change in control. Thesagwos may discourage, delay or prevent a chamdfeei ownership of our company or a
change in our management. In addition, these gomsascould limit the price that investors wouldvidling to pay in the future for shares of
our common stock. Such provisions include:

» our board of directors is authorized, without pstwckholder approval, to create and issue “bldrdck” preferred stock, with
rights senior to those of common sto

« our board of directors is classified so that nbtr@mbers of our board of directors are electezhattime, which may make it mc
difficult for a person who acquires control of ajordy of our outstanding voting stock to replaag directors;

« advance notice requirements for stockholders toimat® individuals to serve on our board of direstor for stockholders to
submit proposals that can be acted upon at stog&hateetings

» stockholder action by written consent is prohikit
» stockholders are not permitted to accumulate traes for the election of directol

We are also subject to the provisions of Sectidh @&the Delaware General Corporation Law, whicly mpahibit certain business
combinations with stockholders owning 15% or mdrew outstanding voting stock.

In addition, our board of directors has adoptetbakholder rights plan, which could delay or prevarhange in control of us even if
the change in control is generally beneficial to stockholders. These and other provisions in augraded and restated certificate of
incorporation, amended and restated bylaws andi2etalaw could make it more difficult for stockheld or potential acquirers to obtain
control of our board of directors or initiate actiothat are opposed by our then-current boardretdirs, including delaying or impeding a
merger, tender offer or proxy contest involving campany. Any delay or prevention of a change ot transaction or changes in our
board of directors could cause the market priceunfcommon stock to decline.

Our goodwill and intangible assets are subject togiential impairment.

A significant portion of our assets consists of dwitl and intangible assets, the carrying valuevbfch may be reduced if we determine
that those assets are impaired. At May 31, 2018dgdl and intangible assets represented approxin&®s70 million, or approximately 72%
of our total assets.

Most of our intangible assets have determinabléulifiees and are amortized over their useful liegseither a straigHtne basis or ove
the expected period of benefit or as revenuesareed from the sales of the related products. Tuerying assumptions regarding the
estimated useful lives of these intangible assetseviewed annually and more often if an evertdimumstance occurs making it likely that
the carrying value of the assets may not be readierand are adjusted through accelerated amaotizdhecessary.
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We review our single reporting unit for potentialogiwill impairment in the third fiscal quarter ci@h year as part of our annual
goodwill impairment testing, and more often if arelet or circumstance occurs making it likely thmpairment exists. We conduct
impairment testing based on our current busineategly in light of present industry and economicditions, as well as future expectations.
The annual goodwill impairment review performediecember 2012 indicated no goodwill impairments.

If actual results differ from the assumptions astineates used in the goodwill and intangible asakdulations, we could incur future
impairment or amortization charges, which couldategly impact our results of operations.

Item 1B.  Unresolved Staff Commeni
None

Item 2. Properties

We own a manufacturing, administrative and warebdasility of approximately 189,000 square feeGiens Falls, New York acquire
as part of the Navilyst transaction. We own a maatuiring, administrative, engineering and warehdas#ity of approximately 129,000
square feet situated on 18 acres in Queensbury, ek In July 2009, we entered into an agreememease, for a ten year period plus 2
year renewal options, a 52,500 square foot offiglimg in Latham, New York to house our corporagadquarters and certain busin
operations. The lease commencement date was Magf10. See Item 7 of this annual report, “Manag#adiscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Ldifiyi and Capital Resources,” for a discussion o lsase.

We lease an engineering facility of approximately0B0 square feet in Marlboro, Massachusetts aedjais part of the Navilyst
transaction. We also lease additional propertieleitting a manufacturing facility of approximatel§,600 square feet located in Manchester,
Georgia which also includes office space, 14,50@&eg feet of office space in Fremont, Californi80D square feet of sales and
administrative offices in the Netherlands, 7,500a8¢ feet of office and manufacturing in the Unikgdgdom and 1,600 square feet of sales
office space in Hamburg, Germany. In addition, \eeehsales offices in Hong Kong and Sydney, Australi

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:
AngioDynamics v. biolitet

On January 2, 2008, we commenced an action in tied) States District Court for the Northern Disttrof New York entitled
AngioDynamics, Inc. v. biolitec, Inc. In this aatiowe are seeking judgment against biolitec foedsé and indemnification in two lawsuits
which we previously settled. Our claims arise dua &upply and Distribution Agreement (“SDA”) ergdrinto with biolitec on April 1, 2002.
On September 27, 2011, the U.S. District CourttierNorthern District of New York granted key ports of our motion for summary
judgment in our legal case against biolitec. Therf's order was filed under seal. The Court also désen biolitec’s counterclaims against
us. The court denied one portion of our summargioueint motion, which sought to recover additionatsdrom biolitec, leaving this for
adjudication at trial. On November 8, 2012, the €guanted partial judgment to us in the amour$28.2 million.

In October 2009, we commenced an action in theddritates District Court for the District of Madsasetts entitled AngioDynamics,
Inc. v. biolitec AG and Wolfgang Neuberger. The @dant in this action was amended in March 2010s Hetion seeks to recover against
biolitec, Inc.’s parent entities and CEO for tousty interfering with biolitec, Incs contractual obligation to defend and indemnifyarsd als
seeks to pierce the corporate veil of biolitec, Bed to invalidate certain alleged fraudulentdfars in order to hold biolitec, Inc.’s parent
entities jointly and severally liable for the alésbbreach of the SDA. This case is currently
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in the discovery phase. On September 13, 2012/itesachusetts Court granted our request for angiredry injunction prohibiting the
downstream merger of biolitec AG with its Austrisubsidiary. On April 1, 2013, the U.S. Court of Apjs for the First Circuit affirmed the
preliminary injunction.

We will continue to vigorously enforce our rightsder the supply agreement with biolitec.

C.R. Bard, Inc. v. AngioDynamics, Inc.

On January 11, 2012, C.R. Bard, Inc. filed a suthe United States District Court of Utah claimoegtain of our implantable port
products infringe on patents held by them. Bargkisking unspecified damages and other relief. Thet@enied Bard’s motion for pre-trial
consolidation with separate actions it filed on $aene day against Medical Components, Inc. andhSrmviedical ASD, Inc., but has asked
supplemental briefing on the issue of whether todoet a common Markman hearing. We filed petititoiseexamination in the US Patent
and Trademark Office which seek to invalidate lalee patents asserted in the litigation. Our petitihave been granted and 40 of 41 patent
claims have been rejected. The reexamination pdicge are on-going. The case has been stayed pefinlih resolution of the PTO process.
We believe these claims are without merit and idtiendefend them vigorously. We have not recordedx@ense related to the outcome of
this litigation because it is not yet possible &tedmine if a potential loss is probable nor reabbnestimable.

Cardinal Health v. Navilyst Medical, Inc.

On December 21, 2011, Cardinal Health Canada 2@4(Cardinal Health) filed a demand for arbitratfmursuant to the terms of the
International Distributorship Agreement enterea iat of November 1, 2008 between Navilyst and @atdiealth. Cardinal Health claims
that it is entitled to damages based on Navilydg'sision to terminate the International Distribstop Agreement. The parties have entered
into a written stipulation to stay the proceediigthis matter pending the outcome of a relategdtton brought by Cardinal health against
three of our current and former employees (all bbm are former employees of Cardinal Health) in@mtario Superior Court of Justice
(Cardinal Health Canada, Inc. vs. Alexander, Sol@a&npbell, Superior Court of Justice, Ontario, CandNo. CV-11-440418 (the Ontario
Litigation). If this matter proceeds following tlstay, we intend to deny the allegations containetié demand for arbitration and to advance
counterclaims against Cardinal Health. Navilyseesd into a joint defense agreement with the defetsdin the Ontario Litigation, pursuant
to which Navilyst agreed, subject to certain capndg, to indemnify the defendants for all legalsfeelating to the Ontario Litigation as well
as any damages or cost awards arising out of theriOri.itigation. While we intend to vigorously é#fd against these actions, each of these
cases is in the preliminary stages and, as a réisalultimate outcome of these cases and the@ngiat financial impact are not determinable
at this time.

Cirrex Systems LLC v. AngioDynamics, Inc.

On May 21, 2012, Cirrex Systems LLC filed a suithe United States District Court of Georgia claighthat certain of our endovenous
ablation products infringe a patent held by themre® was seeking unspecified damages and othief.réin October 3, 2012, we filed an
answer denying infringement, asserting variousratitive defenses, and asserting counterclaims deckratory judgment of non-
infringement and invalidity. On December 7, 2012yé&X voluntarily dismissed the suit.

Joseph Pierre v. AngioDynamics, Inc.

In July 2011, a former employee dual-filed a cormlaith the New York State Division of Human Rigtdand the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission, entitled Joseph Pierre ngidDynamics, Inc. In this action, the former enyge is alleging discrimination due to
his status as an Africafimerican, in light of him being reassigned to aeotproject. At the conclusion of its investigatidime Division issue
a finding of “no probable cause” on January 6, 284@ dismissed the complaint. The complainant dicappeal the decision to
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preserve his New York Human Rights Law claims. @braary 22, 2012, the Equal Employment Opportu@itynmission issued its
determination adopting the decision of the Diviséomd dismissing the charge. The complainant filéetaral claim following the EEOC'’s
decision in the United States District Court foe thorthern District of New York on May 21, 2012.i§lkeomplaint makes the same allegat

of discrimination, and alleges causes of actionenrdtle VI of the Civil Rights Act and 42 U.S.Q@981. We believe these claims are without
merit and intend to defend them vigorously. We hawerecorded an expense related to the outcorttesdlitigation because it is not yet
possible to determine if a potential loss is prddaior reasonably estimable.

We are party to other legal actions that arisdééndrdinary course of business. We believe thatiability resulting from any currently
pending litigation will not, individually or in thaggregate, have a material adverse effect onuminéss, financial condition, results of
operations, or cash flows.
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Part Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, asduer Purchases of Equity Securitie
Our common stock is traded on The Global Selectkitaier of The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC (formerlizeé Nasdaq National
Market), under the symbol “ANGO.”

The following table sets forth, for the periodsigaded, the high and low sale prices for our comstock as reported by The NASDAQ
Stock Market.

Sale Price
High Low
Year ended May 31, 201:
Fourth Quarte $12.6:2 $ 9.52
Third Quartel $12.5¢ $10.27
Second Quarte $12.91 $10.0(
First Quartel $12.5¢ $10.3¢
Sale Price
High Low
Year ended May 31, 201:
Fourth Quarte $13.21 $11.3¢
Third Quartel $15.3¢ $12.0¢
Second Quarte $16.3¢ $12.6(
First Quartel $16.0( $12.91

As of July 31, 2013, there were 283 record holdéisur common stock.

Dividends

We did not declare any cash dividends on our comstack during our last two fiscal years. We do amticipate paying any cash
dividends on our common stock for the foreseealtleré.

Share Repurchase Program

On October 5, 2011, our Board of Directors authettithe repurchase of up to $20 million of our commtock, prior to May 31, 2012.
In fiscal 2012, we purchased 142,305 shares asteof@pproximately $2.1 million.
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Performance Grapl

The graph below matches AngioDynamics, Inc.’s clativé 5-Year total shareholder return on commonkstaith the cumulative total
returns of the NASDAQ Composite index, the RDG 3@ Medical Devices index, and the NASDAQ Medigguipment index. The gra
tracks the performance of a $100 investment incommmon stock and in each index (with the reinvestéall dividends) from 5/31/2008
5/31/2013. The stock price performance includethig graph is not necessarily indicative of futateck price performance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN®

Ao Angalrynamics, Ing., the HASDAG Cormposile Indae, e MNASOAD Medical Equipmenl Inges,
and Tha FDG SmalGap Medicl Devices Index
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* $100 invested on 5/31/08 in stock or index, inahgdieinvestment of dividend
RDG
SmallCap
NASDAQ
NASDAQ Medical Medical
ANGO Composite Equipment Devices
5/31/0¢ 100.0¢ 100.0¢ 100.0( 100.0(
8/31/0¢ 106.0% 92.1¢ 98.6¢ 104.1:
11/30/0¢ 77.02 60.62 58.4i 72.1€
2/28/0¢ 76.6: 54.8i 47.71 57.5¢€
5/31/0¢ 79.21 70.2% 60.94 69.3¢
8/31/0¢ 83.6( 80.2( 74.7¢ 82.27
11/30/0¢ 100.3¢ 85.7¢ 79.0¢ 81.7:
2/28/1( 104.9; 89.07 90.5¢ 92.9¢
5/31/1( 95.3¢ 89.8¢ 87.5¢ 92.6¢
8/31/1( 98.2¢ 85.0¢ 77.15 85.5¢
11/30/1( 90.1¢ 100.6¢ 84.6( 91.71
2/28/11] 108.5¢ 112.5¢ 100.7¢ 107.5¢
5/31/11 101.3¢ 115.0% 109.2: 119.1¢
8/31/11 92.9¢ 105.21] 98.3¢ 102.9¢
11/30/1: 97.61 107.2( 100.9¢ 99.7¢
2/29/1% 84.0¢ 121.0¢ 113.8: 108.4:
5/31/1z 77.7¢% 115.7( 109.3: 103.3:
8/31/1: 73.8¢ 126.0¢ 112.1¢ 108.9¢
11/30/1: 68.04 124.3( 114.0¢ 105.4¢
2/28/1: 79.9¢ 131.0¢ 116.4¢ 110.9¢
5/31/1: 70.2¢ 143.8¢ 119.7: 122.9(
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ltem 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Da

You should read the following selected financialbda conjunction with our consolidated financiltements and the related notes and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations” included elsesg in this annual report on Form
10-K. The consolidated statements of operations ftatthe fiscal years ended May 31, 2013, May281.,2, and May 31, 2011, and the
consolidated balance sheet data as of May 31, 20dMay 31, 2012, are derived from the audited alfeted financial statements that are
included elsewhere in this annual report on ForaiK1The consolidated statements of operations fivaitthe fiscal years ended May 31, 2010
and May 31, 2009, and the consolidated balance sla¢e as of May 31, 2011, May 31, 2010 and May2809, are derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements not includedhis &annual report on Form 10-K. Historical resalts not necessarily indicative of the results
of operations to be expected for future periode. [Sete A of “Notes to Consolidated Financial Stagats” for a description of the method
that we used to compute our historical basic ahdetl net income per share attributable to comnieckbolders.

Year ended
(Amounts in thousands, except per share information
May 31, 2013 May 31, 2012 May 31, 2011 May 31, 201C May 31, 2008
(b) (©) (b) () (@ (b) (e) (b) (b) (d)
Consolidated Statements of Operations Date
Net sales $ 342,02 $ 221,78 $ 215,75( $ 216,03 $ 195,05
Cost of sale: 173,03 95,82¢ 90,047 89,06¢ 74,98¢
Gross profit 168,98 125,95¢ 125,70: 126,96¢ 120,06!
Operating expenst
Research and developmt 26,31¢ 20,51 21,37 19,27¢ 17,91«
Sales and marketir 76,12: 64,50¢ 58,12: 60,92! 57,79
General and administrati 26,12; 18,33« 17,82¢ 16,431 19,12
Amortization of intangible: 16,34¢ 9,40¢ 9,23¢ 9,46¢ 9,12¢
Change in fair value of contingent
consideratior 1,58: — — — —
Acquisition, restructuring and other
items, ne 13,80( 16,16¢ 7,182 — —
Medical device excise te 1,60( — — — —
Total operating expens 161,89! 128,92 113,74( 106,09¢ 103,96:
Operating income (lost 7,09/ (2,967) 11,96 20,87: 16,10/
Other (expenses) incon
Interest incom 10¢ 1,09( 737 713 1,55¢
Interest expens (5,279) (50¢) (499) (672) (737)
Other (expenses) incon (2,569 (2,9072) (1,509 (1,299 (1,780
Total other (expenses) income, (7,73%) (2,320 (1,265 (1,257 (952)
(Loss) income before income tax
provision (643) (5,282) 10,69¢ 19,61¢ 15,15:
Income tax (benefit) provisic (32) (18¢) 2,581 7,307 5,22(
Net (loss) incom $ (612) $ (5,099 $ 8,11 $ 12,310 $ 9,93:
(Loss) earnings per she
Basic $ (0.02) $ (0.20) $ 0.3: $ 0.5C $ 0.41
Diluted $ (0.02) $ (0.20) $ 0.32 $ 0.5C $ 0.41
Weighted average number of shares used in
per share calculatiol
Basic 34,817,27 25,382,29 24,870,00 24,580,48 24,363,23
Diluted 34,817,27 25,382,29 25,132,76 24,786,84 24,512,67
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As of
May 31, May 31, May 31, May 31, May 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securifjt $ 23,95t $ 40,07¢ $131,54. $100,07: $ 68,18"
Working capital 78,07¢ 103,81t 168,79¢ 145,33« 118,89¢
Total asset 791,58 721,76¢ 437,42: 423,92! 408,70:
Non-current liabilities 135,00( 142,50( 6,27¢ 6,55( 6,81(
Retained earning 29,56: 30,17¢ 35,26¢ 27,15 14,84(
Total stockholder equity 526,83( 523,52( 405,63¢ 391,34¢ 372,19

(a) Cash, cash equivalents and marketable sesuntitide auctiomate investments of $1,850,000 at May 31, 2013, BBy2012, May 3.
2011, May 31, 2010, and May 31, 2009, and escrewivable of $2,500,000 at May 31, 20

(b) Fiscal years 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 20¢leded the impact of stock based compensation esgofeam our adoption of
authoritative guidance for share based paymentdsiard the impact on operating income was apprdgign&4.6 million, $4.1 million
$ 4.6 million, $4.9 million and $5.8 million, resgerely. The impact on net income was approxima$dy0 million or $0.09 per basic
and diluted share for fiscal 2013, $2.7 million$@:11 per basic and diluted share for fiscal 28229 million or $0.12 per basic and
diluted share for fiscal 2011, $3.1 million or $8 der basic and diluted share for fiscal 2010 &hd #illion or $0.15 per basic and
diluted share for fiscal 2009. See Notes A and hConsolidated Financial Statements for addfiarformation.

(c) The fiscal 2013 results included, in “Acquisiti restructuring and other items, net”, $7.6 wiilin transaction and related costs of the
Navilyst and Mircrosulis acquisitions, $2.5 milliam costs associated with the closure of the Cadgleri UK facility, $1.6 million ir
impairment costs associated with the discontinuahe@eproduct offering and $1.4 million in litigati costs

(d) To conform to the fiscal 2010 presentation;di2009 results included reclassifications madadtude strategic business unit
management in marketing costs. The reclassificatieaulted in an increase in marketing costs afeteease in general and
administrative costs of $1 million in fiscal 20(

(e) The fiscal 2011 results included, in “Acquisitj restructuring and other items, net”, $7.2 willof impairment charges related to our
decision to not continue development of the Medrigitport technology, the write down of Centrospail royalties due to lower than
anticipated sales and executive transition ci

(H The fiscal 2012 results included, in “Acquisiti, restructuring and other items, net”, $11.2ionillin cost related to the Navilyst
acquisition, $2.3 million in CEO and executive s#ion costs, $1.8 million in costs associated witising the UK facility, $604
thousand related to the Microsulis strategic pastmg, $465 thousand in costs related to pateégatiobn, partially offset by $201
thousand from the sale of the Centros product

() Inaddition to the costs related to the Navipsquisition defined in the preceding note, odabee sheet as of May 31, 2012 was
impacted by the acquisition which was financedtigiothe issuance of approximately 9.5 million skareour common stock, $150
million in debt financing and $97 million in cashdditionally, at May 31, 2012, we had $2.5 millionescrow receivable and $2.4
million in net deferred financing costs, recordedhacomponent of other assets, on our balance. Se=Note A to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional details of tsaequired and liabilities assumed at the daseqftiisition.
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionsid Results of Operation

The following information should be read togethéthwthe audited consolidated financial statementsthe notes thereto and other
information included elsewhere in this annual réporForm 10-K.

Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report on Form 10-K, including the et entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analgp$isinancial Condition and
Results of Operations”, contains forward-lookingteiments within the meaning of the Private Se@agrititigation Reform Act of 1995. All
statements regarding AngioDynamiexpected future financial position, results of @iens, cash flows, business strategy, budgetfegiaa
costs, capital expenditures, products, competjingtions, growth opportunities, plans and objextiof management for future operations, as
well as statements that include the words sucleggetts,” “reaffirms” “intends,” “anticipates,” “ahs,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” or
variations of such words and similar expressiorsfarward-looking statements. These forward loglstatements are not guarantees of
future performance and are subject to risks anémainties. Investors are cautioned that actuattsver results may differ from our
expectations. Factors that may affect the actiwllt®include, without limitation, our ability teedelop our existing and new products, future
actions by the FDA or other regulatory agenciesults of pending or future clinical trials, the uéts of ongoing litigation, overall economic
conditions, general market conditions, market ataoege, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuatitimes gffects on pricing from group
purchasing organizations and competition, as vetii ability to integrate purchased businessegiisas the risk factors listed in Item 1A
this annual report on Form 10-K.

Although we believe that the assumptions underlyiregforward-looking statements contained heregrnraasonable, any of the
assumptions could be inaccurate and, thereforeg @ be no assurance that the forward-lookintgreents included in this annual report on
Form 10-K will prove to be accurate. In light okthignificant uncertainties inherent in the forwrdking statements included herein, the
inclusion of such information should not be regdrde a representation by us or any other persomwtinabjectives and plans will be
achieved. Any forward-looking statements are madsyant to the Private Securities Litigation Refdknt of 1995 and, as such, speak only
as of the date made. We disclaim any obligatiompwate the forward-looking statements. Investoescautioned not to place undue reliance
on these forward-looking statements which speak aslof the date stated, or if no date is statedf she date of this document.

Overview

We design, manufacture and sell a wide range ofeakdurgical and diagnostic devices used by gRifmal healthcare providers for
vascular access, for the treatment of periphersdwlar disease and for use in oncology and surgatéihgs. Our devices are generally use
minimally invasive, image-guided procedures. Mdsbur products are intended to be used once amddisearded, or they may be
temporarily implanted for short- or long-term use.

Effective June 1, 2012, we consider our busine$®ta single segment entity — the development, faature and sale on a global basis
of medical devices for vascular access, surgemplperal vascular disease and oncology. Our chpefating decision maker (CEQ) evaluates
the various global product portfolios on a net sdlasis. Executives reporting in to the CEO inclimtse responsible for operations and
supply chain management, research and developsaas, franchise marketing and certain corporatetions. The CEO evaluates
profitability, investment and cash flow metrics@eonsolidated worldwide basis due to shared itrfrettire and resources. Prior to fiscal y
2013, our business was organized as two segmeassular and Oncology/Surgery, each under the direcf a general manager with direct
responsibility for all sales, marketing and proddevelopment activities.
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Our principal competitive advantages are our dedicanarket focus, established brands and innovptiwéucts. We believe our
dedicated focus enhances patient care and engdogalty among our customers. As a provider ofrivéational devices for over two
decades, we believe we have established AngioDysilmiands as premium performance products. Wahothte frequently with leading
interventional physicians in developing our produanid rely on these relationships to further supmarbrands.

For the past five fiscal years, over 95% of ourssés were from single-use, disposable products.

.

The following table sets forth our aggregate nitssicom the following product categories for oastlthree fiscal years ending May @

2013 2012 2011
% of % of % of
Net Sales Net Sale: Net Sales Net Sale: Net Sales Net Sale:
Peripheral Vascular $188,18: 55% $ 95,20( 43% $ 86,99. 40%
Access 106,69( 31% 63,85: 29% 62,53( 29%
Vascular 294,87: 86% 159,05 72% 149,52. 69%
Oncology/Surgen 47,15t 14% 62,73( 28% 66,22¢ 31%
Total $342,02¢ 10C% $221,78 10C% $215,75( 10C%

We sell our products in the United States througlrect sales force and outside the U.S. througbmabination of direct sales and
distributor relationships. For fiscal years 201812 and 2011, net sales outside the U.S. were 28%,and 12%, respectively.

Our growth depends in large part on the continuotisduction of new and innovative products, togetwith ongoing enhancements to
our existing products, through internal productelegment, technology licensing and strategic atksn We recognize the importance of, and
intend to continue to make investments in, reseanchdevelopment. For fiscal 2013, 2012 and 20ad research and development (“R&D")
expenditures were $26.3 million, $20.5 million &#i.4 million, respectively, and constituted 7.22% and 9.9%, respectively, of net
sales. R&D expenses include costs to develop nedugts, enhance existing products, validate neweahadnced products, manage clinical,
regulatory and medical affairs and our intellectuaiperty.

We are also seeking to grow through selective attipns of complementary businesses and technaolyielanuary 2007, we
completed the acquisition of RITA Medical Systefns,, or RITA, which established our position, waibve, as the only company focused
on minimally-invasive treatments for cancer pasemith an emphasis on the growing segment of ist&ienal oncology. The acquisition
created a diversified medical technology comparth wibroad line of access, diagnostic and therapprdaducts that enable interventional
physicians and surgeons to treat vascular diseaseancerous tumors. Interventional oncology catinto be a large and growing marke
addition, in May 2008 we acquired the Nanoknifeatibh system which is complementary to our diveféering of local oncology therapies,
including market-leading RFA systems and Habib &ealsection devices. In June 2008, we compleddhuisition of certain U.S. and
U.K. assets of Diomed, Inc. With this acquisitiarg substantially strengthened our position in tlaeket for the treatment of varicose veins.
The combination of endovenous laser products withexisting venous product line provides us wittbenprehensive venous product
offering. In May 2012, we completed the acquisittdrNavilyst, providing us with entry into the ftllimanagement business with a market
leading product line and significantly enhancing presence in the vascular access market. On Qct&h@012, we acquired all the
outstanding capital stock of Vortex Medical, Irecprivately-held company focused on the developraadtcommercialization of medical
devices for venous drainage and the removal oftbrgs, or blood clots, from occluded blood vesgets March 22, 2012, we established a
strategic relationship with, and on February 1,2@te completed the acquisition of certain assgtsliwrosulis Medical Ltd., a U.K. based
company specializing in minimally-invasive microveaablation technology.
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Except to the extent we can further use our cadiaon, revolver capacity or equity securities agiaition capital, we will require
additional equity or debt financing to fund anyuitg significant acquisitions.

For fiscal 2013, approximately 15% of our prodwaes were derived from products manufactured fdwyuthird parties, compared with
27% for fiscal 2012, and 32% for fiscal 2011. Tleegentage decrease in fiscal 2013 was due to thease in revenue from Navilyst prodt
combined with decreased sales of LC Beads, a ptachich we ceased distributing on December 31, 2Uh# decrease in fiscal 2012 was
primarily attributable to the aforementioned deseshsales of LC Beads. We intend to manufacture maducts in-house to lower product
costs and increase profitability.

Our ability to increase our profitability will depd in large part on improving gross profit margiRactors such as changes in our
product mix, new technologies and unforeseen gmiessures may cause our margins to grow at a slateethan we have anticipated or to
decline.

Recent Developments
Acquisition of Microsulis Medical Ltd.

On March 22, 2012, we established a strategicioelstip with Microsulis Medical Ltd. (“Microsulis})a U.K.-based company
specializing in minimally-invasive, microwave alidait technology for the coagulation of soft tissue.

The relationship included an initial $5 million istment in Microsulis through the purchase of sepieferred stock, representing a
14.3% ownership position, exclusive distributioghtis to market and sell their microwave ablatiostems in all markets outside the United
States from May 2012 through December 2013, arekalusive option to purchase at any time until 8eyliter 22, 2013, substantially all of
the global assets of Microsulis Medical, Ltd.

On February 1, 2013, we completed the acquisitiaredain assets of Microsulis, which we have aoted for as a business
combination, for cash payments at closing tota#i§.0 million, subject to a working capital adjustm, a $5.0 million payment due on
December 31, 2013 and potential additional caskideration payable upon performance over the nieetyears. We also assumed $1.6
million of liabilities.

The total estimated purchase consideration of $88l®n included the initial investment of $5.0 lfian, closing payments totaling
$10.5 million, a $5.0 million payment due on Decem®1, 2013 and the estimated fair value of coetmgonsideration (Earn out) of $13.2
million. The estimated fair value of contingent siteration is based on projected net sales ovaritieeyear period following the closing of
the acquisition. The amount of the Earn out consiiten that could be paid on net sales is not éahit

The estimated purchase consideration exceededitheafue of the acquired net assets by $19.3onilind was recorded as goodwiill.
Goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. Core teslhgies are being amortized over their estimatedulidives ranging from 10 to 15 years.
During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2013, we inetliacquisition related costs of $312 thousandghviiere expensed to “Acquisition,
restructuring and other items, net” in the stateneéwperations. We have not finalized the purchasmunting, which may be adjusted as
further information about conditions existing a& #hcquisition date becomes available.

Acquisition of Vortex Medical Inc.

On October 15, 2012, we acquired all the outstandapital stock of Vortex Medical, Inc., a privatdleld company focused on the
development and commercialization of medical des/foe venous drainage and the removal of thromtublood clots, from occluded blood
vessels. Vortex’s principal product is the AngioVasystem, which includes the AngioVac Cannula anduiir The AngioVac Cannula ha
proprietary balloon-
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actuated, expandable, funnel-shaped distal tipathaiinces flow, prevents clogging of the cannuthfaailitates en bloc, or whole removal of
undesirable intravascular material. Both the Angio\Cannula and Circuit are FDA-cleared for userdpeixtracorporeal bypass for up to 6
hours. An application for CE Mark approval has béleal.

The total estimated purchase consideration of $78I®n included an upfront payment of $15.1 nuhi and the estimated fair value of
contingent (Earn out) consideration of $60.3 milli$40 million of which is guaranteed. The estirdd&ar value of contingent consideration
is based on projected AngioVac net sales in the/éan period following the closing. The amountloé Earn out consideration that could be
paid on AngioVac net sales is not limited.

The estimated purchase consideration exceededitheafue of the acquired net assets by $29.5anilind was recorded as goodwiill.
Goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes. Carehinologies are being amortized over their estichaseful lives of approximately 15 years
as revenues are earned from the sales of relabeldigis. During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2@i8jncurred acquisition related costs of
$645 thousand, which were expensed to “Acquisitiestructuring and other items, net” in the statenoé operations. We have not finalized
the purchase accounting, which may be adjustedrtteef information about conditions existing at #oguisition date becomes available.

Acquisition of Navilyst

On May, 22, 2012, we completed the acquisitionrofgtely-held Navilyst, a global medical device quamy with strengths in the
vascular access, interventional radiology and uatetional cardiology markets. The acquisition agldted transaction costs were financed
through the issuance of approximately 9.5 millibares of our common stock, $150 million in drawguasition debt financing and $97
million of cash. Based on the closing price of stack of $12.44 on the day prior to the transactibe purchase price was approximately
$361 million.

The fiscal year ended May 31, 2013 and 2012, iredu®l7.3 million and $11.2 million, respectively tiansaction and severance costs
related to the Navilyst acquisition. These costsiacluded in “Acquisition, restructuring and otligems, net” in the statement of operations.
Investment funds affiliated with Avista Capital Bears, former owners of Navilyst, received apprcdiety 9.5 million shares of our common
stock and, as of May 31, 2013, held approximat&hb 2f our outstanding shares. Investment fundtiaaéd with Avista Capital Partners
entered into a stockholders agreement with us @pthe transaction and also appointed two aolditi directors to our existing Board of
Directors.

To satisfy any working capital adjustment and pt#&mdemnification claims that may arise, $19.illion of purchase consideration
had been placed in escrow, including approximéeb&i.0 million in cash and approximately 415 thowssinares of common stock,
determined based on the closing price of $12.4therday prior to the transaction. The indemnifizattlaims period will terminate on
July 15, 2013. At May 31, 2012, we had $2.5 millafrreceivable related to the working capital atijuent recorded as escrow receivable on
the balance sheet. During the third fiscal quast&2013, we received $2.5 million of cash from &serow fund to satisfy this receivable.

Goodwill recorded as a result of the acquisitiors 8&44.7 million. Intangible assets acquired, othan goodwill, totaled
approximately $107.1 million, of which $49.4 millidvas been identified as customer relationships/€H weighted average useful life),
$32.5 million of trademarks (of which $28.6 millitlas been determined to have an indefinite usiééuhhd the remaining $3.9 million has a
7 year weighted average useful life), $15.1 millann-process research and development (indefirggful life until completed) and $10.1
million of technology (6-year weighted average utéfe).

The IPR&D assets, which were accounted for as inifeflived assets at the time of acquisition, esent the development of a
biomedical polymer additive for use in PICC andesthascular access product lines and a power afjerport which are valued at $12.1
million and $3.0 million, respectively. The biomedi polymer
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additive product recently received regulatory appt@nd the product was released in the UniteceStatOctober 2012 and is being
amortized over a 10 year useful life. The poweedtgble port is expected to be released in theedr8tates in fiscal 2014, subject to
regulatory approvals. The fair value of these igihle assets was determined based upon the preslertof expected future cash flows
adjusted for the probability of technological aminenercial risk, utilizing a risk-adjusted discouate.

Discontinuance of Benephit Product Offering

During the third fiscal quarter of 2013, we made decision to discontinue our Benephit productraffe Accordingly, we recorded
$1.6 million of expenses during the year ended Bthy2013. These costs are included in “Acquisiti@structuring and other items, net” in
the statement of operations.

Closure of UK facility

During the first fiscal quarter of 2012, we made ttecision to close our Cambridge, UK facility arahsfer the production of lasers to
our Queensbury, NY facility. We completed the tfanen January 2013. The total cost of this projeas approximately $4.3 million. The
statement of operations for the year ended May813 included charges of $2.5 million for costauimed associated with this closure and
included $1.8 million for fiscal 2012. The chargdricluded in “Acquisition, restructuring and otliE@ms, net” in the statement of operations.

Regulatory Matters

On May 27, 2011, we received a Warning Letter ffelDA in connection with its inspection of our Quelems/, NY manufacturing
facility. In the Warning Letter, FDA cited deficieies in the response letter we provided FDA peirtgito the inspection that occurred from
January 4 to January 13, 2011. The deficienciege@lto our internal procedures for medical dexépmrting, corrections and removals and
complaint handling. We responded to the Warningdreind completed corrective and preventive actiorsgldress the observations noted.

In December 2011, we initiated a comprehensive iQuahll to Action Program to review and augment Quality Management
Systems at our Queensbury facility. To acceleraémentation of the program, we engaged a teagmtefnal regulatory and quality expe
and reallocated a significant number of engineesimgj product development resources to supportthjsorate initiative. From inception of
the Quality Call to Action Program through fisc@l13, we have incurred $3.2 million in direct cas$sociated with the program.

On February 10, 2012, we received from FDA a Fo8&®, 4.ist of Investigational Observations, in conti@t with its inspection of our
Queensbury facility from November 14, 2011 to Felbyul0, 2012. The Form 483 contained 12 observatielated to, among other things,
our CAPA (Corrective and Preventive Action) syst&MR (Medical Device Reporting), complaint investigpn, corrections and removals,
acceptance criteria and training. Some of the oasiens contained in the Form 483 were repeat obtiens from the May 27, 2011 Warni
Letter.

On February 13, 2012, we received from FDA a Fo83 ih connection with its inspection of our Freméadility from January 12,
2012 to February 13, 2012. The Form 483 containedbservations related to, among other things,@APA system, design controls, risk
management and training. We provided responseB£ovithin 15 business days of our receipt of therfr@d83s.

On September 24, 2012, we received from FDA a FH88in connection with its subsequent inspectioawfQueensbury, NY facility
from September 6 to September 14, and Septembtier 3@ptember 24. This re-inspection followed ospomse to the original Form 483
issued by FDA on February 13, 2012. The Form 488ained 5 observations related to 510(k) decisioosiplaint investigations, acceptance
criteria, corrective and preventive actions anthing. All but one of the observations in the Fot88 related to events that occurred
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before the date that we had indicated to FDA ingrervious responses that our corrective and reriediactivities related to our Quality Call
to Action would be completed. We provided resporied=DA within 15 business days of our receipttreff Form 483.

On November 28, 2012, FDA completed an inspectfaruo Manchester, GA facility and no Form 483 obations were issued.

In June 2013, we received approval from FDA to cama clinical trial to study the use of the NandKirin the treatment of focal
prostate cancer. We are moving forward with instial review board (IRB) submissions and anti@paammencing patient enrollment
during our second quarter of fiscal 2014, whichseNdvember 30, 2013.

We will continue to work closely with FDA to res@hany outstanding issues. Unless the items raistftkipreviously disclosed
Warning Letters and Form 483s are corrected to BBAtisfaction or we come to some other arrangemiémt=DA finally resolving such
matters, we may be subject to additional regulatorggal action, including the issuance of warngtters, injunction, seizure or recall of
products, imposition of fines or penalties or opiagarestrictions on our facilities. Such actiomalilt significantly disrupt our ongoing
business and operations and have a material adwepset on our financial position and operatingutess

Critical Accounting Policies and Use of Estimates

Our significant accounting policies are summarizeNote A to our consolidated financial statementfuded elsewhere in this annual
report on Form 1@<. While all these significant accounting policiféect the reporting of our financial condition am$ults of operations, v
view certain of these policies as critical. Pokcaetermined to be critical are those policies tizat the most significant impact on our
financial statements and require us to use a grdatiree of judgment and/or estimates. Actual tesoy differ from those estimates. The
accounting policies identified as critical are alofws:

Revenue Recognitic

We recognize revenue in accordance with generatig@ed accounting principles as outlined in th€'SRuthoritative guidance on
revenue recognition which requires that four basiteria be met before revenue can be recognizege(suasive evidence that an
arrangement exists; (ii) the price is fixed or deti@able; (iii) collectability is reasonably assdrand (iv) product delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered. Decisions relatiggttion (i) regarding collectability are basagon our judgments, as discussed under
“Accounts Receivable” below, and should conditichange in the future and cause us to determinetitésion is not met; our results of
operations may be affected. We recognize revereiefrsales taxes assessed by any governmentaligyitlas products are shipped, based
on F.O.B. shipping point terms when title and $koss passes to customers. We negotiate shigpidgredit terms on a customer-by-
customer basis and products are shipped at ancagpes price. All product returns must be pmproved by us and customers may be su
to a 20% restocking charge. To be accepted, anedysroduct must be unadulterated, undamaged amdabdeast 12 months remaining prior
to its expiration date.

We chose to early adopt, effective with the thiududer of fiscal 2010, updated authoritative gu@afor revenue recognition relating to
the accounting treatment for revenue arrangembatsrivolve more than one deliverable or unit afamting. At the same time, we also
adopted the updated guidance relating to certaientge arrangements that include software elemieither of these had a material effect on
our consolidated financial statements.

Accounts Receivab

Accounts receivable, principally trade, are gergidlie within 30 to 90 days and are stated at atsodure from customers, net of an
allowance for sales returns and doubtful accoWes perform ongoing credit
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evaluations of our customers and adjust creditéil@sed upon payment history and the custawerrent creditworthiness, as determine

a review of their current credit information. Wentiouously monitor aging reports, collections agmpents from customers, and maintain a
provision for estimated credit losses based uparhistorical experience and any specific custonadiection issues that we identify. While
such credit losses have historically been withinepectations and the provisions established,amaat guarantee that the same credit loss
rates will be experienced in the future. We writieagcounts receivable when they are determindzktancollectible. For fiscal years 2013,
2012 and 2011, our write offs of accounts recewdialve been insignificant.

Income Taxe

In preparing our financial statements, we calculateme tax expense for each jurisdiction in whighoperate. This involves estimat
actual current taxes due plus assessing tempoiféeyethces arising from differing treatment for tamd accounting purposes that are recordec
as deferred tax assets and liabilities. We peralljievaluate deferred tax assets, capital losyfmawards and tax credit carryforwards to
determine their recoverability based primarily am ability to generate future taxable income arpitehgains. Where their recovery is not
likely, we estimate a valuation allowance and rd@corresponding additional tax expense in odestant of operations. If actual results
differ from our estimates due to changes in assiomptthe provision for income taxes could be mallgraffected. As of May 31, 2013, our
valuation allowance and net deferred tax asset eygpeoximately $0.7 million and $17.6 million, resgively. We have a total of
$166.5 million of Federal net operating loss carmwfards and $181.9 million of state net operatogsIcarryforwards remaining from
acquisitions. These losses could be significamjtéd under Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) Sectd®2. Our analysis of acquisitions’
ownership changes as defined in IRC Section 38@&stiloat approximately $31.1 million of remainingd€eal net operating losses and $27.2
million of remaining state net operating lossed @bire prior to utilization. The gross deferrest fasset related to the net operating losses
reflects this limitation.

In order to ensure the realizability of our defdrtax assets, we need to generate $9.2 millioaxattile income for the next ten years
then $5.4 million of taxable income for the finajtet years of the remaining eighteen year carryéodiperiod. If we are unable to meet these
minimum taxable levels, the deferred tax assets stithype utilized in future years if we can make previous year taxable income short falls
prior to the expiration of the net operating loasrgforwards. We have determined that we havedafit existing levels of preax earnings t
generate sufficient taxable income to realize thiedeferred tax assets recorded on our balancésshee

In order to support the realizability of our nefeteed tax asset, we projected our parincome utilizing a combination of historicalc
projected results. Utilizing this projected pre-tagome, we have projected taxable income takibhg donsideration existing levels of
permanent differences including stock option exsercdeductions and non-deductible expenses anéikesal of significant temporary
differences.

Our Federal net operating loss carryforwards ddayf 31, 2013, after considering IRC Section 382thtions, are $135.4 million. The
expiration of the Federal net operating loss camyérds are as follows: $20.8 million between 2@hd 2021, $9.9 million between 2022 :
2023 and $104.7 million between 2017 and 2031.

Our state net operating loss carryforwards as of 81 2013 after considering remaining IRC Sec888 limitations are $154.7 millic
which expire in various years from 2027 to 2031.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. Federalgdigtion and various state and foreign jurisdictioim the normal course of business
are subject to examination by taxing authoritiesuighout the world. The Internal Revenue ServitR$”) completed an examination of our
Federal income tax returns for fiscal years 20062007 in February 2009 which did not result inaenial impact on our results of
operations or financial position. During fiscal y@812, New York State completed an examinatioausfNew York State Franchise Tax
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returns for fiscal years 2005 to 2008. In relatiothis examination, income tax expense in fis€dlincludes an out-of-period benefit of
$300,000 to correct an error that originated iopyeears related to certain state tax credits. Aalthlly, as a result of the audit, we were able
to claim state tax credits of $210,000 that arenged in fiscal year 2012. Fiscal years 2010 thno2@13 remain open to examination by the
various tax authorities. New York State is curngmatliditing Navilyst's franchise tax filings for 28@hrough 2011, we do not anticipate any
material adjustments will result. We analyzed §lipositions in all of the Federal and state jud8dins where we are required to file income
taxes, as well as all open tax years in thesediatisns and believe that our income tax filing itioss and deductions will be sustained on
audit and we do not anticipate any adjustmentsredlult in a material adverse effect on our finahcondition, results of operations or cash
flows.

We do not anticipate that the amount of unrecoghta& benefits will significantly change in the héxelve months.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (atdsted cost which approximates the first-in, first-mmethod) or market. On a quarterly
basis, we review inventory quantities on hand aralyae the provision for excess and obsolete irorgritased primarily on product
expiration dating and our estimated sales foreedsth is based on sales history, and anticipataaé¢ demand. Our estimates of future
product demand may not be accurate and we may statkeor overstate the provision required for exeesl obsolete inventory. According
any significant unanticipated changes in demandddeave a significant impact on the value of oweintory and results of operations. In
conjunction with the Navilyst acquisition, the aogd inventory was stepped up to its net realizabalee and was expensed in cost of goods
sold in the statement of operations based on ioventrns.

Property, Plant and Equipme

We state property, plant and equipment at cost,desumulated depreciation, and depreciate thes¢sassing the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. We determine baised on our estimates of the period over whietassets will generate revenue. We
evaluate these assets for impairment annually ohasges in circumstances or the occurrence oftgegeiggest the remaining value is not
recoverable. Any change in condition that wouldseaus to change our estimate of the useful livesgrbup or class of assets may result in
impairment and/or significantly affect depreciatexpense on a prospective basis.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill and indedifiited intangible assets are amortized over #gimated useful lives, which range
between three and twenty years, on either a stréigghbasis over the expected period of benefa®revenues are earned from the sales of
the related products. We periodically review thiéinegted useful lives of our intangible assets andew such assets for impairment whene
events or changes in circumstances indicate teatdtrying value of the assets may not be recoleer@ur determination of impairment is
based on estimates of future cash flows. If amuitale asset is considered to be impaired, the atmfithe impairment will equal the excess
of the carrying value over the fair value of theeds

Acquired IPR&D has an indefinite life and is not@mized until completion and development of thejgey at which time the IPR&D
becomes an amortizable asset. If the related grigi@ot completed in a timely manner or the proje¢erminated or abandoned, we may |
an impairment related to the IPR&D, calculatedresdxcess of the asset's carrying value overitsvédue.

Our policy defines IPR&D as the value assignedtsé projects for which the related products hateeceived regulatory approval
and have no alternative future use. Determiningothrtion of the purchase price allocated to IPR&Quires us to make significant estimates.
The amount of the purchase price allocated to IPR&@etermined by estimating the future cash floWsach project or technology and
discounting the net
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cash flows back to their present values. The discmate used is determined at the time of measuremeccordance with accepted valuation
methods. These methodologies include considerafitime risk of the project not achieving commerégalsibility.

At the time of acquisition, we expect that all aicgd IPR&D will reach technological feasibility, bthere can be no assurance that the
commercial viability of these products will actyalie achieved. The nature of the efforts to devétepacquired technologies into
commercially viable products consists principalfyptanning, designing, and conducting clinical Isinecessary to obtain regulatory
approvals. The risks associated with achieving ceroialization include, but are not limited to, deta failure to obtain regulatory approvals
to conduct clinical trials, delay or failure to abt required market clearances, or delays or issitbspatent issuance, or validity and
litigation. If commercial viability were not achied, we would likely look to other alternatives toyide these therapies.

Goodwill and other intangible assets that havefinde useful lives are not amortized, but ratheee tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if impairment indicators arise. @aill represents the excess of the purchase prieethe fair value of the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired in eactin@ss combination. Goodwill and intangible assetselbeen recorded at either incurred or
allocated cost. Allocated costs were based on ctispdair market values at the date of acquisitMfe have one intangible asset which has

been assigned an indefinite life, the NAMIC tradekrthat was recently acquired as part of our adtijisof Navilyst, and is valued at $28.6
million.

For goodwill, the impairment test requires a corgear of the estimated fair value of the reportimd to which the goodwill is assignt
to the sum of the carrying value of the assetsliabdities of that unit. If the sum of the carrgvalue of the assets and liabilities of a
reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the rapgrtnit, the carrying value of the reporting usitioodwill is reduced to its implied fair value
through an adjustment to the goodwill balance, Iteguin an impairment charge. Our determinationngpairment is based on estimates of
future cash flows. Effective June 1, 2012, we cdesour business to be a single operating segnmity e the development, manufacture ¢
sale on a global basis of medical devices for Mas@ccess, surgery, peripheral vascular diseasereplogy.

Stock-based compensation

We recognize compensation expense for all sharedljgsyment awards made to our employees and disdntduding employee stock
options and employee stock purchases related t8tmak Purchase Plan based on estimated fair valiesecognize compensation expense
for our stock awards on a straight-line basis t¢lerequisite service periods of the awards, whigenerally the vesting period.

For fiscal 2013, stock based compensation wasrilion pre-tax ($3.0 million after tax). For fisk2012, stock based compensation
was $4.1 million pre-tax ($2.7 million after ta¥or fiscal 2011, stock based compensation was#lion pre-tax ($2.9 million after tax).
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Under the provisions of the guidance adopted, vpeeixto recognize the following future expenseaiwards granted prior to May 31,
2013 ($ in thousands):

Weighted-

Average
Remaining

Unrecognized

Compensatior Vesting

Period
Cost (in years)
Stock options $ 4,59 2.3¢
Non-vested stock awarc $ 4,091 2.54
$ 8,68 2.4t

Unrecognized compensation cost for stock optiomsasented net of 12% assumed annual forfeitures.

The amount of stock-based compensation recognizkdsed on the value of the portion of awardsatatltimately expected to vest.
Guidance requires forfeitures to be estimatedatithe of grant and revised, if necessary, in sylyset periods if actual forfeitures differ
from those estimates. The term “forfeitures” ididist from “cancellations” or “expirations” and mgsents only the unvested portion of the
surrendered option. We currently expect, basechamalysis of our historical forfeitures, that appmately 88% of our options will vest
annually, and we have therefore applied a 12% dratfeiture rate in determining the stock-basethpensation charge recorded. We will re-
evaluate this estimate periodically and adjusfdnfiture rate on a prospective basis as necesd#tignately, the actual expense recognized
over the vesting period will only be for those ssathat actually vest.

For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2013, May 31226nhd May 31, 2011, we used the Black-Scholeswogiricing model (“Black-
Scholes”) as our method of valuation and a singte®a award approach. This fair value is then aiped: on a straight-line basis over the
requisite service periods of the awards, whicheisegally the vesting period. The fair value of shlaased payment awards on the date of the
grant as determined by the Blagkholes model is affected by our stock price a$ agbther assumptions. These assumptions indudeyre
not limited to the expected stock price volatilityer the term of the awards, actual and projectepl@yee stock option exercise behaviors,
and a risk-free interest rate. The risk-free irgerate is based on factual data derived from pudgurces. The expected stock-price volatility
and option life assumptions require significantgoeént which makes them critical accounting estisate

We utilize our historical volatility when estimagjirexpected stock price volatility. We use yielcesabn U.S. Treasury securities for a
period approximating the expected term of the av@astimate the risk-free interest rate. The etqabterm is based on our actual historical
results. The dividend yield is based on the historg expectation of dividend payments. We havepaiut dividends in the past nor do we
expect to pay dividends in the foreseeable futOre. historical data includes information from Mag, 2004, the date of our initial public
offering.
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Results of Operations

Our operating results for fiscal 2013, 2012 and2@e expressed as a percentage of total netisales following table.

Years ended

May 31, 201 May 31, 201; May 31, 201
Net sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 50.€% 43.2% 41.7%
Gross profit 49.4% 56.8% 58.2%
Operating expense
Research and developmt 7.7% 9.2% 9.€%
Sales and marketir 22.2% 29.1% 26.%
General and administratiy 7.€% 8.2% 8.2%
Amortization of intangible: 4.8% 4.2% 4.2%
Change is fair value of contingent considera 0.5% 0.C% 0.C%
Acquisition, restructuring and other items, 4.C% 7.2% 3.2%
Medical device excise te 0.5% 0.C% 0.C%
Total operating expens 47.2% 58.1% 52.71%
Operating income (los! 2.1% (1.2%) 5.5%
Other (expenses) incon
Interest incom 0.C% 0.5% 0.2%
Interest expens (1.5%) (0.2%) (0.2%)
Other expens (0.8%) (1.2%) (0.7%)
Total other (expenses) income, (2.2%) (1.C%) (0.€%)
(Loss) income before income tax provis (0.2%) (2.4%) 5.(%
Income tax (benefit) provisic (0.C%) (0.1%) 1.2%
Net (loss) incomi (0.2%) (2.2%) 3.8%

For fiscal 2013, we reported a net loss of $0.6ioni] or ($0.02) loss per basic and diluted comrsloare, on net sales of $342.0 million
compared with the fiscal 2012 results of a net &fs5.1 million, or ($0. 20) loss per basic antdidid common share, on net sales of $221.8
million. The fiscal 2011 results reported net ineoaf $8.1 million, or $0.32 per diluted common &ham net sales of $215.8 million. The
fiscal 2013 results included $7.6 million in acquis costs, $2.5 million in costs associated wtita closure of the Cambridge, UK facility,
$1.6 million in impairment costs associated wittiscontinuance of a product offering and $1.4 wnillin litigation costs. The fiscal 2012
results included acquisition costs of $11.8 milli$2.3 million in CEO and executive transition epstnd $1.8 million related to the pending
closure of the UK facility. The fiscal 2011 resuiltsluded $7.2 million of impairment charges rethte our decision to not continue
development of the Medron Lightport technology #melwrite down of Centros prepaid royalties duoteer than anticipated sales.

Gross profit was 49.4% in fiscal 2013, 56.8% irdis2012 and 58.3% in fiscal 2011. Fiscal 2013 groargin was reduced by $3.8
million of acquired inventory basis step-up relate@ur recent acquisition activity and approxiniat0.9 million relating to our Quality Call
to Action program. Fiscal 2012 gross margin wasiced by approximately $2.8 million in product récalsts and approximately $2.3 milli
in costs relating to the Quality Call to Action gram.

For 2012 and 2011, we were able to use net opgriatgses (“NOLs”) accumulated by acquired compatdesfset the amount of cash
we paid for Federal and state income taxes. THe loasefit amounted to approximately $1.1 milliord &3.2 million for the years ended
May 31, 2012 and May 31, 2011. We did not use
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net operating losses in 2013. Under purchase atiogumiles, the use of acquired NOLs is accountedf deferred tax assets; therefore, the
related cash tax savings is not reflected in oavigion for income taxes in the statements of cjpara.

Fiscal years ended May 31, 2013 and May 31, 2012

Net salesNet sales are derived from the sale of our prodaratsrelated freight charges, less discounts atimiaged sales returns and
allowances. Net sales for fiscal 2013 of $342.0iom| increased 54% over fiscal 2012 sales of $®illion. This increase was primarily
attributable to sales of products acquired in th@iNst acquisition and microwave products, paltiaffset by the absence of LC Beads sales
following the end of distribution rights on Decemi3d, 2011. LC Bead sales were $21.3 million dufiagal 2012.

From a product line perspective, Peripheral Vascdées increased $93.0 million or 98% from thempyear period to $188.2 million.
This increase was primarily attributable to saleSlavilyst fluid management products. Vascular Asxeales were $106.7 million, an
increase of $42.8 million or 67% from the prior yeariod. This increase is attributable to saleNafilyst PICCs and port products.
Oncology/Surgery sales were $47.2 million, a desged 25% from the prior year. The decrease wasgriiy attributed to the decrease in
Beads sales described earlier, partially offsenbyeased Nanoknife and Microwave product salesokaife sales totaled $12.8 million in
fiscal 2013 and $11.6 million in fiscal 2012.

From a geographic perspective, U.S. sales increé8¥dto $274.8 million in fiscal 2013 compared i@®8.2 million in fiscal 2012,
despite the cessation of the distribution of LC d&ei; December 2011. The addition of product reeenom the Navilyst acquisition was the
primary driver of the increase. International salese $ 67.2 million in fiscal 2013, double the ¥38hillion of reported sales in fiscal 2012.
Products acquired in the Navilyst acquisition wesgponsible for the majority of the increase alasittp Microwave product sales.

Gross profit. Gross profit consists of net sales less the cogbofls sold, which includes the costs of matertsgucts purchased fro
third parties and sold by us, manufacturing persgnmoyalties, freight, business insurance, deptasi of property and equipment and other
manufacturing overhead. Our gross profit as a peage of sales was 49.4% in fiscal 2013 compardul %6.8% in fiscal 2012. The decrease
in gross profit percentage in fiscal 2013 was pripattributable to $3.8 million in costs for steyp in inventory associated with the Navilyst
acquisition and a full year inclusions of the Ngsilproducts which yield lower gross profit.

Research and development expensd®esearch and development (“R&D”) expenses includtscto develop new products, enhance
existing products, validate new and enhanced ptsduotanage clinical, regulatory and medical affaird our intellectual property. R&D
expenses increased by $5.8 million, or 28%, to32dillion in fiscal 2013 compared to the prior ye@hne increase is primarily due to
increased R&D personnel and projects followingNailyst acquisition. As a percentage of net saR&D expenses were 7.7% for fiscal
2013, compared to 9.2% for fiscal 2012.

Sales and marketing expenseSales and marketing (“S&M”) expenses consist prilpaf salaries, commissions, travel and related
business expenses, attendance at medical societjngee product promotions and samples. S&M expemsreased $11.6 million or 18% to
$76.1 million in fiscal 2013 compared to $64.5 raiilin fiscal 2012. This increase is primarily doethe addition of Navilyst sales and
marketing personnel and increased Internationaksstpenses as we continue to expand our Intenaatiosiness. As a percentage of net
sales, S&M expenses were 22.3% for fiscal 2013 @wetpto 29.1% for fiscal 2012.

General and administrative expensesGeneral and administrative (“G&A”) expenses imlgs the cost of executive management,
finance, accounting, legal, human resources amdrrdtion technology and the administrative andgssibnal costs associated with those
activities. G&A expenses increased $7.8 million, or
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43%, to $26.1 million in fiscal 2013 compared t@®Lmillion in fiscal 2012 primarily due to the ation of Navilyst personnel. G&A
expenses decreased to 7.6% of net sales in fied&8l @mpared to 8.3% of net sales in fiscal 2012.

Amortization of intangibles. Amortization of intangibles was $16.3 million irséal 2013 compared to $9.4 million in fiscal 20IRe
$6.9 million increase was primarily related to atimation of intangibles acquired in the Navilystasition.

Change in fair value of contingent considerationThe fiscal 2013 results include expense of $1.@anirelated to the change in fair
value of the contingent consideration associatel thie Vortex and Microsulis acquisitions. Theraeveo similar contingent consideration
arrangements in the prior year period.

Acquisition, restructuring and other items, net.Acquisition, restructuring and other items, neated $13.8 million in fiscal 2013 and
primarily includes $7.6 million in transaction arelated costs of the Navilyst and Microsulis acigioiss, $2.5 million in costs associated v
the closure of the Cambridge, UK facility, $1.6 lioih in impairment costs associated with a discurdince of a product offering and $1.4
million in litigation costs. The fiscal 2012 resulhcluded $16.2 million in costs chiefly comprisgfds11.8 million in transaction and related
costs of the Navilyst acquisition and Microsulisagtgic relationship, $2.3 million in costs for CB@d executive transition costs and $1.8
million in costs associated with the decision wsel our UK facility.

Medical device excise taxriscal 2013 included $1.6 million of expense atitdal to the Medical Device Excise Tax enacted lano
effective January 1, 2013.

Operating income (loss)We reported operating income of $7.1 million farckl 2013 compared to an operating loss of $3.Bomifor
fiscal 2012.

Other income (expensesther income and expenses for fiscal 2013 was §illion of net expense, or 2.3% of net sales coragdo
fiscal 2012 results of $2.3 million of net expensel.0% of net sales. The incremental expensensapily due to interest on the debt incur
to finance the Navilyst acquisition.

Income tax (benefit) provision. Our effective tax rate was 5% for fiscal 2013 pamed with 4% for the prior year. The current year
rate reflects the impact of non-deductible codested to the acquisition of Vortex, non-deductiloieerest expense related to contingent
payments, the utilization of fully reserved capltases, increased non-US income, the retroactivewal of the previously expired R&D tax
credit, the elimination of the Domestic Productfxctivities Deduction caused by reduced taxableime@nd the larger impact of non-
deductible expenses also caused by the reduceléaraome in fiscal 2013. The prior year rategef$ the impact of non-deductible costs
related to the acquisition of Navilyst, the Decembk 2011 expiration of the R&D tax credit, theluetion in the Domestic Production
Activities Deduction caused by reduced taxableime@nd the larger impact of non-deductible expeakssscaused by the reduced taxable
income in fiscal 2012.

During the fiscal third quarter of 2013, The AmarcTaxpayer Relief Act of 2012 was enacted andaetively extended the research
credit from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2018 [Egislation led to a prior period tax bendiifiiscal 2013 of $73,000 for the research
credit generated from January 1, 2012 to May 31220

Net (loss) income For fiscal 2013, we reported net loss of $0.8iomlcompared to a net loss of $5.1 million in tirer year.

Fiscal years ended May 31, 2012 and May 31, 2011

Net salesNet sales for fiscal 2012 of $221.8 million, incsed 3% over fiscal 2011 sales of $215.8. The Nawdgquisition contribute
$4.8 million in sales for the ten day period enditay 31, 2012 and LC Beads sales decreased byndillién as a result of the ending
distribution of the product on December 31, 2011.
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From a product line perspective, Peripheral Vasaadtes in fiscal 2012 were $95.2 million, an imge of $8.2 million or 9% from the
prior year period. The increase was primarily du¥¢énacure EVLT products, reflecting strong demfamgrocedure kits and the recently
introduced 1470 laser. Vascular Access sales inete&1.3 million or 2% to $63.9 million in fiscad22 primarily due to increased sales of
Smart port products. Products from the Navilystugsition for the ten day period ending May 31, 2@lsb added to the increase in both
Peripheral Vascular and Vascular Access produetdales for fiscal 2012. Oncology/Surgery saleewé2.7 million, a decrease of 5% from
the prior year. The decrease was primarily attadub the decrease in LC Beads sales describadredidnoknife sales totaled $11.6 million
in fiscal 2012 and $7.3 million in fiscal 2011.

From a geographic perspective, U.S. sales weragaibeflat at $188.2 million in fiscal 2012 comeal to $188.9 million in fiscal 201
despite the cessation of the distribution of LC d&ei; December 2011. The Navilyst acquisition dbaoted $4.0 million in US sales.
International sales were $33.6 million in fiscall20an increase of 25% from $26.9 million in fis28lL1. Increased unit sales of Nanoknife
products comprised the majority of this increase.

Gross profit. Our gross profit as a percentage of sales was 5t 8&cal 2012 compared with 58.3% for the prieay period. The
decrease in gross profit percentage in fiscal 2042 attributable to $2.8 million in product reaadists and $2.3 million of costs associated
with the Quality Call to Action Program, which remhd gross margin by 1.3 and 1.1 percentage poegpectively.

Research and development expensd®&D expenses decreased by $862 thousand, or 4$20t& million in fiscal 2012 compared to
the prior year. The decrease is primarily due &ftitus of product development resources on thditQ@all to Action Program and the
resulting classification of those costs in our afgjoods sold. As a percentage of net sales, R€igmses were 9.2% for fiscal 2012,
compared with 9.9% for fiscal 2011.

Sales and marketing expenseS&M expenses increased $6.4 million or 11% to $@dilSon in fiscal 2012 compared to $58.1 million
in fiscal 2011. This increase is primarily duernorease in commissions in the US sales and inatdaternational sales expenses as we
continue to expand our International business. psraentage of net sales, S&M expenses were 2 %istal 2012 compared to 26.9% for
fiscal 2011.

General and administrative expensesG&A expenses increased $507 thousand, or 3%a.&®B3million in fiscal 2012 compared to
$17.8 million in fiscal 2011 primarily due to ine®ed costs associated with the establishment of @&Ations in our Netherlands office as
part of our continued expansion of the Internatidmeiness, expansion of our business developnuactibn and to personnel and other
infrastructure costs to support our growth. G&A enges remained constant at 8.3% of net salescal #912 compared with the prior year.

Amortization of intangibles. Amortization of intangibles was $9.4 million ind¢& 2012 compared to $9.2 million in fiscal 2011.

Acquisition, restructuring and other items, net.Acquisition and other items, net totaled $16.2 ignllin fiscal 2012 and primarily
includes $11.8 million in transaction and relatedts of the Navilyst acquisition and Microsulisastgic relationship, $2.3 million in costs for
CEO and executive transition costs and $1.8 milliiocosts associated with the decision to closeliGfacility. The fiscal 2011 results
included, in this line item, a total of $7.2 miltian costs, primarily comprised of $6.4 millioniofpairment charges related to our decision to
not continue development of the Medron Lightpocht®logy and the write down of Centros prepaid gsdue to lower than anticipated
sales.

Operating income (loss)We reported an operating loss of $3.0 million fscél 2012 compared to operating income of $120ami
for fiscal 2011.
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Other income (expensesther income and expenses for fiscal 2012 was $#li®n of net expense, or 1.0% of net sales coragdo
2011, which was $1.3 million of net expense, ofOd net sales. The incremental expense is prignetie to costs associated with the
extinguishment of an interest rate swap arrangemssdciated with a credit facility that was paifliofconnection with the Navilyst
transaction.

Income tax (benefit) provision. Our effective tax rate was 4% for fiscal 2012 pamed with 24% for the prior year. The current year
rate reflects the impact of non-deductible codested to the acquisition of Navilyst, the DecemBg&y 2011 expiration of the R&D tax credit,
the reduction in the Domestic Production Activiti2sduction caused by reduced taxable income anlkdtder impact of non-deductible
expenses also caused by the reduced taxable iniadiseal 2012. The prior year rate reflects theddi of the retroactive renewal of the
R&D tax credit that expired in December 2009, statecredits and an increase in the Domestic Ptamtuéctivities Deduction.

During the fiscal third quarter of 2011, the Taxi®e Unemployment Insurance Reauthorization, astal Greation Act of 2010 was
enacted and retroactively extended the researdit érem January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2011. Hygsslation led to a prior period tax
benefit in fiscal 2011 of $161,000 for the reseanadit generated from January 1, 2010 to May 8102

Net (loss) income For fiscal 2012, we reported net loss of $5.liomlcompared to net income of $8.1 million in {&or year.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Summary of cash flows (in thousands):

May 31, 201! May 31, 201: May 31, 201:
(in thousands)

Cash provided by (used ir

Operating activitie! $ 26,88 $ 11,49 $ 33,87(
Investing activities (22,239 (176,36() (48,620)
Financing activitie: (6,28€) 142,33t 1,92
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaémts (65 49 49
Net change in cash and cash equival $ (1,706 $ (22,479 $ (12,779

During the past three years, we have financed perations primarily through cash flow from operaioAs part of the acquisition of
Navilyst on May 22, 2012, we entered into a Crégjteement with a group of banks which provided &Gbtillion senior secured term lo
facility and a $50 million senior secured revolviergdit facility. The $150 million in proceeds fraime term loan were used to finance the
Navilyst acquisition. At May 31, 2013, $24.0 milli@r 3% of our assets consisted of cash, cash @euis and marketable securiti
Marketable securities are comprised of U.S. govemtrissued or guaranteed securities, corporatesbamd auction-rate securities. Our
current ratio was 2.2 to 1, with working capital$8.1 million at May 31, 2013 compared to a curratio of 2.9 to 1, with net working
capital of $103.8 million at May 31, 2012. At Ma¥,2013, total outstanding debt was $142.5 miliomprised of short and long-term bank
debt issued in the financing of the Navilyst aciisis compared with total debt of $150 million at¢31, 2012.

In June 2012, we entered in an interest rate swyaement, with an initial notional amount of $10Wlion, to limit the effect of
variability due to interest rates on the loan. Bweap Agreement, which qualifies for hedge accogntinder authoritative guidance, is a
contract to exchange floating interest rate payméntfixed interest rate payments of 3.26% ofdhéstanding balance of loan over the life of
the swap agreement without the exchange of therlyinig notional amounts.
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We generated cash flow from operations of $26.89anibon net loss of $0.6 million for fiscal 2013g8ificant non-cash expenses
affecting net loss included depreciation and arnatibn of $25.2 million, and $4.6 million of stobksed compensation.

For fiscal 2013, our investing activities used cegth of $22.2 million, primarily due to acquisitioand capital additions, partially offset
by net proceeds of marketable securities and dlaifar-sale short term investments. For fiscal20dur investing activities used net cash of
$176.4 million, primarily as a result of the Nawtyacquisition and the investment in Microsulisitipdly offset by net proceeds of marketable
securities and available-for-sale short term inwestts. Financing activities used net cash of $6li&om primarily toward the repayment of
long-term debt, compared to the fiscal 2012 resuliteh added net cash of $142.3 million, primafitym the proceeds of new debt related to
the Navilyst acquisition.

Our contractual obligations as of May 31, 2013saieforth in the table below (in thousands). Weehaw variable interest entities or
other off-balance sheet obligations.

Cash Payments Due By Period as of May 31, 20

Less thar
After 5
Total One Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Years
Contractual Obligations:

Long term debt and intere $154,00¢ $11,28¢ $66,09¢ $76,62¢ $ —
Operating leases(: 8,99( 2,13: 3,28 1,92¢ 1,651
Purchase obligations(. 4,43¢ 3,71¢ 35¢ 35¢ —
Acquisition future obligation 57,00( 14,30( 20,00( 19,65( 3,05(

$224,43: $31,43! $89,73¢ $98,56( $4,701

(1) The non-cancelable operating leases and inieptachase obligations are not reflected on omsobdated balance sheets under
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates of Americi

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act tiedHealth Care and Education Affordability Rectiation Act of 2010 imposed
significant new taxes on medical device makersiénform of a 2.3 percent excise tax on U.S. mediegice sales, with certain exemptions,
beginning in January 2013. Our fiscal 2013 redoltkide $1.6 million for this Medical Device Exci$ex for the January through May 2013
time period. We estimate the Medical Device Extisefor our full fiscal year 2014, will be approxitely $4.1 million of expense.

We believe that our current cash and investmeminoals and cash generated from operations will geosifficient liquidity to meet our
anticipated needs for capital for at least the A@nonths. However, if we seek to make signifi@aguisitions of other businesses or
technologies, we may require additional financMie cannot be assured that such financing will lzlale on commercially reasonable
terms, if at all.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011 and December 2011, the FASB updagedisiclosure requirements for comprehensive incdihe.updated guidance
requires companies to disclose the total of comgmsive income, the components of net income, amddimponents of other comprehensive
income either in a single continuous statemenbairehensive income or in two separate but consecstiatements. The updated guidance
does not affect how earnings per share is calaiat@resented. The updated guidance is effectimea periods, and interim periods within
those years, beginning after December 15, 201 1figeal year 2013). We have provided the disclosui@ separate statement herein. The
adoption of this guidance had no material impacbwnconsolidated financial statements.

In September 2011, the FASB updated the accougtiidance related to testing goodwill for impairmérttis update permits an entity
to make a qualitative assessment of whether itigertikely than not that a
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reporting unit’s fair value is less than its cangyivalue before applying the two-step goodwill innpeent model that is currently in place. If it
is determined through the qualitative assessmaunitheporting unit’s fair value is more likely thaot greater than its carrying value, the
guantitative assessment steps would be unnece3$agualitative assessment is optional, allowimgnpanies to go directly to the
guantitative assessment. This update is effectivarinual and interim goodwill impairment testsfpaned in fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2011 (our fiscal year 2013) howeamty @doption is permitted. The adoption of thisdguimce had no material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

In July 2012, the FASB updated the accounting guidaelated to testing indefinite-lived intangibkesets for impairment. This update
permits an entity to first make a qualitative asegent of whether it is more likely than not thatiraefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired
as a basis for determining whether it is necessapgrform the quantitative impairment test. Anitgris not required to calculate the fair
value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset ardfprm the quantitative impairment test unlessehtity determines that it is more likely than
not that the asset is impaired. The more-likelyathanot threshold is defined as having a likelihoédhore than 50%. This update is effective
for annual and interim impairment tests perfornretiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012 fiscal year 2014) however early
adoption is permitted, provided that the entity hasyet performed its annual impairment test suésl its financial statements. We are
currently evaluating the impact of adoption of thi€ounting guidance on our consolidated finarstetements.

In December 2011 and January 2013, the FASB isseathccounting guidance related to disclosuresffgetting assets and liabilities
on the balance sheet. The newly issued accourttimglard requires an entity to disclose both grassnet information about instruments and
transactions executed under a master nettingmnolasj arrangement and was issued to enable usérsmacial statements to understand the
effects or potential effects of those arrangementits financial position. This guidance is reqdite be applied retrospectively and is
effective for fiscal years beginning on or aftendary 1, 2013 (our fiscal year 2014). Since thelgnce only impacts disclosure requirements,
its adoption will not have a material impact on oansolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB expanded the disclosegairements related to changes in accumulated otmprehensive income
(AOCI). The new guidance requires disclosure ofatmount of income (or loss) reclassified out of A@Ceach respective line item on the
statement of operations where net income is predeiihe guidance allows disclosure of the reclasdibn either in the notes to the financial
statements or parenthetically on the face of therftial statements. This requirement is effectiredporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2012 (fourth quarter of our fiscalrn 3). Since the guidance only impacts discloseg@irements, its adoption did not have
a material impact on our consolidated financiaestents.

In July 2013, the FASB issued guidance relatetiéqoresentation of certain tax information. This/mpgonouncement provides explicit
guidance on the financial statement presentati@anafnrecognized tax benefit when a net operatisg ¢arryforward, or similar tax loss, or a
tax credit carryforward exists. This pronouncenismffective for fiscal years and interim periodishin those fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2013 (our fiscal year 2015). Sincegthidance only impacts presentation requiremetstgdoption will not have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

ltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk.

We are exposed to market risk from changes inésteates on investments and financing that canfshtt our results of operations and
financial position. Although we have entered intterest rate swaps with a bank to limit our expedarinterest rate change on our variable
interest rate financings, we do not currently emgagany other hedging or market risk managemesis to

As part of the Navilyst acquisition, we entereaiatCredit Agreement with a group of banks whiabvted for a $150 million senior
secured term loan facility and a $50 million sersecured revolving credit
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facility. The $150 million in proceeds from thentefoan were used to finance a portion of the carsidbn for the acquisition. The revolving
facility may be used for general corporate purpaselse future, but was not utilized as of May 3Q13. Both facilities have five year
maturities. The term facility has a quarterly repayt schedule equal to 5%, 5%, 15%, 25% and 50 pfincipal amount in years one
through five. Interest on both the term loan anaiang loan will be based on a base rate or Eultadeate plus an applicable margin which
increases as our total leverage ratio increaseswith the base rate and Eurodollar rate havingearof 1.0% to 1.75% and 2.0% to 2.75%
respectively. In the event of default, the interas¢ may be increased by 2.0%. The revolvingifgaiill also carry a commitment fee of
0.30% to 0.50% per year on the unused portion.

The Credit Agreement includes, among other stanpiardisions, two financial covenants. The firstfiitial covenant requires us to
maintain, as of the end of each of our fiscal qerarta ratio of (i) consolidated EBITDA minus colidated capital expenditures to
(ii) consolidated interest expense paid or payabtash plus scheduled principal payments in reéspféadebtedness under the Credit
Agreement of not less than 1.75 to 1.00. The sefioadcial covenant requires us to maintain, athefend of each of our fiscal quarters, a
ratio of consolidated total indebtedness to codstdid EBITDA of not more than the applicable ratieset forth in the Credit Agreement.

Nearly all of our sales have historically been demated in United States dollars. Although not Bigant, we transact sales in other
currencies, particularly the Euro, GB pound anddcien dollar. Approximately 6% of our sales in k2013 were denominated in curren:
other than the US dollar, primarily the Euro and @Rind. We currently have no significant direcefgn currency exchange risk and such
risk in the future is expected to be modest.

Our excess cash is invested in highly liquid, stemn, investment grade securities with maturigigmarily of less than two years.
These investments are not held for speculativeading purposes. Changes in interest rates magtdffe investment income we earn on ¢
cash equivalents and marketable securities andftireraffect our cash flows and results of openati®e hold investments in auction rate
securities (“ARS”) in order to generate higher tiygrical money market investments. ARS typicallg high credit quality, generally
achieved with municipal bond insurance. Creditgiake eased by the historical track record of bosdrers, which back a majority of this
market. Sell orders for any security traded throaglauction process could exceed bids. Such instaare usually the result of a drastic
deterioration of issuer credit quality. Should #hbe a failed auction, we may be unable to liqeidair position in the securities in the near
term. We have $1.85 million in investments in twtion rate securities issued by New York statelandl government authorities that have
failed auctions. The authorities are current inrthiterest payments on the securities.

We are party to legal actions that arise in thénany course of business as described in Note N.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dz

Financial statements and supplementary data reghyréart I, ltem 8 are included in Part IV ofg¢heport as indexed at Item 15 (a) 1
and 2, and are incorporated by reference intoltidis 8.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this repmut, management, under the supervision and witlpdntcipation of our Chief
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officealuated the effectiveness of the design and tperaf our disclosure controls and
procedures pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) of the Siesifexchange Act of 1934, as amended. Based omvthduation, the Chief Executive
Officer and the Chief
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Financial Officer concluded that our disclosureteols and procedures as of the end of the periwdrea by this report are functioning
effectively to provide reasonable assurance thatrtformation required to be disclosed by us (idiig our consolidated subsidiaries) in
reports filed under the Securities Exchange Ad384, as amended, is recorded, processed, sumaharidereported within the time periods
specified in the Securities and Exchange Commissiahes and forms and is accumulated and commtedda management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officeis appropriate to allow timely decisions regagdiquired disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There was no change in our internal control oveairfcial reporting in the fiscal quarter ended May 2013 that has materially affected,
or is reasonably likely to materially affect, ontérnal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Finangal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@@aorting for our company.
Internal control over financial reporting is defihim Rules 13a-15(f) and 15kb(f) promulgated under the Securities Exchangeofd934, a:
amended, as a process designed by, or under teevgipn of, our principal executive and princifiakncial officers and effected by our
board of directors, management and other persottnptpvide reasonable assurance regarding thebilly of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with accounting principleegaly accepted in the United States and
includes those policies and procedures that:

» Pertain to the maintenance of records that in regtde detail accurately and fairly reflect the sactions and dispositions of our
assets

» Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@mled as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in accordar
with accounting principles generally accepted m thited States, and that our receipts and experdiare being made only in
accordance with authorizations of our managemeshina@mbers of our board of directors; ¢

» Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized acquisition, oselisposition of our assets
that could have a material effect on our finanstatements

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Our management has assessed the effectivenessiafamal control over financial reporting as o131, 2013. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria sebfottle Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission (COSOQ) in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework.

Based on its assessment and these criteria, stibjéwt foregoing, management believes that we taiaied effective internal control
over financial reporting as of May 31, 2013.

Our independent registered public accounting fiam issued a report on the effectiveness of oumateontrol over financial reportin
That report appears on page 58.

Item 9B.  Other Information
None
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Part Il

Certain information required by Part Il is omittBdm this annual report on Form XObecause we will file a definitive proxy statem
within 120 days after the end of our fiscal yearspant to Regulation 14A (the “Proxy Statementt)dar annual meeting of Stockholders,
currently scheduled for October 22, 2013. The imfation included in the Proxy Statement under tBpeetive headings noted below is
incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente

Information required in this annual report on Fdr@iK with respect to Executive Officers is contairnie the discussion titled
“Executive Officers of the Company” in Part | ofgfannual report on Form 10-K. The balance of tiiermation required by Item 10 is
incorporated herein by reference to our Proxy $tate under the heading “Election of Directors”.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

The information required by Item 11 is incorporalesiein by reference to our Proxy Statement urfteehéeading “Executive
Compensation”.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ahMbBnagement and Related Stockholder Mattt

The information required by this caption is incaigged herein by reference to our Proxy Statemeti¢iuthe heading “Ownership of
Securities”.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information required by this caption is incaigted herein by reference to our Proxy Statemeti¢utihe heading “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions”.

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required by this caption is incaiged herein by reference to our Proxy Statemetéiuthe headings “Audit Matters—
Principal Accounting Fees and Services and—PolityAndit Committee Pre-approval of Audit and PernhiesNon-Audit Services of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm”.
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Part IV

Item 15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedule
(a)(2) Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements andplementary data of Registrant and its subsediaequired by Part Il, Item 8, are
included in Part IV of this report:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding 67
Consolidated statements of operat—Years ended May 31, 2013, May 31, 2012 and MayG11 68
Consolidated statements of comprehensive inc- Years ended May 31, 2013, May 31, 2012 and MayG11 69
Consolidated balance she—May 31, 2013 and May 31, 20: 70
Consolidated statements of stockhol’ equity—Years ended May 31, 2013, May 31, 2012 and May311 71
Consolidated statements of cash fl—Years ended May 31, 2013, May 31, 2012 and MayG11 72
Notes to consolidated financial stateme 74

(2) Financial Statement Schedules
The following consolidated financial statement stifie is included in Part IV of this report:

Schedule —Valuation and qualifying accoun 11z

All other schedules are omitted because they arapplicable, or not required, or because the redunformation is included in the
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(b) Exhibits 11¢
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
AngioDynamics, Inc.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetadisted in the accompanying index present fainyall material respects, the financial
position of AngioDynamics, Inc. and its subsidiara May 31, 2013 and May 31, 2012, and the resfiltseir operations and their cash flc
for each of the three years in the period ended 8132013 in conformity with accounting principigsnerally accepted in the United States
of America. In addition, in our opinion, the finaalcstatement schedule listed in the index appgarider Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth threveien read in conjunction with the related corsikd financial statements. Also in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all materiajects, effective internal control over financiegporting as of May 31, 2013, based on
criteria established imternal Control—Integrated Frameworgsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway
Commission (COSO). The Company’s management iorssiple for these financial statements and findrstéaement schedule, for
maintaining effective internal control over finaalcieporting and for its assessment of the effeciss of internal control over financial
reporting, included in Management’s Report on IméControl over Financial Reporting appearing uritiam 9A. Our responsibility is to
express opinions on these financial statementfefinancial statement schedule, and on the Coypamternal control over financial
reporting based on our integrated audits. We caedugur audits in accordance with the standardseoPublic Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standamisine that we plan and perform the audits to obte&rsonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatgrand whether effective internal control overfinial reporting was maintained in all
material respects. Our audits of the financialestents included examining, on a test basis, evasuapporting the amounts and disclosur
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dyagement, and evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimaecontrol over financial reporting included abtag an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thaaderial weakness exists, and testing and evatyéte design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Quitsaaiso included performing such other procedasewe considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits proviteaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(idiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companysats that could have a material effect on thentiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @étaisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (signed)
Albany, New York
August 14, 2013
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AngioDynamics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net sales
Cost of sale:
Gross profit
Operating expense
Research and developmt
Sales and marketir
General and administratiy
Amortization of intangible:
Change in fair value of contingent considera
Acquisition, restructuring and other items,
Medical device excise te
Total operating expens
Operating income (los!
Other (expenses) incon
Interest incom
Interest expens
Other expens
Total other (expenses) income,
(Loss) income before income tax provis
Income tax (benefit) provisic
Net (loss) incomi

Earnings per shal
Basic

Diluted

Basic weighted average shares outstan
Diluted weighted average shares outstan

Years endec

May 31,

May 31,

May 31,

2013 2012 2011
$342,02 $221,78  $215,75(
173,03 95,82¢ 90,04’
168,98 125,95 125,70:
26,31¢ 20,51 21,37
76,12 64,50 58,12:
26,12; 18,33 17,82¢
16,34¢ 9,40¢ 9,23¢
1,58¢ — —
13,80( 16,16+ 7,18:
1,60( — —
161,89! 128,92 113,74(
7,09¢ (2,967) 11,96:
102 1,09( 737
(5,271) (50€) (499
(2,56¢) (2,907) (1,509)
(7,73 (2,320) (1,265
(649) (5,287) 10,69¢
(31) (18¢) 2,581

$ (612 $ (509) $ 8,117
$ (00 $ (020 $ 0.3¢
$ (00 $ (020 $ 03¢
34,81 25,38: 24,87
34,81 25,38: 25,13

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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AngioDynamics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in thousands, except per share data)

Net (loss) incomi
Other comprehensive (loss) income, before
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable secur
Unrealized (loss) gain on interest rate s\
Foreign currency translation (loss) g
Other comprehensive (loss) income, before
Income tax benefit (expense) related to items loéotomprehensiv
income
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of
Total comprehensive (loss) income, net of

May 31, 201:
$ (612

184
(522)

(47)

(385)

12¢
(260)
$ (872

Twelve Months Ended

May 31, 201
$ (5,099

(109
327
(142)
82

(89
@)
$ (5,099

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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$

8,11:

(41
5

144

10¢

13

121

8,23¢
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AngioDynamics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel
Escrow receivabl
Marketable securities, at fair val
Total cash, cash equivalents, escrow receivablevarletable securitie
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $1,272 $983, respectivel
Inventories
Deferred income taxe
Prepaid expenses and otl
Total current asse
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMEN-AT COST, ne!
OTHER ASSETS
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, ne
GOODWILL
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES, long ter
PREPAID ROYALTIES

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Current portion of lon-term debt
Current portion of contingent considerati
Other current liabilitie:
Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM DEBT, net of current portio
Contingent consideration, net of current pori
Other long term liabilitie:
Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE N

STOCKHOLDER? EQUITY
Preferred stock, par value $.01 per share, 5,000:B@res authorized; no shares issued and outste

Common stock, par value $.01 per share, 45,006086es authorized; issued and outstanding 35,060,35

and 34,826,531 shares, respecti
Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning
Treasury stock, 142,305 shares, at
Accumulated other comprehensive |

Total stockholder equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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May 31, May 31,
2013 2012
$ 21,80: $ 23,50¢

— 2,50(
2,15: 14,07(
23,95t 40,07¢
47,79 48,58¢
55,06: 55,82
6,591 4,92:
8,117 9,82¢
141,51¢ 159,23t
62,65( 55,91¢
5,55¢ 10,70
214,84 147,26¢
355,45¢ 308,91:
11,001 39,19¢
54€ 53¢
$791,58:- $721,76¢
$ 24,52: $ 29,20(
16,42¢ 18,72:
7,50(C 7,50(
9,207 —
5,782 —
63,43 55,42:
135,00( 142,501
65,84: —
47¢ 327
264,75¢ 198,24
351 34¢
500,55 496,37!
29,56: 30,17t
(2,104 (2,104
(1,53/) (1,27¢)
526,83( 523,52(
$791,58: $721,76!
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AngioDynamics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Years ended May 31, 2013, May 31, 2012, and May 2011
(in thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Common Stock Additona Retainec Com;;)rtgr?(rensiw __Treasury Stock
paid in
Shares Amount capital earnings loss Shares Amount Total

Balance at May 31, 2010 24,747,14 $ 247 $ 365,34« $ 27,15: $ (1,399 — $ — $391,34¢
Net Income 8,117 8,117
Exercise of stock optior 106,85¢ 1 97€ 977
Tax effect of exercise of stock optio (639) (639)
Issuance of performance shares, 46,727 1 — 1
Purchase of common stock under Employee Stock BsecRlar 84,927 1 1,102 1,10«
Stocl-based compensatic 4,60¢ 4,60¢
Other comprehensive loss, net of 121 121
Comprehensive incornr

Balance at May 31, 201 24,985,65 $ 25C $ 371,39 $ 35,26¢ $ (1,279 — $ — $405,63¢
Net Loss (5,099 (5,099
Exercise of stock optior 193,68« 2 2,15t 2,157
Tax effect of exercise of stock optio (295) (295)
Issuance of performance shares, 64,22: —
Purchase of common stock under Employee Stock BsecRlar 103,36: 1 1,201 1,202
Shares issued pursuant to acquisi 9,479,60 9t 117,83: 117,92t
Purchase of common stock for treas (142,30 (2,109 (2,109
Stocl-based compensatic 4,09( 4,09(
Other comprehensive loss, net of (D) 1)
Comprehensive los

Balance at May 31, 201 34,826,53 $ 34t $ 496,37 $ 30,17t $ (1,279 (142,30) $ (2,109 $523,52(
Net Loss (612) (612)
Exercise of stock optior 16,83t 5 5
Tax effect of exercise of stock optia (1,649 (1,649
Issuance of performance shares, 93,42¢ 1 1
Purchase of common stock under Employee Stock BsecRlar 123,55¢ 2 1,20¢ 1,211
Stocl-based compensatic 4,60¢ 4,60¢
Other comprehensive loss, net of (260) (260)
Comprehensive los

Balance at May 31, 201 35,060,35 $ 351 $ 500,55 $ 29,56: $ (1,539 (142,30) $ (2,109  $526,83(

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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AngioDynamics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net (loss) incomi

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to reshcprovided by operating activitie

Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of bond discour
Amortization of acquired inventory basis s-up

Tax effect of exercise of stock options and issearsfqerformance shar

Deferred income tax provisic
Stock based compensati
Changes in accounts receivable allowar
Unrealized loss from foreign exchar
Gain on sales of ass¢
Change in fair value of contingent considera
Loss on discontinuance of product offer
Loss on impairment of intangible ass
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffetts of acquisitions
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and otl
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Net cash provided by operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Additions to property, plant and equipmi
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Acquisition of intangible assets, net of cash aal
Other cash flows from investing activiti
Change in escrow receivat
Purchases of marketable securi
Proceeds from sale or maturity of marketable sées
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activitie
Repayment of lor-term debi
Proceeds from issuance of l-term debt
Proceeds from exercise of stock options and E
Deferred financing costs on lc-term debt
Repurchase of common stock for treas
Tax effect of the exercise of stock options andasge of performance shal

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbaémts

Decrease in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalel
Beginning of yea
End of yeal

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfirancial statements.
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Years ended

May 31, May 31, May 31,
2013 2012 2011
$ (612 $ (5,099 $ 8,113
25,22¢ 13,05¢ 12,57¢
— 707 52
3,84t 431 —
(1,649 (309) (749)
1,011 (652) (840)
4,60¢ 4,09(C 4,60¢
33¢ 11€ (73)
(83) (172) (109
(712) — —
1,58: — —
1,41¢€ — —
— — 6,41(
24C 1,321 5E
1,141 (2,496) 2,77C
(1,909 (1,527 1,41¢
2,47¢ (4,654 2,05(
(10,039 6,67< (2,437
26,88 11,497 33,87(
(12,120 (2,497) (2,957)
(24,472 (237,31) (97%)
(800) (550) (119
801 (4,000 (182)
2,50( (2,500 —
(5,134 (123,619 (168,470
16,98¢ 194,11 124,08:
(22,239 (176,36() (48,620)
(7,500 (6,550) (260)
— 150,00( —
1,21« 3,35¢ 2,08(
— (2,37¢) —
— (2,109 —
— 14 10z
(6,286) 142,33 1,92:
(65) 49 49
(1,706) (22,476 (12,779
23,50¢ 45,98 58,76!
$ 21,80: $ 23,50¢ $ 45,98
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AngioDynamics, Inc. and Subsidiaries

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—(Continued)
(in thousands)

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat

Supplemental disclosure of r-cash operating, investing and financing activit

Contractual obligations for acquisition of fixedsats

Contractual obligations for acquisition of intanigband busines

Cash paid during the period fc
Interest
Income taxe:

Years endec

May 31, May 31,
2013 2012
$ 1,54¢ $ 217
78,28¢ 117,92¢
$ 4,93¢ $ 43¢
20C 2,83

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktfinancial statements.
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May 31,

2011

$1,90¢

$ 47¢
82¢
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AngioDynamics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
May 31, 2013 and May 31, 2012

NOTE A—BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BUSINESS DESCRIPTIONAND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

1. Basis of Presentation and Description of Busiges

The consolidated financial statements include tu®ants of AngioDynamics, Inc. and its wholly owrssidiaries, RITA Medical
Systems, LLC, AngioDynamics UK Limited, AngioDynamaiNetherlands B.V., NM Holding Company, Inc. (Ngst) since May 22, 2012
and Vortex Medical, Inc. since October 15, 2018|léctively, the “Company”). All intercompany balees and transactions have been
eliminated. We design, manufacture and sell a watige of medical, surgical and diagnostic devicesilby professional healthcare provic
for vascular access, for the treatment of perigherscular disease and for use in oncology andalrgettings. Our devices are generally
used in minimally invasive, image-guided proceduhésst of our products are intended to be used andethen discarded, or they may be
temporarily implanted for short- or long-term use.

Effective June 1, 2012, we consider our busined®ta single segment entity — the development, faature and sale on a global basis
of medical devices for vascular access, surgemplperal vascular disease and oncology. Our chpefating decision maker (CEQ) evaluates
the various global product portfolios on a net sdlasis. Executives reporting in to the CEO inclintse responsible for operations and
supply chain management, research and developsades, franchise marketing and certain corporatetions. The CEO evaluates
profitability, investment and cash flow metrics @eonsolidated worldwide basis due to shared itrfrasire and resources. Prior to fiscal \
2013, our business was organized as two segmeassular and Oncology/Surgery, each under the direcf a general manager with direct
responsibility for all sales, marketing and proddetelopment activities.

We have performed an evaluation of subsequent gtlerdgugh the date the financial statements wereth

Acquisition of Microsulis Medical Ltd.

On March 22, 2012, we established a strategicioalstip with Microsulis Medical Ltd. (“Microsulis})a U.K.-based company
specializing in minimally-invasive, microwave alidait technology for the coagulation of soft tissue.

The relationship included an initial $5 million istment in Microsulis through the purchase of sepieferred stock, representing a
14.3% ownership position, exclusive distributioghtis to market and sell their microwave ablatiostems in all markets outside the United
States from May 2012 through December 2013, arekalusive option to purchase at any time until S8eyliter 22, 2013, substantially all of
the global assets of Microsulis Medical, Ltd.

On February 1, 2013, we completed the acquisitiaredain assets of Microsulis, which we have aoted for as a business
combination, for cash payments at closing tota#it§.0 million, subject to a working capital adjustm, a $5.0 million payment due on
December 31, 2013 and potential additional caskideration payable upon performance over the nieetyears. We also assumed $1.6
million of liabilities.

The total estimated purchase consideration of $88l®n included the initial investment of $5.0 lfian, closing payments totaling
$10.5 million, a $5.0 million payment due on Decem®1, 2013 and the estimated fair value of coetmgonsideration (Earn out) of $13.2
million. The estimated fair value of contingent
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AngioDynamics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
May 31, 2013 and May 31, 2012

consideration is based on projected net salestheatine year period following the closing of thogjaisition. The amount of the Earn out
consideration that could be paid on net salestitimded.

The estimated purchase consideration exceedeaditheafue of the acquired net assets by $19.3anillind was recorded as goodwill.
Goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. Core tasbgies are being amortized over their estimatedulidives ranging from 10 to 15 years.
During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2013, we inetiracquisition related costs of $312 thousand¢hvhiere expensed to “Acquisition,
restructuring and other items, net” in the statenoéeperations. We have not finalized the purchasmunting, which may be adjusted as
further information about conditions existing a& #icquisition date becomes available.

Acquisition of Vortex Medical Inc.

On October 15, 2012, we acquired all the outstandapital stock of Vortex Medical, Inc., a privatdleld company focused on the
development and commercialization of medical des/foe venous drainage and the removal of thrombublood clots, from occluded blood
vessels. Vortex’s principal product is the Angio\®asystem, which includes the AngioVac Cannula anduit. The AngioVac Cannula has a
proprietary balloon-actuated, expandable, funnapsh distal tip that enhances flow, prevents cloggif the cannula and facilitates en bloc,
or whole removal of undesirable intravascular mateBoth the AngioVac Cannula and Circuit are FBl&ared for use during extracorporeal
bypass for up to 6 hours. An application for CE Kapproval has been filed.

The total estimated purchase consideration of $7#ll®n included an upfront payment of $15.1 nuHliand the estimated fair value of
contingent (Earn out) consideration of $60.3 mil[i40 million of which is guaranteed. The estirddtEr value of contingent consideration
is based on projected AngioVac net sales in thegzéan period following the closing. The amounthed Earn out consideration that could be
paid on AngioVac net sales is not limited.

The estimated purchase consideration exceededitheafue of the acquired net assets by $29.5anillind was recorded as goodwill.
Goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes. Caetinologies are being amortized over their estichaseful lives of approximately 15 years
as revenues are earned from the sales of relabgdigtis. During the fiscal year ended May 31, 20d8jncurred acquisition related costs of
$645 thousand, which were expensed to “Acquisitiestructuring and other items, net” in the statenoé operations. We have not finalized
the purchase accounting, which may be adjustedrtieef information about conditions existing at #tugjuisition date becomes available.

Acquisition of Navilyst

On May, 22, 2012, we completed the acquisitionrofgtely-held Navilyst, a global medical device qmmy with strengths in the
vascular access, interventional radiology and watetional cardiology markets. The acquisition agldted transaction costs were financed
through the issuance of approximately 9.5 millibares of our common stock, $150 million in drawguasition debt financing and $97
million of cash. Based on the closing price of stack of $12.44 on the day prior to the transactibe purchase price was approximately
$361 million.

The fiscal year ended May 31, 2013 and 2012, iredu®l7.3 million and $11.2 million, respectively tiansaction and severance costs
related to the Navilyst acquisition. These costsiacluded in “Acquisition, restructuring and otlitems, net” in the statement of operations.
Investment funds affiliated with Avista Capital Bears, former owners of Navilyst, received apprcadety 9.4 million shares of our common
stock and, as of
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AngioDynamics, Inc. and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
May 31, 2013 and May 31, 2012

May 31, 2013, held approximately 27% of our outdtag shares. Investment funds affiliated with Azi§apital Partners entered into a
stockholders agreement with us as part of the aidios and also appointed two additional directorsur existing Board of Directors.

To satisfy any working capital adjustment and ptiééimdemnification claims that may arise, $19.ilion of purchase consideration
was held in escrow at May 31, 2013, including agjmately $14.0 million in cash and approximatelyb4thousand shares of common stock.
The indemnification claims period will terminate duly 15, 2013. At May 31, 2012, we had $2.5 mill@f receivable related to the working
capital adjustment recorded as escrow receivabte@balance sheet. During the third fiscal quarte2013, we received $2.5 million of cash
from the escrow fund to satisfy this receivable.

Goodwill recorded as a result of the acquisitiors \B&44.7 million. Intangible assets acquired, othan goodwill, totaled
approximately $107.1 million, of which $49.4 miltidcvas been identified as customer relationships/€H weighted average useful life),
$32.5 million of trademarks (of which $28.6 millilias been determined to have an indefinite usiééuhihd the remaining $3.9 million has a
7 year weighted average useful life), $15.1 milladrin-process research and development (indefirs&ful life until completed) and $10.1
million of technology (6-year weighted average uséfe). Goodwill is not deductible for tax purpes

The IPR&D assets, which were accounted for as inideflived assets at the time of acquisition, essgnt the development of a
biomedical polymer additive for use in PICC andenthascular access product lines and a power ajcport which are valued at $12.1
million and $3.0 million, respectively. The biomedli polymer additive product recently received tatpry approval and the product was
released in the United States in October 2012 sibding amortized over a 10 year useful life. Theqr injectable port is expected to be
released in the United States in fiscal 2014, sulferegulatory approvals. The fair value of thedangible assets was determined based
the present value of expected future cash flowssaelfl for the probability of technological and coemaial risk, utilizing a risk-adjusted
discount rate.

See Note B for further discussion of acquisitions.

Regulatory Matters

On May 27, 2011, we received a Warning Letter ffelDA in connection with its inspection of our Quelems/, NY manufacturing
facility. In the Warning Letter, FDA cited deficieies in the response letter we provided FDA peirigito the inspection that occurred from
January 4 to January 13, 2011. The deficienciedge@lto our internal procedures for medical dexggmrting, corrections and removals and
complaint handling. We responded to the Warningdretnd completed corrective and preventive actiorsgldress the observations noted.

In December 2011, we initiated a comprehensive iQuahll to Action Program to review and augment Quality Management
Systems at our Queensbury facility. To accelerafementation of the program, we engaged a teagmtefnal regulatory and quality expe
and reallocated a significant number of engineeaimg product development resources to supportthrgorate initiative. From inception of
the Quality Call to Action Program through fisc@l13, we have incurred $3.2 million in direct casssociated with the program.

On February 10, 2012, we received from FDA a Fo8&3, 4.ist of Investigational Observations, in conti@t with its inspection of our
Queensbury facility from November 14, 2011 to Feloyul0, 2012. The
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Form 483 contained 12 observations related to, gnatimer things, our CAPA (Corrective and Prevenfietion) system, MDR (Medical
Device Reporting), complaint investigation, corieas and removals, acceptance criteria and traifBogne of the observations contained in
the Form 483 were repeat observations from the ¥ay2011 Warning Letter.

On February 13, 2012, we received from FDA a Fo83 ih connection with its inspection of our Freméadility from January 12,
2012 to February 13, 2012. The Form 483 containedizservations related to, among other things,@APA system, design controls, risk
management and training. We provided responseB fovithin 15 business days of our receipt of therfr@d83s.

On September 24, 2012, we received from FDA a FH88in connection with its subsequent inspectioawfQueensbury, NY facility
from September 6 to September 14, and Septemhier 3®ptember 24. This re-inspection followed ospomse to the original Form 483
issued by FDA on February 13, 2012. The Form 488atned 5 observations related to 510(k) decisicos)plaint investigations, acceptance
criteria, corrective and preventive actions anthing. All but one of the observations in the FOt88 related to events that occurred before
the date that we had indicated to FDA in our presicesponses that our corrective and remediatitvites related to our Quality Call to
Action would be completed. We provided responsdaié within 15 business days of our receipt of Eoem 483.

On November 28, 2012, FDA completed an inspectfaruo Manchester, GA facility and no Form 483 obations were issued.

In June 2013, we received approval from FDA to cana clinical trial to study the use of the NandKirin the treatment of focal
prostate cancer. We are moving forward with instial review board (IRB) submissions and anti@padmmencing patient enrollment
during our second quarter of fiscal 2014, whichseNdvember 30, 2013.

We will continue to work closely with FDA to res@hany outstanding issues. Unless the items raistftkipreviously disclosed
Warning Letters and Form 483s are corrected to BBAtisfaction or we come to some other arrangemiémt=DA finally resolving such
matters, we may be subject to additional regulatorggal action, including the issuance of warngtters, injunction, seizure or recall of
products, imposition of fines or penalties or opiagarestrictions on our facilities. Such actiomailt significantly disrupt our ongoing
business and operations and have a material adwepset on our financial position and operatingutess

Discontinuance of Benephit Product Offering

During the third fiscal quarter of 2013, we made decision to discontinue our Benephit productraffe Accordingly, we recorded
$1.6 million of expenses during the year ended Bhy2013. These costs are included in “Acquisitrestructuring and other items, net” in
the statement of operations.

Closure of UK facility

During the first fiscal quarter of 2012, we made ttecision to close our Cambridge, UK facility arahsfer the production of lasers to
our Queensbury, NY facility. We completed the tfan# January 2013. The total cost of this projeas approximately $4.3 million. The
statement of operations for the year ended May813 included charges of $2.5 million for costauimed associated with this closure and
included $1.8 million for fiscal 2012. The chargaricluded in “Acquisition, restructuring and otlitams, net” in the statement of operations.
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2. Fiscal Year
We report on a fiscal year ending May 31.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all unrestricted highly liquid investiteepurchased with an initial maturity of less thiaree months to be cash equivalents.
We maintain cash and cash equivalent balancesfiwéthcial institutions in the United States in ese®f amounts insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation.

4. Marketable Securities

Marketable securities, which are principally gowaemt agency bonds, auction rate investments anmbate commercial paper, are
classified as “available-for-sale securities” ic@aalance with authoritative guidance issued by FA88 are reported at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses excluded from operatiad reported as a component of accumulated odingprehensive income (loss), net of
the related tax effects, in stockholders’ equitgstds determined using the specific identificatimathod. We hold investments in auction rate
securities in order to generate higher than typicahey market rate investment returns. Auction seturities typically are high credit qual
generally achieved with municipal bond insuranaed2 risks are eased by the historical track r@afrbond insurers, which back a majority
of this market. Sell orders for any security tratieugh an auction process could exceed bidsiarsdich cases, the auction fails and we
be unable to liquidate our position in the secesiin the near term. During fiscal years 2013, 281®2011, we had $1.85 million in
investments in two auction rate securities issuebléw York state and local government authoritiest failed auctions. The authorities are
current in their interest payments on the secutitie

5. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable, principally trade, are gergidlie within 30 to 90 days and are stated at atsodure from customers, net of an
allowance for sales returns and doubtful accoWies perform ongoing credit evaluations of our custsrand adjust credit limits based upon
payment history and the customer’s current credifnioess, as determined by a review of their curceedit information. We continuously
monitor aging reports, collections and paymentmfoustomers, and a provision for estimated credids is maintained based upon our
historical experience and any specific customeectibn issues that have been identified. Whilehstredit losses have historically been
within our expectations and the provisions esthklik we cannot guarantee that the same creditdtess will be experienced in the future.
write off accounts receivable when they are deteealito be uncollectible.

6. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (atdsted cost, which approximates the first-in, fiost-method) or market. Appropriate
consideration is given to deterioration, obsoleseeand other factors in evaluating net realizablae.

7. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cast,dccumulated depreciation. Depreciation is ceadpusing the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Vdkiate these assets for impairment annually ehasges in circumstances or the occurre
of events suggest the remaining value is
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not recoverable. Expenditures for repairs and reasarice are charged to expense as incurred. Reravehletterments are capitalized.

8. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Intangible assets other than goodwill and acquiP&D are amortized over their estimated usefuddivwhich range between three
twenty years, on either a straight-line basis dlrerexpected period of benefit or as revenuesaresd from the sales of the related products.
We periodically review the estimated useful livé®or intangible assets and review such assetisnfoairment whenever events or change
circumstances indicate that the carrying valudefassets may not be recoverable. Our determinatimmpairment is based on estimates of
future cash flows. If an intangible asset is coasd to be impaired, the amount of the impairméttagual the excess of the carrying value
over the fair value of the asset.

Acquired IPR&D has an indefinite life and is not@mized until completion and development of thejget at which time the IPR&D
becomes an amortizable asset. If the related prigjeot completed in a timely manner or the proje¢erminated or abandoned, we may |
an impairment related to the IPR&D, calculatedhesexcess of the asset’s carrying value overiitvédue.

Our policy defines IPR&D as the value assignedtsé projects for which the related products hateeteived regulatory approval
and have no alternative future use. Determiningptirtion of the purchase price allocated to IPR&Quires us to make significant estimates.
The amount of the purchase price allocated to IPR&&etermined by estimating the future cash floisach project or technology and
discounting the net cash flows back to their presatues. The discount rate used is determinelestitne of measurement in accordance
accepted valuation methods. These methodologidsdi@consideration of the risk of the project ncitiaving commercial feasibility.

At the time of acquisition, we expect that all aicgd IPR&D will reach technological feasibility, bthere can be no assurance that the
commercial viability of these products will actyalie achieved. The nature of the efforts to devéilepacquired technologies into
commercially viable products consists principalfyptanning, designing, and conducting clinical lsinecessary to obtain regulatory
approvals. The risks associated with achieving ceraralization include, but are not limited to, deta failure to obtain regulatory approvals
to conduct clinical trials, delay or failure to abit required market clearances, or delays or issitbspatent issuance, or validity and
litigation. If commercial viability were not achied, we would likely look to other alternatives toyide these therapies.

Goodwill and other intangible assets that havefinde useful lives are not amortized, but ratteg tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if impairment indicators arise. @adll represents the excess of the purchase priee the fair value of the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired in eachrtass combination. Goodwill and intangible assetgetbeen recorded at either incurred or
allocated cost. Allocated costs were based on céispdair market values at the date of acquisitMfe have one intangible asset which has
been assigned an indefinite life, the NAMIC tradenthat was recently acquired as part of our adggmisof Navilyst, and is valued at $28.6
million.

For goodwill, the impairment test requires a corrguar of the estimated fair value of the reportimit to which the goodwill is assigne
to the sum of the carrying value of the assetsliabdities of that unit. If the sum of the carrgivalue of the assets and liabilities of a
reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the repgrunit, the carrying value of the reporting usitjoodwill is reduced to its implied fair value
through an adjustment to the goodwill balance,Itegpin an impairment charge. Our determinationngpairment is based on estimates
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of future cash flows. Effective June 1, 2012, wasider our business to be a single operating segemtity — the development, manufacture
and sale on a global basis of medical devicesdscular access, surgery, peripheral vascular disaasoncology.

9. Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with generatigted accounting principles as outlined in th€'SEuthoritative guidance on
revenue recognition which requires that four basiteria be met before revenue can be recognizege(suasive evidence that an
arrangement exists; (ii) the price is fixed or deti@able; (iii) collectability is reasonably assdy@nd (iv) product delivery has occurred or
services have been rendered. Decisions relatigatarion (iii) regarding collectability are basadon our judgments, as discussed under
“Accounts Receivable” above, and should conditicimange in the future and cause us to determinetitésion is not met, our results of
operations may be affected. We recognize revereiemfrsales taxes assessed by any governmentaligytlas products are shipped, based
on F.O.B. shipping point terms when title and $koss passes to customers. We negotiate shigpidgredit terms on a customer-by-
customer basis and products are shipped at ancagpes price. All product returns must be ppproved by us and customers may be su
to a 20% restocking charge. To be accepted, anedysroduct must be unadulterated, undamaged amdabhdeast 12 months remaining prior
to its expiration date.

We chose to early adopt, effective with the thiududer of fiscal 2010, updated authoritative gu@afor revenue recognition relating to
the accounting treatment for revenue arrangemhbatdrtvolve more than one deliverable or unit afamting. At the same time, we also
adopted the updated guidance relating to certaienge arrangements that include software elemieither of these had a material effect on
our consolidated financial statements.

10. Research and Development

Research and development costs, including salaesulting fees, building costs, utilities, adraetritive expenses and an allocation of
corporate costs are related to developing new mtsdenhancing existing products, validating ned emhanced products, managing clinical,
regulatory and medical affairs and our intellecfu@perty and are expensed as incurred.

11. Shipping and Handling Costs

Shipping and handling costs, associated with thgildution of finished products to customers, @®orded in costs of goods sold and
are recognized when the related finished produstiigped to the customer. Amounts charged to cust®for shipping are recorded in net
sales.

12. Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized for tempatdfgrences between financial statement and inctamdases of assets and liabilit
and loss carryforwards and tax credit carryforwdodsvhich income tax benefits are expected todadized in future years. A valuation
allowance has been established to reduce deferxegbtets, if it is more likely than not that all some portion, of such deferred tax assets
will not be realized. The effect on deferred tazea change in tax rates is recognized in incontbémperiod which includes the enactment
date. The deferred tax asset includes net operaisgs acquired as part of the acquisitions &, Ribrtex and Navilyst. These losses could
be significantly limited under Internal Revenue EGHRC") Section 382. An analysis of RITA’s ownhig changes as defined in IRC
Section 382 shows that approximately
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$15.8 million (of which $7.1 million had expired aEMay 31, 2013) of federal net operating losséknet be utilized due to limitations. In
addition, it is estimated that $13.6 million of &#tate net operating losses will expire priortttization. An analysis of Vortex’s ownership
changes as defined in IRC Section 382 shows thaeabperating losses will be utilized prior tpeation. A similar analysis of Navilyst's

ownership changes as defined in IRS Section 38@sltiwat approximately $17.5 million of federal ngerating losses will not be utilized

due to limitations. In addition, it is estimate@tl$18.8 million of Navilyss state net operating losses will expire priorttlization. The gros
deferred tax asset related to the net operatirggtoeflects these limitations.

We intend to reinvest indefinitely any of our uraéated foreign earnings as of May 31, 2013. Wesh#ot provided for U.S. income
taxes on these undistributed earnings of our farsighsidiaries because we consider such earnings teinvested indefinitely outside the
United States. If these earnings were distributedmay be subject to both foreign withholding tazred U.S. income taxes. Determination of
the amount of this unrecognized deferred incomdiadity is not practical.

13. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments include cash and caslivetgnts, accounts receivable, marketable secsiyiiecounts payable, interest rate
swap agreement and contingent earn outs relatin tacquisition of Vortex and Microsulis. The cang/amount of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, marketable gex316nd accounts payable approximates fair valeeta the immediate or short-term
maturities. The interest rate swap agreement has fezorded at its fair value based on a valua#osived from an independent third party.
Marketable securities, with the exception of auttiate securities, are carried at their fair valaeletermined by quoted market prices. The
contingent earn out has been recorded at fair uadirgy the income approach.

Per our accounting policy, fair value is definedtas exchange price that would be received forssetsor paid to transfer a liability (an
exit price) in the principal or most advantageowskat for the asset or liability in an orderly tsaction between market participants on the
measurement date. This policy establishes a faievaierarchy which requires an entity to maxintize use of observable inputs and

minimize the use of unobservable inputs when méagfair value. The policy describes three levdlmputs that may be used to measure
fair value which are provided in the table below.

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for ideaitassets or liabilities. Level 1 assets includekidime deposits, money market funds,
mutual funds and U.S. Treasury securities thatrarked in an active exchange marl

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prawgsh as quoted prices for similar assets or It&s| quoted prices in markets that
are not active; or other inputs that are observabtan be corroborated by observable market datsubstantially the full term
of the assets or liabilities. Level 2 assets inelltd government securities and corporate bondsn\Wheted market prices are
unobservable, we obtain pricing information fromigependent pricing vendor. The pricing vendoisusaious pricing
models for each asset class that are consistemiwhiat other market participants would use. Theiisand assumptions to the
model of the pricing vendor are derived from maieservable sources including: benchmark yielgmnted trades,
broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, benchmaukitses, bids, offers, and other market-relatechd&ince many fixed income
securities do not trade on a daily basis, the nuetlogyy of the pricing vendor uses available infotioraas applicable such as
benchmark curves, benchmarking of like securigestor groupings, and matrix pricing. The pricirgndor considers all
available market observable inputs
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determining the evaluation for a security. Thustaie securities may not be priced using quotedgs:i but rather determined
from market observable information. These investiare included in Level 2 and primarily comprisg portfolio of
corporate and government fixed income securitigiglifonally included in Level 2 are interest rateap agreements which are
valued using a m-market valuation mode

Unobservable inputs that are supportedtty br no market activity and are significantte fair value of the assets or
liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities inclufileancial instruments whose value is determinadgipricing models, discount
cash flow methodologies, or similar techniquesyal as instruments for which the determinatiorieof value requires
significant management judgment or estimation. Thaiegory currently includes the auction rate seearwhere independent
pricing information was not able to be obtained thelcontingent Earn out related to the acquisitibWortex and Microsulis.
Our investments in auction-rate securities werssifed as Level 3 as quoted prices were unavailsipice these auction rate
securities issued by New York state and local govent authorities failed auction. Due to limitedrked information, we
utilized a discounted cash flow (“DCF”) model taride an estimate of fair value for all periods Enmeted. The assumptions
used in preparing the DCF model included estimatdsrespect to the amount and timing of futurefest and principal
payments, forward projections of the interest blechmarks, the probability of full repayment af girincipal considering the
credit quality and guarantees in place, and treeghteturn required by investors to own such d&eargiven the current
liquidity risk associated with auction-rate sedest The contingent earn outs were valued utilizrdiscounted cash flow
method as detailed belo
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The following tables provide information by levekfassets and liabilities that are measured avé&ire on a recurring basis (in
thousands):

Fair Value Measurements
using inputs considered as

Fair Value at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 May 31, 201:
Financial Asset
Cash equivalent
Money market fund $114 $— $ — $ 114
Total $114 $— $ — $ 114
Marketable securitie
Corporate bond securitii $— $ 302 $ — 303
U.S. government agency obligatic — — 1,85( 1,85(
Total — 302 1,85( 2,15
Total Financial Asset $114 $ 302 $ 1,85( $ 2,261
Financial Liabilities
Interest rate swap agreeme $— $ 522 $ — $ 522
Contingent liability for acquisition earn o — — 75,04¢ $ 75,04¢
Total Financial Liabilities $— $ 522 $75,04¢ $ 75,57
Fair Value Measurements
using inputs considered as:
Fair Value at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 May 31, 201.
Financial Asset
Cash equivalent
Money market fund $4,762 $ — $§ — $ 4,76:
Total $4,76: $ — $ — $ 4,76:
Marketable securitie
Corporate bond securiti $ — $ 6,371 $ — 6,371
U.S. government agency obligatic — 5,84¢ 1,85( 7,69¢
Total — 12,22( 1,85( 14,07(
Total Financial Asset $4,76: $12,22( $1,85( $ 18,83:

At May 31, 2012, there were no financial liabil#imeasured at fair value since the interest ratg @srangements were paid off during
May 2012.

There were no significant transfers in and outefél 1 and 2 measurements for the year ended Ma3(3B. During the year ended
May 31, 2013, the Vortex and Microsulis contingeatn outs discussed below were added to Level $dhie instruments.
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The components of Level 3 fair value instrumentsfdday 31, 2013 are shown below (in thousands):

Financial Asset Financial Liabilities
Fair Value Measuremel Fair Value Measuremer
Using Significant Using Significant
Unobservable Inpul Unobservable Input
(Level 3)
Balance, May 31, 201 $ 1,85( $ —

Total gains or losses
(realized/unrealized — —
Included in earning — 1,58:
Included in other
comprehensive incon — —
Purchases, issuances and settlerr — —
Transfers in and/or (out) of Level — —
Contingent liability for acquisition
earn out — 73,46¢
Balance, May 31, 201 $ 1,85( $ 75,04¢

Contingent Liability for Acquisition Earn Outs

Certain of our business combinations involve thieptal for the payment of future contingent coesation upon the achievement of
certain product development milestones and/or vara@her favorable operating conditions. Paymeihefadditional consideration is
generally contingent on the acquired company re@cbértain performance milestones, including aittgiispecified revenue levels or
achieving product development targets. Contingensitleration is recorded at the estimated fairevafuthe contingent milestone payments
on the acquisition date for all acquisitions sulsax to April 24, 2009. The fair value of the cogiént milestone consideration is remeasured
at the estimated fair value at each reporting penith the change in fair value recognized as ine@mexpense within acquisition-related
items in the condensed consolidated statementaroings. We measure the initial liability and reswga the liability on a recurring basis
using Level 3 inputs as defined under authoritagivielance for fair value measurements.

Contingent consideration liabilities will be remae=d to fair value each reporting period using gctgd net sales, discount rates,
probabilities of payment and projected paymentsld®eojected contingent payment amounts are disedurack to the current period using a
discounted cash flow model. Projected net salebased on our internal projections and extensiatyais of the target market and the sales
potential. Increases in projected net sales andgiibties of payment may result in higher fairsalmeasurements in the future. Increases in
discount rates and the projected time to paymewtnesult in lower fair value measurements in therfe. Increases or decreases in any
valuation inputs in isolation may result in a sfgrantly lower or higher fair value measurementha future.
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The recurring Level 3 fair value measurements efdbntingent consideration liability related to ¥artex and Microsulis acquisitions
include the following significant unobservable it in millions):

Fair value at Valuation Unobservable
May 31, 201: Technique Input Range
Revenue based payments $ 75.C Discounte: Discount rate 4%
cash flow Probability of paymer 75-100%
Projected fiscal year of payme 2014-202z

At May 31, 2013, the estimated potential amounirafiscounted future contingent consideration thaewpect to pay as a result of all
completed acquisitions is approximately $94 millidhe milestones associated with the contingensidenation must be reached in future
periods ranging from fiscal years 2013 to 2022riteo for the consideration to be paid.

The fair value of contingent milestone payment®eaissed with the acquisitions was remeasured &4ayf31, 2013 and $65.8 million
was reflected in “Contingent consideration, netufrent portion” and $9.2 million was reflected'@urrent portion of contingent
consideration” on the consolidated balance shdwt.fdllowing table provides a reconciliation of theginning and ending balances of
contingent milestone payments associated with treeX and Microsulis acquisitions measured at\falue that used significant unobservi
inputs (Level 3) (in millions):

Beginning balan—May 31, 201z $—
Purchase price contingent considera 73.4
Contingent paymen —
Change in fair value of contingent considera 1.€
Ending balan—May 31, 201z $75.C

15. Derivative Financial Instruments

We are exposed to market risk due to changeseéndst rates. To reduce this risk, we periodicatieeinto certain derivative financial
instruments to hedge the underlying economic exgostle use derivative instruments as part of otar@st rate risk management strategy.
The derivative instruments used are floating-t@dixate interest rate swaps, which are subjeagb fiow hedge accounting treatment. The
cash flow hedge was terminated in May 2012 in aoctjon with the early payoff of the related debte Wécognized interest expense of
$61,000 and $37,000 for the fiscal 2012 and 20ibgs, respectively, on the cash flow hedge.

In accordance with authoritative guidance on Actmgnfor Derivatives and Hedging Activities, as arded, our 2002 interest rate s\
agreement qualified for hedge accounting under GAA& the 2006 interest rate swap agreement didBioth. were presented in the
consolidated financial statements at their faiuealChanges in the fair value of derivative finahostruments were either recognized
periodically in income or in stockholders’ equity @ component of accumulated other comprehensigaria (loss) depending on whether the
derivative financial instrument qualifies for hedmecounting and, if so, whether it qualifies asia¥alue or cash flow hedge. Generally, the
changes in the fair value of derivatives accouffie@s fair value hedges are recorded in incomegaaith the portions of the changes in the
fair value of hedged items that relate to the hddggks. Changes in the fair value of derivativesoainted for as cash flow hedges, to the
extent they are effective as hedges, are recordaddumulated other comprehensive income (losgh 8@ 2002 and the 2006 swap
agreements were terminated in May 2012 in conjonatiith the early payoff of the related debt.
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In June 2012, we entered in an interest rate symement, with an initial notional amount of $10{lion, to limit the effect of
variability due to interest rates on the loan. Bweap Agreement, which qualifies for hedge accogntinder authoritative guidance, is a
contract to exchange floating interest rate paysantfixed interest rate payments of 3.26% ofdhéstanding balance of the loan over the
life of the agreement without the exchange of théeulying notional amounts.

16. Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize compensation expense for all sharedqasyment awards made to our employees and disantduding employee stock
options and employee stock purchases related t8tmek Purchase Plan based on estimated fair vahiesecognize compensation expense
for our stock awards on a straight-line basis t¢lerequisite service periods of the awards, whigenerally the vesting period.

The amount of stock-based compensation recognizedsed on the value of the portion of awardsatetltimately expected to vest.
Guidance requires forfeitures to be estimatedetithe of grant and revised, if necessary, in sylset periods if actual forfeitures differ
from those estimates. The term “forfeitures” igidist from “cancellations” or “expirations” and neggsents only the unvested portion of the
surrendered option. We currently expect, basechamalysis of our historical forfeitures, that appmately 88% of our options will vest
annually, and we have therefore applied a 12% drarfeiture rate in determining the stock-basecthpensation charge recorded. We will re-
evaluate this estimate periodically and adjustdniiture rate on a prospective basis as necessitignately, the actual expense recognized
over the vesting period will only be for those @sathat actually vest.

For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2013, May 3122ind May 31, 2011, we used the Black-Schole®oyiricing model (“Black-
Scholes”) as our method of valuation and a singteoa award approach. This fair value is then aipett on a straight-line basis over the
requisite service periods of the awards, whicheisegally the vesting period. The fair value of shiaased payment awards on the date of the
grant as determined by the BlaSkholes model is affected by our stock price as$ agbther assumptions. These assumptions indudeyre
not limited to the expected stock price volatilityer the term of the awards, actual and projectepl@yee stock option exercise behaviors,
and a risk-free interest rate. The risk-free irgerate is based on factual data derived from pudagurces. The expected stock-price volatility
and option life assumptions require significantgognt which makes them critical accounting estimate

We utilize our historical volatility when estimagjrexpected stock price volatility. We use yieldesabn U.S. Treasury securities for a
period approximating the expected term of the aviaektimate the risk-free interest rate. The etqukterm is based on our actual historical
experience. The dividend yield is based on thehisind expectation of dividend payments. We hatepaid dividends in the past nor do we
expect to pay dividends in the foreseeable futOre. historical data includes information from Mag, 2004, the date of our initial public
offering.

17. Earnings Per Common Share

Basic earnings per share are based on the weightzdge number of common shares outstanding wittangideration of potential
common stock. Diluted earnings per share furthelugtes the dilutive effect of potential common &teonsisting of stock options, warrants,
restricted stock units and shares issuable upowersion of convertible debt into shares of commioels provided that the inclusion of such
securities is not antidilutive.
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For the period ending May 31, 2013, options antticdsd stock units issued to employees and nonl@yeps to purchase
approximately 2.9 million shares of common stockenexcluded from the calculation of diluted earsipgr common share as their inclusion
would be anti-dilutive. Excluded from the calcutatiof diluted earnings per common share are optosrestricted stock units issued to
employees and non-employees to purchase approxynza8million shares of common stock at May 3112@s their inclusion would be
anti-dilutive compared with options and restricgtdck units issued to employees and non-employepsrchase approximately 2.0 million
shares of common stock at May 31, 2011.

The following table sets forth the reconciliaticintloe weighted-average number of common shares:

2013 2012 2011
Basic 34,817,27 25,382,29 24,870,00
Effect of dilutive securitie — — 262,75¢
Diluted 34,817,27 25,382,29 25,132,76

18. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assas it affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consttifinancial statements. Estimates also affectnted amounts of sales and expenses durir
reporting period. Actual results could differ frahose estimates.

19. Supplier Concentrations

We are dependent upon the ability of our supptieqsrovide products on a timely basis and on fablergricing terms. The loss of our
principal suppliers or a significant reduction imguct availability from these suppliers could havenaterial adverse effect on us. We believe
that our relationships with these suppliers arsfseattory.

20. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2011 and December 2011, the FASB updagedisiclosure requirements for comprehensive incdihe.updated guidance
requires companies to disclose the total of comgmsive income, the components of net income, amddimponents of other comprehensive
income either in a single continuous statemenbaigrehensive income or in two separate but consecstiatements. The updated guidance
does not affect how earnings per share is calaiat@resented. The updated guidance is effectimea periods, and interim periods within
those years, beginning after December 15, 201 1figeal year 2013). We have provided the disclosui@ separate statement herein. The
adoption of this guidance had no material impacbwnconsolidated financial statements.

In September 2011, the FASB updated the accougtiidance related to testing goodwill for impairméftiis update permits an entity
to make a qualitative assessment of whether itigertikely than not that a reporting unit’s failwa is less than its carrying value before
applying the two-step goodwill impairment modelttisacurrently in place. If it is determined thrduthe qualitative assessment that a
reporting unit’s fair value is more likely than rmgreater than its carrying value, the quantitatissessment steps would be unnecessary. The
gualitative assessment is optional, allowing congmto go directly to the quantitative assessnmgmts update is effective for annual and
interim goodwill impairment tests performed in sgears beginning after
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December 15, 2011 (our fiscal year 2013) howeamty @doption is permitted. The adoption of thisdgumce had no material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

In July 2012, the FASB updated the accounting guidaelated to testing indefinite-lived intangibksets for impairment. This update
permits an entity to first make a qualitative asegnt of whether it is more likely than not thatiraefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired
as a basis for determining whether it is necessapgrform the quantitative impairment test. Anitgris not required to calculate the fair
value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset ardfprm the quantitative impairment test unlessahtity determines that it is more likely than
not that the asset is impaired. The more-likelyathaot threshold is defined as having a likelihoddnore than 50%. This update is effective
for annual and interim impairment tests perfornretiscal years beginning after September 15, 2012 fiscal year 2014) however early
adoption is permitted, provided that the entity hasyet performed its annual impairment test suésl its financial statements. We are
currently evaluating the impact of adoption of tht€ounting guidance on our consolidated finarstatements.

In December 2011 and January 2013, the FASB issedaccounting guidance related to disclosuresfsetting assets and liabilities
on the balance sheet. The newly issued accourttimglard requires an entity to disclose both grossnet information about instruments and
transactions executed under a master nettingnolasj arrangement and was issued to enable usérsmacial statements to understand the
effects or potential effects of those arrangementis financial position. This guidance is reqdite be applied retrospectively and is
effective for fiscal years beginning on or aftendary 1, 2013 (our fiscal year 2014). Since thagunce only impacts disclosure requirements,
its adoption will not have a material impact on oansolidated financial statements.

In February 2013, the FASB expanded the disclosegairements related to changes in accumulated otmprehensive income
(AOCI). The new guidance requires disclosure ofdtmunt of income (or loss) reclassified out of A@&Ceach respective line item on the
statement of operations where net income is predeiihe guidance allows disclosure of the reclisgibn either in the notes to the financial
statements or parenthetically on the face of therftial statements. This requirement is effectivedporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2012 (fourth quarter of our fiscalryZ 3). Since the guidance only impacts discloseg@irements, its adoption did not have
a material impact on our consolidated financiaiestents.

In July 2013, the FASB issued guidance relatethiégoresentation of certain tax information. Thisvm@pgonouncement provides explicit
guidance on the financial statement presentati@anafnrecognized tax benefit when a net operatisg ¢arryforward, or similar tax loss, or a
tax credit carryforward exists. This pronouncenismffective for fiscal years and interim periodishin those fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2013 (our fiscal year 2015). Sincegtlidance only impacts presentation requiremetsteidoption will not have a material
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

NOTE B—ACQUISITIONS

Acquisition of Microsulis Medical Ltd.

On March 22, 2012, we established a strategicioelstip with Microsulis Medical Ltd. (“Microsulis})a U.K.-based company
specializing in minimally-invasive, microwave alitatt technology for the coagulation of soft tissue.

The relationship included an initial $5 million estment in Microsulis through the purchase of sepieferred stock, representing a
14.3% ownership position, exclusive distributioghtis to market and sell their microwave ablatiostems in all markets outside the United
States from May 2012 through December 2013,
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and an exclusive option to purchase at any timi 8aptember 22, 2013, substantially all of thebglaassets of Microsulis Medical, Ltd.

On February 1, 2013, we completed the acquisitfaedain assets of Microsulis, which we have aoted for as a business
combination, for cash payments at closing tota#t.0 million, subject to a working capital adjustm, a $5.0 million payment due on
December 31, 2013 and potential additional caskidenation payable upon performance over the nieetyears. We also assumed $1.6
million of liabilities.

The total estimated purchase consideration of $8@l®n included the initial investment of $5.0 lfion, closing payments totaling
$10.5 million, a $5.0 million payment due on Decem®1, 2013 and the estimated fair value of coetmgonsideration (Earn out) of $13.2
million. The estimated fair value of contingent siteration is based on projected net sales ovaritteeyear period following the closing.
The amount of the Earn out consideration that cbelgaid on net sales is not limited.

The Microsulis historical financial results weret s@nificant and therefore pro forma results wootd be substantially different. Sales
since the acquisition closed are not significamt e operations of Microsulis have been fully grtged from the date of acquisition.

The following table summarizes the preliminary mstied fair value of the assets acquired and ltsslassumed (in thousands):

Accounts receivabl $ 364
Inventories 687
Other current asse 44z
Fixed asset 1,90¢
Intangibles 12,50(
Goodwill 19,28

Total assets acquire 35,18«
Liabilities assumei (1,639

Total purchase pric $33,55(
Cash payment at closir $10,56¢
Cash payment for initial investme 5,00(
Present value of deferred paym 4,82(
Present value of contingent consideration liab 13,16

Total purchase pric $33,55(

The estimated purchase consideration exceededitheafue of the acquired net assets by $19.3anillind was recorded as goodwill.
Goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. Intangibsets are being amortized over their estimatefiidgses of which range from 10 to 15
years. During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2018jneurred acquisition related costs of $312 thndsahich were expensed
“Acquisition, restructuring and other items, net’the statement of operations. We have not findlthe purchase accounting, which may be
adjusted as further information about conditionisting at the acquisition date becomes available.

Acquisition of Vortex Medical, Inc.

On October 15, 2012, we acquired all the outstandapital stock of Vortex Medical, Inc., a privatdleld company focused on the
development and commercialization of medical des/foe venous drainage and the
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removal of thrombus, or blood clots, from occluddabd vessels. Vortex’s principal product is theghgVac® system, which includes the
AngioVac Cannula and Circuit. The AngioVac Canrhda a proprietary balloon-actuated, expandableeiushaped distal tip that enhances
flow, prevents clogging of the cannula and fadiéiaen bloc, or whole removal of undesirable irdsular material. Both the AngioVac
Cannula and Circuit are FDA-cleared for use dudrgacorporeal bypass for up to 6 hours. An appéiosfor CE Mark approval has been
filed.

The stock purchase agreement provided for the paafes15.1 million in cash at closing, which isbgct to a working capital
adjustment, plus future earn out consideration playia cash. Earn out consideration is based omeusales of the AngioVac system during
the ten years following the closing, payable indhgount of 10% of annual net sales up to $1500nillL2.5% of annual net sales between
$150 million and $500 million, and 15% of annual sales above $500 million. The Earn out considemas subject to guaranteed minimum
payments payable on the anniversary dates followlioging, in the amounts of $8.35 million on thestij $8.0 million on the second, third and
fourth, and $7.65 million on the fifth anniversatgte. If a minimum payment for a period exceedsthingent earn out payment for the
same period, the amount of the excess will be taeddigainst future contingent earn out payments.

The total estimated purchase consideration of $T#I®n included the upfront payment of $15.1 naifi and the estimated fair value of
contingent consideration of $60.3 million, $40 moifl of which is guaranteed. The estimated fair galficontingent consideration is based on
projected AngioVac net sales in the ten year pefiatidwing the closing. The amount of the Earn ocahsideration that could be paid on
AngioVac net sales is not limited.

The Vortex historical financial results were ng@rsficant and therefore pro forma results would Im@tsubstantially different. Sales
since the acquisition closed are not significamt e operations of Vortex have been fully integddrom the date of acquisition.

The following table summarizes the estimated falue of the assets acquired and liabilities assuinetiousands):

Cash and cash equivale $ 33¢
Accounts receivabl 203
Inventories 48¢
Other asset 7
Deferred tax asse 1,30i
Intangibles 72,43(
Goodwill 29,51¢

Total assets acquire 104,29:
Deferred tax liabilities (28,340
Liabilities assumei (667

Total purchase pric $ 75,29.
Cash payments at closil $ 15,10¢
Present value of contingent consideration liab 60,30:
Working capital adjustmel (119

Total purchase pric $ 75,29.
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The estimated purchase consideration exceededitheafue of the acquired net assets by $29.5anillind was recorded as goodwill.
Goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes. Carehinologies are being amortized over their estichaseful lives of approximately 15 years
as revenues are earned from the sales of thedqlatelucts. During the fiscal year ended May 31L3@ve incurred acquisition related costs
of $645 thousand, which were expensed to “Acquisjtrestructuring and other items, net” in theestant of operations. We have not
finalized the purchase accounting, which may basidf as further information about conditions éxdsat the acquisition date becomes
available.

Acquisition of Navilyst

On May, 22, 2012, we completed the acquisitionrofgtely-held Navilyst, a global medical device qumy with strengths in the
vascular access, interventional radiology and watetional cardiology markets. The acquisition agldted transaction costs were financed
through the issuance of approximately 9.5 millibares of our common stock, $150 million in drawguasition debt financing and $97
million of cash. Based on the closing price of stack of $12.44 on the day prior to the transactibe purchase price was approximately
$361 million.

The fiscal year ended May 31, 2013 and 2012 incu®&¥#3 million and $11.2 million, respectively,tiansaction and severance costs
related to the Navilyst acquisition. These costsiacluded in “Acquisition, restructuring and otligems, net” in the statement of operations.
Investment funds affiliated with Avista Capital Bears, former owners of Navilyst, received apprcdiety 9.4 million shares of our common
stock and, as of May 31, 2013, held approximat&hb 2f our outstanding shares. Investment fundiatéd with Avista Capital Partners
entered into a stockholders agreement with us @pthe transaction and also appointed two aolditi directors to our existing Board of
Directors.

To satisfy any working capital adjustment and pt#&mdemnification claims that may arise, $19.illion of purchase consideration
was held in escrow at May 31, 2013, including agjpnately $14.0 million in cash and approximatelyb4thousand shares of common stock.
The indemnification claims period will terminate duly 15, 2013. At May 31, 2012, we had $2.5 millaf receivable related to the working
capital adjustment recorded as escrow receivabte@balance sheet. During the third fiscal quarsfe2013, we received $2.5 million of cash
from the escrow fund to satisfy this receivable.

Goodwill recorded as a result of the acquisitiors 8&44.7 million. Intangible assets acquired, othan goodwill, totaled
approximately $107.1 million, of which $49.4 millidvas been identified as customer relationships/€H weighted average useful life),
$32.5 million of trademarks (of which $28.6 millitlas been determined to have an indefinite usiééuhhd the remaining $3.9 million has a
7 year weighted average useful life), $15.1 millann-process research and development (indefirggful life until completed) and $10.1
million of technology (6-year weighted average utéfe).

The IPR&D assets, which were accounted for as inifeflived assets at the time of acquisition, esgnt the development of a
biomedical polymer additive for use in PICC andesthascular access product lines and a power afjerport which are valued at $12.1
million and $3.0 million, respectively. The biomedli polymer additive product recently received tathry approval and the product was
released in the United States in October 2012 sibding amortized over a 10 year useful life. Theqr injectable port is expected to be
released in the United States in fiscal 2014, sulferegulatory approvals. The fair value of thedangible assets was determined based
the present value of expected future cash flowssaelfl for the probability of technological and coemamal risk, utilizing a risk-adjusted
discount rate.
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The following table summarizes the estimated falugs of the assets acquired and liabilities asdumehousands):

May 22,
2012

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,68:
Accounts receivabl 19,06¢
Inventories 26,85
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 5,50¢
Property, plant and equipme 34,01"
Deferred tax asse 34,20¢
Goodwill 144,70!
Intangibles 107,10(
Other lon¢-term asset 497

Total assets acquire 379,63!
Liabilties assume (18,287

Total net assets acquir $361,34¢

See Note G for additional information about charigeke carrying amount of goodwill.

The following supplemental unaudited pro forma infation presents our financial results as if thguésition of Navilyst had occurred
on June 1, 2010 (in thousands):

For the years ended

May 31,
2012 2011
(unaudited’
Net sales $365,35° $369,38:
Net income (loss $ 3,897 $ (2,780

The above unaudited pro forma information was deiteed based on historical GAAP results of AngioDyizs and Navilyst. The
unaudited pro forma consolidated results are no¢searily indicative of what our consolidated resaf operations actually would have been
if the acquisition was completed on June 1, 20H& Tnaudited pro forma consolidated net income gmilynreflects adjustments of:

(i) exclusion of $17.6 million of transaction costsd restructuring charges for both AngioDynamiud Havilyst for the year ended May
31, 2012, which are directly attributable to thengaction and inclusion of these charges for the gpded May 31, 201

(i) inclusion of $3.8 million of inventory st-up directly related to the transaction for the yerded May 31, 201.

(iii) inclusion of $4.7 million of interest expenselated to the $150 million credit facility assateid with the transaction for the years ended
May 31, 2012 and 2011; al

(iv) tax effecting the unaudited pro forma consolidatetincome and adjustments for the years ended3la2012 and 201.
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NOTE C—MARKETABLE SECURITIES AND INVESTMENTS
Marketable securities as of May 31, 2013 consisfeate following:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair
cost Gains Losses Value
(in thousands)
Available-for-sales securitie
U.S. government agency obligatic $ 1,85( $ — $ — $1,85(
Corporate bond securitit 303 — — 303
$ 2,15 $ — $ — $2,15¢
Marketable securities as of May 31, 2012 consisfeate following:
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealizec Unrealized
Fair
cost Gains Losses Value
(in thousands)
Available-for-sales securitie
U.S. government agency obligatic $ 7,73¢ $ 5 $ (45 $ 7,69¢
Corporate bond securitit 6,51¢ 1C (155) 6,371
$14,25¢ $ 15 $ (200 $14,07(

The amortized cost and fair value of marketableistes at May 31, 2013, by contractual maturityg shown below. Expected
maturities will differ from contractual maturitié®cause borrowers may have the right to call qugyr@bligations with or without call or

prepayment penalties.

As of May 31, 2013
Due in one year or le:
Due after one through five yee
Due after five through twenty yee

NOTE D—INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of the following:

Raw material
Work in proces:
Finished good

Inventories

93

Amortized

Fair

cost Value

(in thousands)

$ — $ —
308 303
1,85( 1,85(
May 31, May 31,
2013 2012
(in thousands)
$18,36: $18,98¢
11,00¢ 9,50¢
25,69 27,33¢
$55,06: $55,82:
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NOTE E—PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER
Prepaid expenses and other consist of the following

May 31, May 31,
2013 2012
(in thousands)
Deposits $4,02¢ $3,18i
Income and other tax: 1,021 3,20¢
Licensee fee 80¢ 364
Software license 52C 407
Trade show: 487 66C
Rent 13E 107
Insurance 12C 34z
Interest receivabl 2 10C
Other 994 1,452
Total $8,117 $9,82¢
NOTE F—PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AT COST
Property, plant and equipment are summarized &sifoi
May 31, May 31, Estimated
2013 2012 useful lives
(in thousands)
Building and building improvemen $ 30,15( $ 29,74: 39 years
Machinery and equipme 31,12¢ 27,61¢ 3to 8 year
Computer software and equipm:e 16,39( 16,501 3to 5 year
Construction in progres 13,37: 3,454
91,04: 77,31¢
Less accumulated depreciation and
amortization (29,42) (22,430
61,62: 54,88¢
Land and land improvemer 1,02¢ 1,02¢
$ 62,65( $ 55,91¢

Depreciation expense for fiscal 2013, 2012 and 2044 $8.7 million, $3.6 million and $3.0 milliorespectively.

NOTE G—GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets other than goodwill and indedifiited intangible assets are amortized over #gimated useful lives, which range
between three and twenty years, on either a stréigghbasis over the expected period of benefa®revenues are earned from the sales of
the related products. We periodically review thiinegted useful lives of our intangible assets andew such assets for impairment whene
events or changes in
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circumstances indicate that the carrying valudefassets may not be recoverable. Our determinatimmpairment is based on estimates of
future cash flows. If an intangible asset is coaed to be impaired, the amount of the impairmédhtagual the excess of the carrying value
over the fair value of the asset.

Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefingeful lives are not amortized, but rather, aséetd for impairment annually or more
frequently if impairment indicators arise. Goodwdpresents the excess of the purchase price loedait value of the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired in eactin@ss combination. Goodwill and intangible assetselbeen recorded at either incurred or
allocated cost. Allocated costs were based on céispdair market values at the date of acquisition

We have one intangible asset which has been assamindefinite life, the NAMIC trademark, which svacquired as part of our
acquisition of Navilyst, and is valued at $28.6liiil.

We test goodwill for impairment during the thirdagter of every fiscal year, and when an event aourcircumstances change such
that it is reasonably possible that impairmenttexisor goodwill, the impairment test requires enparison of the estimated fair value of the
reporting unit to which the goodwill is assignedhie sum of the carrying value of the assets adliies of that unit. If the sum of the
carrying value of the assets and liabilities ogparting unit exceeds the fair value of the repgrtinit, the carrying value of the reporting
unit’s goodwill is reduced to its implied fair vadhrough an adjustment to the goodwill balancgyltimg in an impairment charge. Our
determination of impairment is based on estimatégtare cash flows.

Effective June 1, 2012, we consider our busined®ta single segment entity — the development, faature and sale on a global basis
of medical devices for vascular access, surgemplperal vascular disease and oncology. Our chpefating decision maker (CEQ) evaluates
the various global product portfolios on a net sdlasis. Executives reporting in to the CEO inclintse responsible for operations and
supply chain management, research and developsdes, franchise marketing and certain corporatetions. The CEO evaluates
profitability, investment and cash flow metrics @eonsolidated worldwide basis due to shared itrfrasire and resources. Prior to fiscal \
2013, our business was organized as two segmeassular and Oncology/Surgery, each under the direcf a general manager with direct
responsibility for all sales, marketing and proddetelopment activities.

To determine fair value, we considered two marlatenl approaches and an income approach. UndemttietAbased approaches, we
utilized information regarding our own as well asbficly available industry information to determiaarnings multiples and sales multiples.
Under the income approach, we determined fair vehsed on estimated future cash flows of the rempunit, discounted by an estimated
weighted-average cost of capital, which reflectsdtierall level of inherent risk of a reporting tusind the rate of return an outside investor
would expect to earn. We determined the discoucdstt flow as the best indicator to determine falue.

Determining the fair value of a reporting unitisigmental in nature and requires the use of sigifi estimates and assumptions,
including revenue growth rates, operating margiis;ount rates and future market conditions, anaihgrs. These assumptions are highly
sensitive and changes in these estimates coulll nregmpairment. Solely for purposes of establighinputs for the fair value calculations,
assumed that the current economic conditions woaidinue through fiscal year 2014, followed by eoreery thereafter. In addition, we
applied gross margin assumptions consistent witth@torical trends at various revenue levels asetiltan EBITDA exit multiple of 6.0 to
calculate the terminal value of the reporting umitaddition, we used a discount rate of 13.5%alcudate the fair value of our reporting unit.
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We completed our annual goodwill impairment tesbfaBecember 31, 2012. At December 31, 2012, quontng unit is the same as
our reportable segment. Our assessment of gooidwilirment indicated that the fair value of ouraogmg unit exceeded its carrying value
and therefore goodwill was not impaired. The faitue of our reporting unit exceeded its carryinlygay 5%. The fair value of the reporting

unit was reconciled to our current stock markeitedipation plus an estimated control premium oprximately 60% as of December 31,
2012.

Since early November 2008, our stock market capéttibn has at times been lower than our sharehslldguity or book value.
However, our reporting unit has continued to geteesaynificant cash flows from operations, and wpeet to continue to do so in fiscal 2014

and beyond. Furthermore, we believe that a reasepaential buyer would offer a control premium &ur business that would adequately
cover the difference between our stock market alpittion and our book value.

We also completed our annual indefinite lived agS&tMIC trademark) test as of December 31, 2012gi$he income approach to

determine fair value. Our assessment of the NAM#&demark indicated that the fair value exceededdng/ing value and therefore the asset
was not impaired.

Even though we determined that there was no gobohglairment as of December 31, 2012, the futuloence of a potential
indicator of impairment, such as a significant adeechange in legal factors or business climategdaerse action or assessment by a
regulator, unanticipated competition, a materigatire change in relationships with significanttonsers, strategic decisions made in
response to economic or competitive conditions twfikey personnel or a more-likely-than-not expgeoh that the reporting unit or a
significant portion of the reporting unit will bels or disposed of, would require an interim assesg for the reporting unit prior to the next

required annual assessment as of December 31, 2013.

It is not possible at this time to determine if augh future impairment charge would result oit, does, whether such charge would be
material. Events that could, in the future, regultmpairment include, but are not limited to, deitlg sales for a significant product or in a
significant geographic region.

Adjustments to goodwill for the fiscal year endedyvB1, 2013 and May 31, 2012 are as follows (iusands):

Total

Balance, May 31, 2011 $161,95:
Gooduwill recognized from Navilyst business combhio@ 146,96
Balance, May 31, 201 $308,91.
Gooduwill recognized from Vortex business combina 29,51¢
Gooduwill recognized from Microsulis asset acquisi 19,28
Adjustments to Navilyst purchase price alloca (2,259
Balance, May 31, 201 $355,45!

The above $2.3 million reduction in the carryindueaof goodwill is primarily the result of an $8880 payment from former
stockholders of Navilyst and a $1,560,000 incréashe value of deferred tax assets from the Naviicquisition, net of $161,000 of
preacquisition Navilyst tax adjustments.
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The balances of intangible assets are as follows:

May 31, 2013
Gross carrying Accumulated Net carrying Weighted av¢
value amortization value useful life
(in thousands) (years)

Product technologie $ 150,18: $ (24,83 $ 125,34t 10.€
Customer relationshiy 84,47¢ (30,59%) 53,88¢ 14.¢
Trademar—NAMIC 28,60( — 28,60( Indefinite
Licenses 6,30z (4,507 1,801 9.C
Trademarks 6,27¢ (2,059 5,217 9.¢
Distributor relationship 90C (900 — 3.C

$ 276,73 $ (61,889 $ 214,84t

May 31, 2012
Gross carrying Accumulated Net carrying Weighted av¢
value amortization value useful life
(in thousands) (years)

Customer relationshif $ 82,20t $ (22,129 $ 60,08: 11.7
Product technologie 55,54( (18,839 36,70: 11.c
Trademar—NAMIC 28,60( — 28,60( Indefinite
In process R&D Acquire 15,04: — 15,04: Indefinite
Licenses 6,152 (3,71)) 2,441 9.1
Trademarks 4,57¢ (37%) 4,20( 7.3
Distributor relationship 1,14C (940 20C 2.€

$ 193,25 $ (45,989 $ 147,26¢

Amortization expense was $16.3 million, $9.4 milliand $9.2 million for fiscal 2013, 2012 and 20tkkpectively.

Annual amortization of these intangible assetxpeeted to approximate the following amounts farheaf the next five fiscal years (in

thousands):
2014 $15,19¢
2015 14,39:
2016 15,49¢
2017 16,31¢
2018 17,52¢

NOTE H—INCOME TAXES

The components of income (loss) before income taxigion for the years ended May 31 are as follows:

2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)
(Loss) income before tax provisic
us $(2,670) $(5,15)) $10,07¢
Non-US 2,02 (131 622
$ (649 $(5,287) $10,69¢
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Income tax (benefit) provision analyzed by categamg by statement of operations classificatiortieryears ended May 31 is

summarized as follows:

Current
Federa
State and loce
Non U.S.

Deferred

2013 2012
(in thousands)

$(1,622) $ 44€
(52) (19)
46¢ 18
(1,206) 447
1,17¢ (635)

$ (3) $ (18¢)

2011

The significant components of deferred income t@ngfit) expense from operations for the years @iy 31 consist of the

following:

Deferred tax benef
Net operating loss carryforwa

Temporary differences that give rise to deferredatssets and liabilities are summarized as follows:

Deferred tax asse
Net operating loss carryforwa
Stoclk-based compensatic
Federal and state R&D tax credit carryforw
Inventories
State tax credit
Expenses incurred not currently deduct
Capital loss carryforwarc
Deferred revenu
Gross deferred tax as:
Deferred tax liabilitie:
Excess tax over book depreciation and amortiz:
Impairment of lon-lived asset:

Valuation Allowance
Net deferred tax ass

2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)
$1,17¢ $(1,727) $(4,097)
— 1,08 3,17¢
$1,17¢ $ (63 $ (919
May 31, 201! May 31, 201.
(in thousands)
$ 47,09¢ $ 45,707
4,81: 5,39¢
49C 62¢
1,71z 95
1,32¢ 1,92¢
88(C 1,78(
95 371
1,147 1,25¢€
57,56: 57,16
39,25: 11,82(
— 24
39,25: 11,84
(712 (1,196
$ 17,59¢ $ 44,12
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At May 31, 2013, we had approximately $166.5 millf remaining Federal net operating loss carryéods and $181.9 million of ste
net operating loss carryforwards (“NOL”") which weyenerated by acquired companies. These net apgitatises are subject to Internal
Revenue Code (“IRC") Section 382 limitations wharte expected to significantly limit our ability tilize these net operating losses on an
annual basis. As a result of our IRC Section 38#yaes, it is estimated that approximately $31 Higniof remaining Federal net operating
losses and $27.2 million of state net operatingdeswill expire prior to utilization. The gross eletd income tax asset (‘DTA”) related to the
NOL reflects these limitation:

In order to ensure the realizability of our defdrtax assets, we need to generate $9.2 millioaxaftile income for the next ten years
then $5.4 million of taxable income for the finajtet years of the remaining eighteen year carryéodiperiod. If we are unable to meet these
minimum taxable income levels, the deferred taxtssay still be utilized in future years if we aaake up previous year taxable income
short falls prior to the expiration of net operagtinss carryforwards. We have determined that we Isafficient existing levels of pre-tax
earnings to generate sufficient taxable income#dize the net deferred tax assets recorded ohadance sheets.

In order to support the realizability of our nefeteed tax asset, we projected our parincome utilizing a combination of historicalc
projected results. Utilizing this projected pre-tagome, we have projected taxable income takibhg donsideration existing levels of
permanent differences including stock option exsercieductions and non-deductible expenses andikesal of significant temporary
differences.

Our Federal net operating loss carryforwards ddayf 31, 2013 after considering IRC Section 382 t#tdons are $135.4 million. The
expiration of the Federal net operating loss camyérds are as follows: $20.8 million between 2@hd 2021, $9.9 million between 2022 :
2026 and $104.7 million between 2027 and 2031.

Our state net operating loss carryforwards as of 81 2013 after considering remaining IRC Sec888 limitations are $154.7 millic
which expire in various years from 2014 to 2031.

At May 31, 2013, we had $2.6 million of state ctedvhich have an unlimited carryforward period. Wave a deferred tax asset
valuation allowance against $0.6 million of thesedits because we do not expect to be able taaitifiem.

At May 31, 2013, we had a net deferred income tmetof $17.6 million, after recording a valuat@lowance of $0.7 million. The
valuation allowance decreased by $484,000 in 2083recreased by $62,000 in 2012. The 2013 chargteseto the use of fully reserved
capital losses and the expiration of fully reserstade tax credits. The 2012 change relates tagbef fully reserved state tax credits due to a
temporary change in state tax law offset by capisdes incurred in each year which were fully nese. The valuation allowance recorded
against the deferred tax assets relates to stateddits, capital losses and state NOLs that mamagt has estimated will more likely than
expire before they are expected to be utilized.
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Our consolidated income tax provision has diffdredh the amount that would be provided by applytimg U.S. Federal statutory
income tax rate to our income before income tageshie following reasons:

2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Income tax (benefit) provisic $(31) $ (188  $2,581
Effect of Graduated tax rat (6) (53 107
State income taxes, net of Federal tax be (88) (15¢) 9¢
State income tax credits, net of Federal tax be 23 69 30C
Impact of Non US operatior 22¢ (46) 65
Tax-exempt interes 2 4 5
Research and development tax cr 142 11t 54¢
Domestic Production Activities deducti — 71 471
Nondeductible acquisition cos (120 (1,149 —
Nondeductible interest on contingent paym: (130 — —
Nondeductible sto-based compensatic (10¢) (125) (119
Other nondeductible expens (33€) (33€) (329
Overaccrual (underaccrual) of prior year Federdl state taxe 1C 13¢ 49
Fully reserved capital loss 17¢ (20¢) (19
Other — 12 (21)

Income tax (benefit) provision at statutory taeraf 35% $(225)  $(1,849  $3,74¢

During the twelve months ended May 31, 2013, wendidrecognize any tax liabilities related to unaigrtax positions. Due to our
unrecognized tax benefit being zero upon adoptigtin no change since adoption, no “tabular recaain” of the total amount of
unrecognized tax benefits at the beginning andoéide period is being presented.

We recognize interest and penalties related tocagrézed tax benefits within our global operatiassa component of income tax
expense. There were no accrued interest and pEheditognized in the consolidated balance shestMay 31, 2013 and May 31, 2012.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federalgdittion and various state and foreign jurisdiction the normal course of business we
are subject to examination by taxing authoritiesuighout the world. The Internal Revenue ServitR$”) completed an examination of our
federal income tax returns for fiscal years 2006 2007 in February 2009 which did not result ina@enial impact on our results of
operations or financial position. During fiscal y@812, New York State completed an examinatioausfNew York State Franchise Tax
returns for fiscal years 2005 to 2008. In relatiothis examination, income tax expense in fis€dl2includes an out-of-period benefit of
$300,000 to correct an error that originated impyears related to certain state tax credits. ¥¢essed the impact of this adjustment on the
2011 year and all prior periods and determinedttietumulative effect of the adjustments was ratemial to the full year 2011 and did not
result in a material misstatement to any previoisdyed annual or quarterly financial statementili#onally, as a result of the audit, we
were able to claim state tax credits of $210,0@® #ine recorded in fiscal year 2012.

Fiscal years 2010 through 2013 remain open to exation by the various tax authorities. New Yorkt&ta currently auditing
Navilyst's franchise tax filings for 2009 through 2011, de@not anticipate any material
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adjustments will result. We analyzed filing posiain all of the Federal and state jurisdiction&rehwe are required to file income taxes, as
well as all open tax years in these jurisdictiond believe that our income tax filing positions atatluctions will be sustained on audit anc
do not anticipate any adjustments will result imaterial adverse effect on our financial conditi@sults of operations or cash flows.

We do not anticipate that the amount of unrecoghtag benefits will significantly change in the héxelve months.

NOTE |—PREPAID ROYALTIES

On August 13, 2007, we entered into a Distributdanufacturing and Purchase Option Agreement (Abeeement”) with a company
to acquire the exclusive worldwide rights to mawtiee and distribute a split tip catheter for thedydis market we have named Centros
which included the option to purchase certain latdbal property associated with these producteeérfuture. Under this Agreement, we paid
royalties on net sales of the products coveretiendigreement. In accordance with the Agreemenpnepaid $3.0 million of royalties based
upon the achievement of certain milestones. At Bhy2011, based on lower than anticipated salestsesve reduced the prepaid royaltie:
net realizable value which resulted in an impairtiess of $2.3 million recorded in “Acquisition,steucturing and other items, net” in our
fiscal 2011 statement of operations. In August 20dd sold both the tangible and intangible assste@ated with the Centros product,
resulting in a gain of $201 thousand that is inetliéh “Acquisition, restructuring and other itemst” in the statement of operations for the
year ended May 31, 2012 and the elimination ofeditedPrepaid Royalties” on the balance sheet as of Blgy2012. We have entered into
various other agreements that required royalty grements and these are reported in “Prepaid Rogalie the May 31, 2013 and May 31,
2012 balance sheets.

NOTE J—ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities consist of the following:

May 31, May 31,
2013 2012
(in thousands)

Payroll and related expens $ 6,491 $ 5,67¢
Royalties 2,03¢ 2,25¢
Accrued severanc 1,60z 2,08
Deferred revenu 1,57 3,13¢
Sales and franchise tax 1,045 1,092
Interest rate swap liabilit 52: —
Other 3,15¢ 4.47:
Total $16,42¢ $18,72:

NOTE K—LONG-TERM DEBT
Bank Credit Agreement

In connection with the Navilyst acquisition, we emed into a Credit Agreement with a group of bank&h provided a $150 million
senior secured term loan facility and a $50 millsemior secured revolving credit facility. The $IBlion in proceeds from the term loan
were used to finance a portion of the considerdtion
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the acquisition. The revolving facility may be ugedgeneral corporate purposes and was undravtagt31, 2013. Both facilities have five
year maturities. The term facility has a quarteglgayment schedule equal to 5%, 5%, 15%, 25% atddiQts principal amount in years o
through five. The credit agreement contains cefiaemcial covenants relating to fixed charge cagerand leverage, as defined, with which
we were in compliance at May 31, 2013. Amountsdeed under the Credit Agreement are collateralizedll our assets. Interest on both
the term loan and the revolving loan is based bas® rate or Eurodollar rate plus an applicablegmavith increases as our total leverage
ratio increases, and with the base rate and Eusrdake have ranges of 1.0% to 1.75% and 2.0%78%2 respectively. In the event of
default, the interest rate may be increased by 2T0% revolving facility will also carry a commitmefee of 0.30% to 0.50% per year on the
unused portion. As of May 31, 2013, net deferredricing costs of $1.95 million are recorded asmpmment of other assets on the balance
sheet and are being amortized over the remainfia@lithe related debt.

In June 2012, we entered in an interest rate sweement, with an initial notional amount of $10Mion, to limit the effect of rising
of interest rates. The Swap Agreement, which gealifor hedge accounting under authoritative guidais a contract to exchange floating
interest rate payments for fixed interest rate payimon the outstanding balance of the loan oweliféh of the agreement without the
exchange of the underlying notional amounts. ThaBiAgreement provides for a fixed rate of 0.74%vakihe applicable rate provided foi
the Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement includes, among other stanpiardisions, two financial covenants. The firstfiitial covenant requires us to
maintain, as of the end of each of our fiscal qerarta ratio of (i) consolidated EBITDA minus colidated capital expenditures to
(ii) consolidated interest expense paid or payabtash plus scheduled principal payments in reéspféadebtedness under the Credit
Agreement of not less than 1.75 to 1.00. The sefioadcial covenant requires us to maintain, athefend of each of our fiscal quarters, a
ratio of consolidated total indebtedness to codstdid EBITDA of not more than the applicable raieset forth in the Credit Agreement.
were in compliance with both financial covenantefblay 31, 2013.

Industrial Revenue Bonds

In September 2002, we borrowed $3,130,000 in Im@dfRevenue Bonds and entered into an interestswap agreement, both of
which were repaid in May 2012.

Taxable Adjustable Rate Notes

In December 2006, we borrowed $5,000,000 in Taxusidible Rate Notes and entered into an interestreap agreement, both of
which were repaid in May 2012.

Following is a summary of long-term debt (in thouds):

May 31, 201! May 31, 201
Bank Notes $ 142,50! $ 150,00(
Less: current maturitie (7,500 (7,500
Long-term debt $ 135,00( $ 142,50!
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At May 31, 2013, future minimum principal paymeaotslong-term debt were as follows (in thousands):

2014 $ 7,500
2015 22,50(
2016 37,50(
2017 75,00(

$142,50(

NOTE L—RETIREMENT PLANS

We have a 401(k) plan under which eligible emplayesn defer a portion of their compensation, plwtroch is matched by us.
Matching contributions were $2.5 million, $2.0 ridfi and $1.8 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, refipely.

NOTE M—STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
1. Capitalization

On February 27, 2004, our Board of Directors amdRrmer Parent, as sole stockholder, approvedm@nded and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation (the “Amended Certifte”). Under the Amended Certificate, the authatieapital stock is 50,000,000 shares,
consisting of 45,000,000 shares of common stoakvglae $.01 per share and 5,000,000 shares afrpeefstock, par value $.01 per share.
Pursuant to the Amended Certificate, (i) each sbiw®ting common stock, $1 par value and (ii) eslslre of non-voting common stock, $1
par value was reclassified and exchanged into %sB@€es of issued, fully paid, nassessable common stock for a total of 9,200,0afsh
be then outstanding.

The holders of common stock are entitled to one Yot each share held. Subject to preferencescaié to any outstanding shares of
preferred stock, the holders of common stock atideshto receive ratably dividends, if any, as nieydeclared by the Board of Directors out
of funds legally available for dividend paymenfswe liquidate, dissolve, or wind up, the holdef€ommon stock are entitled to share rat
in all assets remaining after payment of liabiitand liquidation preferences of any outstandirsgeshof preferred stock. Holders of common
stock have no pre-emptive rights or rights to contheir common stock into any other securitieserEhare no redemption or sinking fund
provisions applicable to the common stock. Thetsgpreferences and privileges of the holders ofroon stock are subject to, and may be
adversely affected by, the rights of the holdershafres of any series of preferred stock that wedeaignate in the future.

Our board of directors has the authority to (ijuesshe undesignated preferred stock in one or isgnies, (i) determine the powers,
preferences and rights and the qualifications téitions or restrictions granted to or imposed ugay wholly unissued series of undesigna
preferred stock and (iii) fix the number of shatesstituting any series and the designation os#rees, without any further vote or action by
our stockholders.

Shares issued in Navilyst Acquisitic

On May 22, 2012, a portion of the acquisition agldted transaction costs of the Navilyst acquisiti@re financed through the issual
of approximately 9.5 million shares to investmanmtds affiliated with Avista Capital Partners, fomesvners of Navilyst, and as of May 31,
2013 they hold approximately 27% of our outstandihgres.
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Share Repurchase Progral

On October 5, 2011, our Board of Directors autteatithe repurchase of up to $20 million of our comratwock, prior to May 31, 2012.
During the fiscal year ended May 31, 2012, we paseld 142,305 shares at a cost of approximatelyrs@i@n. This repurchase program w
not in effect during fiscal 2013.

2. Stock Options

We have two stockased compensation plans. These plans providaddssuance of up to approximately 5.8 million ssasf commol
stock.

1997 Stock Option Plan

In 1997, we adopted a Stock Option Plan (the “1BRiA"). The 1997 Plan provided for the grant to keyployees of both nonqualified
stock options and incentive stock options and tonber's of the Board of Directors and consultantsarfqualified stock options. A total of
1,497,674 shares of our common stock were avaitalbe issued under the 1997 Plan pursuant toxttieise of options. All stock options
were to have an exercise price of not less thafaihenarket value of the shares on the date afitg@ptions are exercisable over a period of
time to be designated by the administrators ofl@@7 Plan (but not more than 10 years from the dfaggant) and are subject to such other
terms and conditions as the administrators mayrhéte. The vesting schedule is subject to the disam of our Board of Directors. Options
are exercisable immediately upon vesting. In addjtall options, whether vested or not, becomeagsalle in full immediately upon a chai
of control, as defined under the 1997 Plan. The71®ian terminated in March 2007 and as such, rtbduoptions will be granted under this
plan.

2004 Stock and Incentive Award Plan

The 2004 Stock and Incentive Award Plan (the “2BGh”) provides for the grant of incentive optidosour employees and for the
grant of non-statutory stock options, restrictextkt stock appreciation rights, performance upigsformance shares and other incentive
awards to our employees, directors and other sepiaviders. A total of 5,750,000 shares of our cmm stock have been reserved for
issuance under the 2004 Plan, of which up to 8@sb@res may be issued upon the exercise of inesstiick options. The compensation
committee of the Board of Directors administers2884 Plan. The committee determines vesting tamdsthe exercise price of options
granted under the 2004 Plan, but for all incensiek options the exercise price must at leasgbealgo the fair market value of our common
stock on the date of grant. The term of an incengtock option may not exceed ten years.

On October 5, 2011, we amended the 2004 Stockrarahtive Award Plan to increase the maximum nurobshares of our common
stock with respect to which stock options may kenggd during any calendar year to one employee 800000 shares to 500,000 shares.
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The following schedule summarizes our stock opéoctivity as of and for the years ended May 31, 2048y 31, 2012 and May 31,
2011:

2013 2012 2011
Weighted
Weighted- average Weighted- Weighted-
remaining Aggregate
average contractual intrinsic average average
exercise value (in exercise exercise
Shares price life thousands Shares price Shares price
Outstanding at beginning of year 2,985,190 $ 15.6¢ 2,680,391 $ 15.9¢ 2,624,11. $ 16.2-
Grantec 406,70 $ 11.4( 1,434,000 $ 13.7(C 503,000 $ 15.3i
Exercisec (16,83) $ 11.1¢ (193,68) $ 14.2:  (106,85) $ 15.8¢
Forfeited (589,78) $ 17.4¢ (917,120 $ 14.2: (33530 $ 17.9¢
Expired (16,34) $ 15.6¢ (18,38) $ 24.4« (4,566 $ 48.51
Outstanding at end of ye 2,768,920 $ 14.8¢ 4.5¢ $19,52¢ 2,985,19. $ 15.6¢ 2,680,391 $ 15.9¢
Options exercisable at y«-end 1,601,020 $ 16.1Z 454 $13,38 1,67855 $ 17.01 1,637,94] $ 16.7¢
Options expected to vest in future
periods 1,069,11 $ 13.3] 5.5 $ 5,60 1,07547. $ 14.1¢ 830,55 $ 15.2¢

Weighted average fair value of options grantedrdpthe fiscal years ended May 31, is as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Weighted-average fair value of options grantedrduthe year $4.1¢ $5.62 $6.8°

On May 31, 2013, there remained approximately 2lllom shares available for granting of options anthe 2004 Plan. Options are
exercisable into common stock.

All of our options were granted at exercise priegsal to the quoted market price of our commonkséd¢he date of the grants. Options
under these grants vest 25% per year over fousyfeaemployees and 100% after one year for coastdt Initial grants to directors vest
25% per year over four years and subsequent gi@nigectors vest 33 1/3 % per year over threesy@aptions granted prior to May 1, 2007
expire on the tenth anniversary of the grant daggions granted on or after May 1, 2007, expiréhenseventh anniversary of the grant date.
The total intrinsic value of options exercised Wasl million, $2.2 million, and $1.3 million for ¢hyears ended May 31, 2013, May 31, 2012
and May 31, 2011, respectively. We generally isautborized but unissued shares upon stock optiercises and the settlement of
performance share awards and restricted stock units
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The fair value of the options granted under the71®9d 2004 Plans was estimated at the date of gsard the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model assuming no expected dividends aaddlowing weighted-average assumptions:

2013 2012 2011

Expected stock price volatility 43.91% 49.06% 52.3%
Risk-free interest rat 0.62% 0.7(% 1.3%%
Expected life of option 4.62 year 4.59 year 4.63 year

The following information applies to options outsding at May 31, 2013:

Weighted-
average Weighted- Weighted-

remaining
average average
Number life in exercise Number exercise

Range of exercise price outstanding years price Exercisable price

$ 6.52 - $11.93 286,75t 4.94 $ 10.57 71,05¢ $ 10.52
$12.06- $12.97 364,36: 5.8¢ 12.4( 85,36! 12.4;
$13.18- $13.85 465,93: 4.24 13.3¢ 265,64. 13.3¢
$13.92- $14.31 430,00( 5.21 13.9¢ 119,16° 13.9¢
$14.48- $15.57 372,56¢ 3.0 15.32 288,56t 15.2
$15.75- $16.58 370,56¢ 3.4t 16.1: 292,48t 16.1¢
$16.75- $19.94 285,58 2.0z 18.1¢ 285,58( 18.1¢
$20.06- $31.33 193,17( 2.11 23.0¢ 193,17( 23.0¢
2,768,92! 4.5¢€ $ 14.8¢ 1,601,02! $ 16.17

3. Performance Share and Restricted Stock Unit Adsir

We grant restricted stock units and performanceeshaards to certain employees under the 2004 Plenperformance criteria is
established by the compensation committee for vgstf the performance share awards and may indaglers such as the achievement of
certain sales, operating income and earnings peegiEPS”) goals. Performance share awards ajedub additional conditions, including
the recipient’s continued employment with us. Téstricted stock unit awards vest in equal annwsdhliments over the term of the grants.
Unvested restricted stock unit awards will be fibefé if the recipient ceases to be employed byosipetes with our business or otherwise

engages in activities detrimental to our businedere such date. The performance share awardsatritted stock units settle in shares of
our common stock on a one-for-one basis.
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We value performance share and restricted stodkawrards based on the closing trading value ofbares on the date of grant. We
recognize the compensation cost related to ourvested stock awards ratably over the requisiteieeperiod, or over the performance
period when performance award metrics are expdotbd achieved, which is consistent with the tregtihprior to the adoption of
authoritative guidance on share based payment award

Non-
Vested Stocl
Weighted Average

Award Units Grant-Date Fair Value
Balance as of May 31, 2012 353,89 $ 14.17
Grantec 313,24° 10.7¢
Cancellec (73,479 12.7:
Vested (111,019 14.2¢
Balance as of May 31, 20: 482,64« 12.1¢

The total fair value of restricted stock awardstivgswas $1.2 million, $0.9 million, and $1.1 mlii for the years ended May 31, 2013,
May 31, 2012 and May 31, 2011, respectively.

4. Unrecognized Compensation Cost:

Under the provisions of authoritative guidance loare based payment awards, we expect to recodrezeltowing future expense for
awards outstanding as of May 31, 2013 ($ in thodisan

Weighted Average

Unrecognized
Compensatior Remaining Vestin¢
Cost Period (in years)
Stock Options $ 4,59 2.3¢
Non-vested stock awarc 4,097 2.54
$ 8,68 2.4t

Unrecognized compensation cost for stock optiomsasented net of 12% assumed annual forfeitures.

5. Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock PaecRtan”) provides a means by which our employtes“participants”) are given
an opportunity to purchase our common stock thrqaaghvoll deductions. The maximum number of shavdsetoffered under the Stock
Purchase Plan is 1,200,000 shares of our commoh, stobject to any increase authorized by the Bomirectors. Shares are offered
through two purchase periods, each with duratioapgiroximately 6 months, commencing on the firgihess day of the first and third fiscal
quarters. An employee is eligible to participataimoffering period if, on the first day of an offey period, he or she has been employed in a
full-time capacity for at least six months, witlt@stomary working schedule of 20 or more hoursymek and more than five months in a
calendar year. Employees who own stock posses&mgrinore of the total combined voting power omeadf all classes of our stock are not
eligible to participate in the Stock Purchase PTre purchase price of the shares of common stogliged on each purchase date will be the
lower of (i) 85% of the fair market value of a shaf common stock on the first day of the offeregiod or (ii) 85% of the fair market value
of a share of common stock on the last day of tirelase period, subject to adjustments made bBahed of Directors. The Stock Purchase
Plan is intended to qualify as an “employee stamsicipase plan” within the meaning of Section 42&efinternal Revenue Code.
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We use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model foudate the purchase date fair value of the shasesgd under the Stock Purchase
Plan and recognize expense related to shares padhatably over the offering period.

For the years ended May 31, 2013, May 31, 2012Mend 31, 2011, 123,556, 103,362 and 84,927 shagspectively, were issued at an
average price of $9.80, $11.62 and $13.01, respdytiunder the Stock Purchase Plan. As of May2813, 570,170 shares remained
available for future purchases under the Stock e Plan.

For fiscal 2013, stock based compensation wasrilion pre-tax ($3.1 million after tax). For fisk2012, stock based compensation
was $4.1 million pre-tax ($2.7 million after ta¥or fiscal 2011, stock based compensation wasB#lién pre-tax ($2.9 million after tax).

The following table summarizes stock-based compamsm accordance with authoritative guidance loare based payment awards for
the years ended May 31, 2013, May 31, 2012 and 312011, which was allocated as follows:

May 31, May 31, May 31,

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)

Cost of sale: $ 271 $ 26¢ $ 227
Research and developmt 39¢ 73¢ 702
Sales and marketir 1,61( 1,34( 1,43¢
General and administrati 2,32¢ 1,744 2,241
Stock based compensation expense included in apgetpense 4,33¢ 3,82 4,38z
Total stock based compensat 4,60¢ 4,09( 4,60¢
Tax benefit 1,54( 1,38¢ 1,67
Stock based compensation expense, net ¢ $3,06¢ $2,70¢ $2,93:

NOTE N—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Leases

We are committed under non-cancelable operatirapketor facilities and equipment. During fiscal 202012 and 2011, aggregate
rental costs under all operating leases were appedgly $2.5 million, $3.1 million and $3.1 millipnespectively. Future annual payments
under non-cancelable operating leases in the agtegf which one includes an escalation claust, iwitial remaining terms of more than
one year at May 31, 2013, are summarized as fol{owthousands):

2014 $2,13:
2015 1,90¢
2016 1,37
2017 982
2018 + 2,59¢

$8,99(
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Litigation Matters
AngioDynamics v. biolitet

On January 2, 2008, we commenced an action in tiied) States District Court for the Northern Distrof New York entitled
AngioDynamics, Inc. v. biolitec, Inc. In this aatiowe are seeking judgment against biolitec foedsé and indemnification in two lawsuits
which we previously settled. Our claims arise dua &upply and Distribution Agreement (“SDA”) ergdrinto with biolitec on April 1, 2002.
On September 27, 2011, the U.S. District CourttierNorthern District of New York granted key ports of our motion for summary
judgment in our legal case against biolitec. Therf's order was filed under seal. The Court also désen biolitec’s counterclaims against
us. The court denied one portion of our summargioent motion, which sought to recover additionatsdérom biolitec, leaving this for
adjudication at trial. On November 8, 2012, the ©€guanted partial judgment to us in the amour$28.2 million.

In October 2009, we commenced an action in theddritates District Court for the District of Madsasetts entitled AngioDynamics,
Inc. v. biolitec AG and Wolfgang Neuberger. The @dant in this action was amended in March 2010s Hetion seeks to recover against
biolitec, Inc.’s parent entities and CEO for tousty interfering with biolitec, Incs contractual obligation to defend and indemnifyarsl als
seeks to pierce the corporate veil of biolitec, boed to invalidate certain alleged fraudulentdfars in order to hold biolitec, Inc.’s parent
entities jointly and severally liable for the alksbbreach of the SDA. This case is currently indiseovery phase. On September 13, 2012
Massachusetts Court granted our request for anrelry injunction prohibiting the downstream mergébiolitec AG with its Austrian
subsidiary. On April 1, 2013, the U.S. Court of Apps for the First Circuit affirmed the preliminanjunction.

We will continue to vigorously enforce our rightsder the supply agreement with biolitec.

C.R. Bard, Inc. v. AngioDynamics, Inc.

On January 11, 2012, C.R. Bard, Inc. filed a suthe United States District Court of Utah claimowggtain of our implantable port
products infringe on patents held by them. Bargkisking unspecified damages and other relief. Thet@enied Bard’s motion for pre-trial
consolidation with separate actions it filed on $aene day against Medical Components, Inc. andhSrmviedical ASD, Inc., but has asked
supplemental briefing on the issue of whether todoet a common Markman hearing. We filed petitiftlmreexamination in the US Patent
and Trademark Office which seek to invalidate lalee patents asserted in the litigation. Our petitihave been granted and 40 of 41 patent
claims have been rejected. The reexamination pdicge are on-going. The case has been stayed pefinlith resolution of the PTO process.
We believe these claims are without merit and idtiendefend them vigorously. We have not recordedx@ense related to the outcome of
this litigation because it is not yet possible édedimine if a potential loss is probable nor reabbnestimable.

Cardinal Health v. Navilyst Medical, Inc.

On December 21, 2011, Cardinal Health Canada 2@4(Cardinal Health) filed a demand for arbitratfmursuant to the terms of the
International Distributorship Agreement enterea ias of November 1, 2008 between Navilyst and @atdiealth. Cardinal Health claims
that it is entitled to damages based on Navilyd#sision to terminate the International Distribstip Agreement. The parties have entered
into a written stipulation to stay the proceediimgthis matter pending the outcome of a relategddtton brought by Cardinal health against
three of our current and former employees (all bbm are former employees of Cardinal Health) in@imario Superior Court of Justice
(Cardinal Health Canada, Inc. vs. Alexander, Sol@a&npbell, Superior Court of Justice, Ontario, CandNo. CV-11-440418 (the Ontario
Litigation). If this matter proceeds following
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the stay, we intend to deny the allegations coethin the demand for arbitration and to advancetralaims against Cardinal Health.
Navilyst entered into a joint defense agreemertt thie defendants in the Ontario Litigation, purduarwhich Navilyst agreed, subject
certain conditions, to indemnify the defendantsdibiegal fees relating to the Ontario Litigatias well as any damages or cost awards ar
out of the Ontario Litigation. While we intend t@erously defend against these actions, each skthases is in the preliminary stages ar
a result, the ultimate outcome of these casestaidfotential financial impact are not determiraél this time.

Cirrex Systems LLC v. AngioDynamics, Inc.

On May 21, 2012, Cirrex Systems LLC filed a suithe United States District Court of Georgia claigthat certain of our endovenous
ablation products infringe a patent held by theime® was seeking unspecified damages and othief.réin October 3, 2012, we filed an
answer denying infringement, asserting variousratitive defenses, and asserting counterclaims deckratory judgment of non-
infringement and invalidity. On December 7, 2012ré&X voluntarily dismissed the suit.

Joseph Pierre v. AngioDynamics, Inc.

In July 2011, a former employee dual-filed a corplavith the New York State Division of Human Righdnd the Equal Employment
Opportunity Commission, entitled Joseph Pierre ngidDynamics, Inc. In this action, the former enyge is alleging discrimination due to
his status as an Africafimerican, in light of him being reassigned to ameotproject. At the conclusion of its investigatitime Division issue
a finding of “no probable cause” on January 6, 28d4@& dismissed the complaint. The complainant didappeal the decision to preserve his
New York Human Rights Law claims. On February 2212, the Equal Employment Opportunity Commissicuésl its determinatic
adopting the decision of the Division and dismigdime charge. The complainant filed a federal cmhowing the EEOC’s decision in the
United States District Court for the Northern Digdtof New York on May 21, 2012. This complaint neakhe same allegations of
discrimination, and alleges causes of action uiiitér VII of the Civil Rights Act and 42 U.S.C. 1898We believe these claims are without
merit and intend to defend them vigorously. We hawerecorded an expense related to the outcortteésolitigation because it is not yet
possible to determine if a potential loss is prddaior reasonably estimable.

We are party to other legal actions that arisdééndrdinary course of business. We believe thatiability resulting from any currently
pending litigation will not, individually or in thaggregate, have a material adverse effect onuinéss, financial condition, results of
operations, or cash flows.

Future Purchase Obligations

We have entered into commitments for future minimowentory purchases related to several core ptsdiiotal future purchase
obligations for fiscal years ending May 31 are@fvs: $3.7 million in 2014, $0.4 million in 20khd $0.4 million in 2017. There are no
such obligations in fiscal 2016.
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NOTE O—SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
Segment informatior

Effective June 1, 2012, we consider our busined®ta single segment entity — the development, faature and sale on a global basis
of medical devices for vascular access, surgemplperal vascular disease and oncology. Our chpefating decision maker (CEO) evaluates
the various global product portfolios on a net sdlasis. Executives reporting in to the CEO inclimtse responsible for operations and
supply chain management, research and developsades, franchise marketing and certain corporatetions. The CEO evaluates
profitability, investment and cash flow metrics @eonsolidated worldwide basis due to shared itrfrasire and resources. Prior to fiscal \
2013, our business was organized as two segmeassular and Oncology/Surgery, each under the direcf a general manager with direct
responsibility for all sales, marketing and proddievelopment activities.

Twelve months ende

May 31, May 31, May 31,
2013 2012 2011
Net Sales by Product Categc
Peripheral Vascule $188,18: $ 95,20( $ 86,99:
Access 106,69( 63,85 62,53(
Vascular 294,87 159,05 149,52:
Oncology/Surgen 47,15¢ 62,73( 66,22¢
Total $342,02t $221,78 $215,75(
Geographic information
Total sales for geographic areas are summarizexhvi@ thousands):
Year Ended
May 31, May 31, May 31,
2013 2012 2011
Net sales by Geograpl
United State: $274,83t $188,18 $188,87¢
Internationa 67,19( 33,60( 26,87
Total $342,02t $221,78 $215,75(

We market our products internationally throughracti sales force and independent distributors.ifiteenational distributors may also
distribute competitive products under certain ainstances. The international distributors also playmportant role in our clinical testing
outside of the United States. The loss of any magonal distributor would not have a material adeecffect on our business if a new
distributor, sales representative or other suitahles organization could not be found on a tinbelsis. For fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011,
International sales as a percentage of total nes seere 20%, 15% and 12%, respectively. Saleay@mae country outside the U.S., as
determined by shipment destination, did not conepaisnaterial portion of our net sales in any ofls¢ three fiscal years. 99% of our total
assets are located within the United States.
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NOTE P—QUARTERLY INFORMATION (unaudited)
Quarterly results of operations during 2013 and22ark as follows:

2013
First Second Third Fourth
guarter quarter quarter quarter
(in thousands, except per share date
Net sales $83,40¢ $87,00" $81,57: $90,04:
Gross profit 39,45¢ 44,08¢ 41,20: 44,24
Net income (loss (721) 1,96¢ (992) (86¢)
Earnings per common she
Basic (0.02 0.0€ (0.0%) (0.0%)
Diluted (0.02 0.0€ (0.03) (0.09)
2012
First Second Third Fourth
guarter guarter quarter guarter
(in thousands, except per share datz
Net sales $54,43: $58,09¢ $51,56° $57,69(
Gross profit 32,14¢ 33,23: 29,41« 31,16¢
Net income (loss 1,37: 2,32¢ (1,76%) (7,02¢)
Earnings per common she

Basic 0.0t 0.0¢ (0.09) (0.27)
Diluted 0.0t 0.0¢ (0.09) (0.29)

The data in the schedules above has been inteltfiooanded to the nearest thousand and theref@guarterly amounts may not sum
to the fiscal year to date amounts.

The first quarter results for fiscal 2013 includedAcquisition, restructuring and other items, n&2.2 million in transaction and
related costs of the Navilyst acquisition and $88¥sand in costs associated with the decisiotose®ur UK facility. The 2013 second
quarter results included $1.7 million for Navilysinsaction costs, $476 thousand for the UK closasts, $425 thousand in litigation costs
and $325 thousand in costs related to the Vortguiattion, offset by $770 thousand gain on sala pfoduct line. The 2013 third quarter
results included $1.6 million in costs relatedhe tliscontinuance of a product line, $1.3 milliarNavilyst transaction costs, $920 thousand
for the UK closure costs, $901 thousand in litigatcosts and $414 thousand in transaction costedfortex and Microsulis acquisitions.
The 2013 fourth quarter results included $2.1 wnillfor Navilyst transaction costs, $717 thousandknclosure costs, and $580 thousand in
litigation costs.

The fourth quarter results for fiscal 2012 includedAcquisition, restructuring and other itemst&16.2 million of expenses
primarily comprised of $11.2 million in transactiand related costs of the Navilyst acquisition33$Rillion in costs for CEO and executive
transitions, $1.8 million in costs associated wfith decision to close our UK facility, $600 thoudam costs related to the Microsulis
arrangement and $465 thousand related to C.R. fBaeht litigation.
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SCHEDULE Il -VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in thousands)

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions -

Balance at Charged to

Beginning costs and Deductions- Balance at
Description of Period expenses describe End of Period
Year Ended May 31, 2011
Allowance for deferred tax ass 1,162 27 (55 1,13¢
Allowance for sales returns and doubtful accol 55€ 4,20z (4,27%) (@) 48t
Totals $ 1,72( $ 4,22¢ $ (4,330 $ 1,61¢
Year Ended May 31, 201
Allowance for deferred tax ass 1,13¢ 20¢ (14€) 1,19¢
Allowance for sales returns and doubtful accol 48E 4,85¢ (4,41)) (@) 93¢
Totals $ 1,61¢ $ 5,06 $  (4,55) $ 2,12
Year Ended May 31, 201:
Allowance for deferred tax ass 1,19¢ — (489 (b) 712
Allowance for sales returns and doubtful accol 93¢ 4,134 (3,799 (a) 1,272
Totals $ 2,12¢ $ 4,13¢ $ (4,279 $ 1,98¢

(a) Previously reserved sales returns and accounteewff as uncollectible
(b) Use of fully reserved capital losses and expiratibfully reserved state tax credi
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

ANGIODYNAMICS, INC.

Date: August 14, 201. By: /sl VINCENTB ucci
Vincent Bucci,
Chairman of the Board, Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

Date: August 14, 201. /'s/ VINCENTB uccl
Vincent Bucci,
Chairman of the Board, Director

Date: August 14, 201: /sl JosepHM. D EV Ivo
Joseph M. DeViva
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: August 14, 201: /sl MAaARKT. FrROST
Mark T. Frost
Executive Vice Presider—Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer (Principal Financial and Chief Accounting Officer)

Date: August 14, 201: /s/  WESLEYE. JOHNSON, JR.

Wesley E. Johnson, Jr.
Director

Date: August 14, 201: /s/  HowaRDW. D ONNELLY

Howard W. Donnelly,
Director

Date: August 14, 201: /sl JerFFREYG. GoLD
Jeffrey G. Gold,
Director

Date: August 14, 201: /s/ DENNISS. METENY

Dennis S. Meteny
Director

Date: August 14, 201: /s/ STevel APORTE
Steve LaPorte,
Director

Date: August 14, 201. /s/ KEVINGouLD
Kevin Gould,
Director

Date: August 14, 201: / s/ DAVID B URGSTAHLER

David Burgstahler,
Director

Date: August 14, 201. /s/ SRIRAM V ENKATARAMAN

Sriram Venkataraman,
Director
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EXHIBITS

Exhibits

Master Separation and Distribution Agreement, ¢iffecas of May 2004, between E-Z-EM, Inc. and Afyaamics, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of thepany'’s registration statement on Form S-1/Aedfivith the Commission on
May 12, 2004)

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated October 12, 2QCéndb between AngioDynamics, Inc., Oncobionic, brad the shareholders
of Oncobionic, Inc. (incorporated by reference khibit 2.1 of the Company’s quarterly report on fat0-Q, filed with the
Commission on January 11, 200

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of NoveraBe2006, by and among AngioDynamics, Inc., RoyalLlC and RITA
Medical Systems, Inc. (incorporated by referenc@ninex A of the Company’s Registration StatemenEorm S-4, filed with the
Commission on December 8, 200

Amendment No. 1, dated December 7, 2006, to the#&gent and Plan of Merger, dated as of Novembe2@, by and among
AngioDynamics, Inc., Royal I, LLC and RITA Medic&ystems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Annex the Company’s
Registration Statement on Forr-4, filed with the Commission on December 8, 201

Amendment No. 2, dated January 16, 2007, to theéxgent and Plan of Merger, dated as of Novembe2@1g, by and among
AngioDynamics, Inc., Royal I, LLC and RITA Medic@ystems, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Ext@Hitof the Company’s
current report on Form-K, filed with the Commission on January 16, 20(

Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 9, 200&nd between Diomed Holdings, Inc. and Dionted.,, as sellers and
AngioDynamics, Inc., as Buyer (We agree to furnsthe Commission, upon request, a copy of eaclbixb this Asset Purcha
Agreement)

Sale of the Business and Assets of Diomed Limiteéd@ministration), dated April 10, 2008, by andivien AngioDynamics, Inc
Diomed Limited (in administration) and Steve Law @ ministrator) (We agree to furnish to the Consiois upon request, a cc
of each exhibit to this Stock Purchase Agreem

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of January03@, By and among AngioDynamics, Inc., NM Holdingn@pany, Inc.
(“Navilyst”), the stockholders of Navilyst who area;, will be before the closing set forth on thensiture pages thereto, solely with
respect to, and as specified in, Sections 2.4 &f{l7) thereof, the Optionholders who execute jeiragreements thereto, and,
solely with respect to, and as specified in, Seci® and Article XlI thereof, Avista Capital Pagte GP, LLC, in its capacity as
sellers’ representative (incorporated by referé¢ndexhibit 2.1 of the Company’s current report arrh 8-K filed with the
Commission on February 3, 201

Stockholders Agreement, dated as of May 22, 20hdng AngioDynamics, Inc. and the stockholders eghfon the signature
pages thereto (incorporated by reference to ExRiBiof the Company’s current report on Form 84&diwith the Commission on
May 25, 2012)

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Octoberl2, 2y and among AngioDynamics, Inc., Vortex Meditac. (“Vortex”), the
stockholders of Vortex set forth on the signatuaggs thereto, the optionholders of Vortex set fortlthe signature pages thereto
and CHTP Management Services, Inc., as sellerseseptative (incorporated by reference to Exhilditdf the Company curren
report on Form -K, filed with the Commission on October 12, 201

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatinoofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the @amy’s quarterly report on
Form 1(-Q, filed with the Commission on October 7, 20(

Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporated by eafar to Exhibit 3.2 of the Company’s quarterly mejpo Form 10-Q, filed
with the Commission on October 7, 20C
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10.1.1

10.1.2

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Rights Agreement, dated as of May 26, 2004, betwiewioDynamics, Inc. and Registrar & Transfer Compaas Rights Agent
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of trepany’s registration statement on Form 8-A, fikdth the Commission on
October 27, 2004

Certificate of Designation, Preferences and RighSeries A Preferred Stock of AngioDynamics, Ificcorporated by reference
to Exhibit 3.3 of the Compar's current report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on November 28, 20(

First Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as fidgy 30, 2012, by and between AngioDynamics, &ncl Registrar and
Transfer Company, as Rights Agent (incorporatedelfigrence to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company’s curr@qtart on Form 8-K filed
with the Commission on February 3, 201

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 22, 2012, byamndng AngioDynamics, Inc., the lenders party tleréPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., as administrative agent, Bank of Amayid.A. and Keybank National Association as co-$yaibn agents, and J.P.
Morgan Securities LLC, Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fen@Smith Incorporated and Keybank National Asstioiaas joint
bookrunners and joint lead arrangers (incorporhteeference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s cotmeport on Form 8-K
filed with the Commission on May 25, 201

Except as set forth in Exhibit 4.4 above, the insients defining the rights of holders of lotegm debt securities of the Comp:
and its subsidiaries have been omitted. We agraenésh to the Commission, upon request, a copgach instrument with
respect to issuances of long term debt of the Cognpad its subsidiarie

AngioDynamics, Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan, as aeeiby the Board and Shareholders on February@#4 @ncorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Comp'’s registration statement on Fori-1, filed on March 5, 2004

AngioDynamics, Inc. 2004 Stock and Incentive AwRtdn (as amended) (incorporated by reference t€timpany’s Definitive
Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the Cassion on September 10, 201

AngioDynamics, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plarafaended) (incorporated by reference to the Coypa&efinitive Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A filed with the CommissiniSeptember 10, 201:

Form of Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement purgua the AngioDynamics, Inc. Stock and Incentiweakd Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of then@®any’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q, filed witle Commission on
October 12, 2004

Form of Performance Share Award Agreement pursieatiie AngioDynamics, Inc. 2004 Stock and Incenfiveard Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of th@®any’s current report on Form 8-K, filed with tGemmission on May 12,
2005).

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement pursuarthé AngioDynamics, Inc. 2004 Stock and Incenfiveard Plan
(incorporated by reference to the Comy’s current report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on May 12, 200

Rita Medical Systems, Inc. 1994 Incentive StockiRlacorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 oaRvtedical Systems
registration statement on Forr-1, filed with the Commission on May 3, 20(

Horizon Medical Products, Inc. 1998 Stock Incentlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.LHorizon Medical
Product’ registration statement on Forr-1, filed with the Commission on February 13, 1€

Rita Medical Systems, Inc. 2000 Stock Plan (incoapexl by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Rita MediSgktems registration
statement on Form-1/A, filed with the Commission on June 14, 20(
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10.12.2

10.13
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10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

Rita Medical Systems, Inc. 2000 Directors’ StocarRlas amended on June 8, 2005 (incorporated éserefe to Exhibit 99.2
of Rita Medical Syste’s registration statement on Fori-8, filed with the Commission on July 8, 200

Rita Medical Systems, Inc. 2005 Stock and Incerfilan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99. Rda& Medical System’s
registration statement on Forr-8, filed with the Commission on July 8, 200

Form of Indemnification Agreement of AngioDynamiss. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1hef Company’s
current report on Form-K, filed with the Commission on May 12, 200

Form of Severance Agreement of AngioDynamics, (mzorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of then(pany’s current
report on form -K, filed with the Commission on October 31, 20(

Form of Severance Agreement of AngioDynamics, (mzorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of then(pany’s current
report on form -K, filed with the Commission on January 8, 20(

Building Loan Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2@§2and between AngioDynamics, Inc. and Keybantiddal Association
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of @@mpany’s registration statement on Form S-1, filétth the Commission on
March 5, 2004)

Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated as of Augud002, from Counties of Warren and Washingtatustrial
Development Agency, as Issuer, and AngioDynamius,tb Keybank National Association for the holdefshe Issuer’s
Multimode Variable Rate Industrial Development Rawe Bonds (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@f the Company’s
registration statement on Forr-1, filed with the Commission on March 5, 200

Installment Sale Agreement, dated as of Augusf022by and between Counties of Warren and Wasbminigidustrial
Development Agency and AngioDynamics, Inc. (incogted by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the Compamgyistration
statement on Form-1, filed with the Commission on March 5, 200

Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of August 1,,200and between AngioDynamics, Inc. and Keybantdwal
Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibitlb of the Company’s registration statement omF8r1, filed with the
Commission on March 5, 200«

First Amendment to the Reimbursement Agreemengddas of December 29, 2003, by and between Angiaycs, Inc. and
Keybank National Association (incorporated by refere to Exhibit 10.17 of the Company’s registragtatement on Form -
filed with the Commission on March 5, 200

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decembel0b, B9 and between AngioDynamics, Inc. and Keyl@aapital Market:
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 of @@mpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed witketBommission on
August 14, 2008)

Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of December0B, 2§ and between AngioDynamics, Inc. and Keylidatonal
Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl® of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10ik€dfwith the
Commission on August 14, 200:

Offer Letter for the Chief Executive Officer, datéanuary 19, 2009 (incorporated by reference tatiixt0.1 of the Company’
current report on Form-K, filed with the Commission on January 23, 20(

Form of Change in Control Agreement (incorporatgddierence to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company’s curireport on Form 8-K,
filed with the Commission on May 19, 201

Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement, by and betwergidDynamics, Inc. and Jan Keltjens, dated Janli@y2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of th@®any’s current report on Form 8-K, filed with tBemmission on January
23, 2009)
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Restricted Stock Agreement, by and between AngiaDyins, Inc. and Jan Keltjens, dated January 19 g@0orporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Comp'’s current report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on January 23, 20(

Employment Agreement, by and between AngioDynanties,and Eamonn Hobbs, dated January 20, 2008rfincated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Comp'’s current report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on January 23, 20(

Consulting Agreement, by and between AngioDynaniits,and Eamonn Hobbs, dated January 20, 2008rfincated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Comp'’s current report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on January 23, 20(

Non-Statutory Stock Option Agreement, by and betweegidDynamics, Inc. and Eamonn Hobbs, dated Jar2@r2009
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of trempany’s current report on Form 8-K, filed with t@emmission on January
23, 2009)

Employment Agreement, dated August 15, 2011, betweryioDynamics, Inc. and Joseph M. DeVivo (incagied by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Comp'’s current report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on August 16, 201112D

Change in Control Agreement, dated August 15, 2B&tween AngioDynamics, Inc. and Joseph M. DeVikodrporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Comp'’s current report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on August 16, 201112D

AngioDynamics, Inc. Fiscal Year 2011 Senior ExasutCash Incentive Program (incorporated by refereadxhibit 10.27 of
the Compan’s annual report on Form -K, filed with the commission on August 12, 201

AngioDynamics, Inc. Fiscal Year 2011 Senior Exesuttquity Incentive Program (incorporated by refiessto Exhibit 10.28
of the Compan’s annual report on Form -K, filed with the commission on August 12, 201

AngioDynamics, Inc. Fiscal Year 2012 Senior ExegtCash Incentive Program (incorporated by refexeadExhibit 10.29 of
the Compan’s annual report on Form -K, filed with the commission on August 12, 201

AngioDynamics, Inc. Fiscal Year 2012 Senior Exasuquity Incentive Program (incorporated by refieseto Exhibit 10.30
of the Compan’s annual report on Form -K, filed with the commission on August 12, 201

Separation and General Release, by and betweemByigamics, Inc. and Jan Keltjens, dated June 1B] Zidcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Comp'’s current report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on June 14, 201

Escrow Agreement, dated as of May 22, 2012, byaamdng AngioDynamics, Inc., Avista Capital Partn®m, LLC, as sellers’
representative, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, Natiossb@ation, as escrow agent (incorporated by neferéo Exhibit 10.2 of
the Compan’s current report on Forn-K filed with the Commission on May 25, 201

Retirement and Separation Agreement and GenerabBe| dated November 19, 2012, between AngioDysarmic. and D.
Joseph Gersuk (incorporated by reference as Extihlt of the Company’s current report on Form §iliéd with the
Commission on November 21, 201

Change in Control Agreement, effective November28,2, between AngioDynamics, Inc. and Mark T. Efosorporated by
reference as Exhibit 10.2 of the Comp’s current report on Forn-K, filed with the Commission on November 21, 20

Code of Ethics (incorporated by reference to ExtiBiof the Company’s current report on Form 8iledf with the
Commission on May 12, 200¢

118



Table of Contents

21
23
311
31.2
32.1

32.2

101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Subsidiaries

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an indepemelgistered public accounting firi
Certification by the Chief Executive Officer Purstito Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification by the Chief Financial Officer Pursiiao Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification by the Chief Executive Officer Purstizo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursua8tttion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer Pursiiao 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursua8ettion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

XBRL Instance Documer

XBRL Schema Documet

XBRL Calculation Linkbase Documer

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurh
XBRL Labels Linkbase Documen

XBRL Presentation Linkbase Docume

119



Subsidiary
Vortex Medical

NM Holding Company, Inc

Navilyst Medical Holdings, Inc
Navilyst Medical, Inc
AngioDynamics UK Limitec
AngioDynamics Netherlands B."
RITA Medical Systems, LL(

RITA Medical Systems, France, SAF

Subsidiaries of AngioDynamics, Inc.
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Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtiee Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No 328057, No. 333-138456, No. 333-
140627, No. 333-161355, No. 333-162844 and No.BBB19) of AngioDynamics, Inc. of our report dafaejust 14, 2013 relating to the
financial statements, financial statement schedntkthe effectiveness of internal control overiiicial reporting, which appears in this Form
10-K.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Albany, New York
August 14, 2013



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Joseph M. DeVivo, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16flngioDynamics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dm#ttate a material fact necessal
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirgg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsedorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegggnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ameaport) that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the gant’s internal control over financial reportiremd

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 14, 2013 /s/ JosepHM. D EvivO

Joseph M. DeVivo
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Mark T. Frost, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16flngioDynamics, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dm#ttate a material fact necessal
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirgg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsedorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegggnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regrsts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ameaport) that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the gant’s internal control over financial reportiremd

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cootrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: August 14, 2013 /sl  MARKT. FROST

Mark T. Frost,
Executive Vice Presider—Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT T O TITLE 18,
UNITED STATES CODE, SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUAT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Joseph M. DeVivo, Chief Executive Officer of ANGDYNAMICS, Inc. (the “Company”), certify, pursuatd Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 18%, to the best of my knowledge:

1. the annual report on Form 10-K of the CompamytHe fiscal year ended May 31, 2013 (the “Repdtiily complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&esrExchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 78p(@hd

2. the information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations
the Company.

Date: August 14, 2013 /s/ JosepHM. D Evivo

Joseph M. DeVivo,
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT T O TITLE 18,
UNITED STATES CODE, SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUAT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark T. Frost, Executive Vice President, Chig@idncial Officer of ANGIODYNAMICS, Inc. (the “Compg”), certify, pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18.0. Section 1350, that, to the best of my knogded

1. the annual report on Form 10-K of the CompamyHe fiscal year ended May 31, 2013 (the “Repdtiily complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the S&esrExchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 78p(@hd

2. the information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations
the Company.

Date: August 14, 2013 /sl MARKT. FROST

Mark T. Frost,
Executive Vice Presider—Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer




